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Strategic report

Group Business Model and Strategy

The business of Wittington Investments Limited and Hs
subsidiaries {the 'Group') is the management of
investments in a wide range of assets.

The Group's investments are managed in five businesses,
being Luxury Retail, Real Estate, Hotels, Private Markets &
Other invastments and Associated British Foods ple {*ABF’).
The latter refers to the Group's 56.2% shareholding in ABF
(2022: 54.5%), which is gquoted on The London Stock
Exchange.

The Group takes a long-term approach to investment and
is committed to increasing sharehalder value through
sound business decisions which will deliver sustainable
growih in earings and dividends.

Given the materiality of the ABF business and for ease of
cross-reference to the published financial statements of
ABF, the directors have elected to provide additional
information in the notes which follow setting out the
contribution of the ABF business to the consclidated
financial statements of the Group. Fer clarity, all
references to the ABF business are shown in ifafics in the
notes to these statements and are consistent with the
published financial staterments of ABF.

The Garfield Weston Foundation {"The Foundation™} is an
English charitable trusi, established in 1958 by the late W
Garfield Weston. As at 16 September 2023, the Foundation
holds 683,073 shares (2022 - 683,073) in Wittingtaon
Investments Limited representing 79.2% (2022 - 79.2%] of
the Group's issued share capital and is, therefore, the
Group's ultimate coniroling party.

The Trustees of the Foundation made total grants of £91.1
milion [year to 5 April 2023} in support of 2,147 appeals
(2022: £89.2 million in support of 1,988 appeals). The
Foundation accepts appeals from UK registered charities.
No applications from individuals are considered and the
Trustees do not typically fund projects autside the UK.

Business Strategies

Luxury Retail

Luxury Retall comprises Fortnum & pMason plc and Heal &
Sons Lid, two long-established retailers, The aim for each
of these businesses is to bulld a sustainable and profitable
business aver the long term by providing an outstanding
customer experience through all channets and by
developing the product offer. They also dim to develop
their respective digital businesses and. where appropriate,
international activities.

Real Estate

The Group Invests in high-quality investment properties in
the retail, office and distibution sectors across the UK 1
also takes strategic positions in selected development
opportunities, alongside local partners or sector specialists.
where it can use its patient capital to unlock the potential
in those sites.

Hotels

As an extension of its Real Estate strategy. the Group
invests in hotels with high-quality real estate backing and
with a broad mix of customers from corporafe, event and
leisure markels.

Private Markets & Other Investments
The Group invests both directly and via externalty
managed funds in private equity and private debt

markets. This is a long-term asset class and exposures are
managed fo provide a diverse portfolio by sector,
geography and age of company. It also invests seleclively
in special situations,

Other investments are principally composed of liquid
investrments in short-dated investment grade bonds as well
as listed equities, which provides portfolio diversification
and enables liquidity and portfolio needs to be met,

Associated British Foods plc

ABF s & diversified infernational food. ingredients and
retail Group with revenue of £19.8bn, 133,000 employees
and aperations in 55 countries across Europe, southarn
Africa, the Americas, Asia and Australia. Further details
can be found in ABF's Annual Report 2023 which can be
found ot www.abf.co.uk.

Business Review

Luxury Retail
Fortnum & Mason

Fortnum & Mmason's financial year saow a confinued
recovery in sales with UK store revenue returning to pre-
Covid levels at the start of 2023 and growing 34% on FY22,
driven by a resifient domestic market and increased
international customer foottall. Online sales saw an 11%
reduction on FY22, not dissimilar fo the wider market as
consumers rebalanced their behaviour post-Covid.
Fortnum & mMason faced challenging operating conditions
as inflation grew rapidly, particularly in food and labour.
Total Revenue grew 12% to £208.6m (2022: £186.5m); Profit
before taxation arew to £7.5m (2022: L0.0in) und EBITDA
grew 1o £16.0m (2022: £14.2m). Capital investment in the
year amounted to £8.2m (£2022: £4.9m) centred on the
refurbishment of the 3rd floor of the Piccadily flagship
store. Closing cash was £21m {20227 £17m), with no debt.

Heal's

Heal's has experienced a difficult period for profitability as
inflationary pressure squeazed margin and increased the
cost base (with the exception of its new Tottenham Court
Road lease). Revenue remained materdaily fiat at £37.4m
{2022: £37.0m). however the dual challenges of supply
chain and wage inflation drove a 50% reductionin
operating profit to £0.8m [2022: £1.4m). Perhaps the
biggest challenge was in dealing with old {returned and
cancelled) stock, which led 1o a very significant write
down which supressed profit. Heals contfinues to generate
a positive aperating profit and EBITDA and the underlying
performance remains sound. Excluding the write-down of
stack, profit would have increqsed from the piior period.
The strategic focus of the company going forward is to
capitalise on its new store layout on Tottenham Court
Road and to grow its online presence, which now
accounts for half of sales revenue.

Real Estate

Three propeities were acquired during the year with an
aggregate consideration of £33m: one property was sold
far £3m. Income grew to £12.3m [2022: £11.5m) while the
operating lossin the year of £8.3m (2022: profit of £16.3m)
included an aggregate impairment charge of £13.6m
{2022: £5.6m) in respect of the carrying value of some of
the office and retail properties and a residential
development. Over the year, 99.9% of rents demanded
were collected (2022: 29%) comparing very favourably
with the sector as o whole.

wittington Investments Finarcial Statements 2023 1



Strategic report

Hotels
Grand Hotel, Brighton

The Grand Holel, Brighlon was sold fo the Fattal Group in
May 2023 for £61m.

Richmond Hill Hotel

Richmond Hil Hotel continued to benefit frem sfrong
demand in the leisure market. Revenue for the period was
the highest in the hotel's history at £10.1m (2022: £9.2m),
whilst current and future bookings remain strong. Changes
to the market value of the property resulted in an
operating loss of £2.7m (2022; profit of £13.4m. including a
one-off impairment reversal).

Private Markets & Other Investments

Cver the vear the Group invested £200m in investment
grade credit and ¢.3130m info a global public equities
index fund. A further €40m was committed to private
equity. The public and private equity funds held broadly
flat in GBP terms aver the year, whilst the leveraged loan
porifolio, in which the underlying investments are floating-
rate, benefitted from rising inferest rates globally. The
remaining direct portfoiic companies posted modest
gains. There was an unrealised FX impact in the year
which supressed profitakility. Profit after tax for the year for
Private Markets & Other Investments was £36.0rm (2022:
£28.3m).

Associaled British Foods plc

ABF performed extremely well despite facing very
significant economic challenges caused in part by major
geo-political events at the start of the financial year. It is
now wel positioned for the financial year ahead.

Irading at Primark was excellent under the circumstances.
At the beginning of the year selective piice increases
were implemented partially to protect profitability, on the
grounds that the significant input cost inflation was
temporary. That careful pricing delivered as intended,
with customers continuing to shop enthusiastically.
Profitability in ABF's food businesses moved ahead as a
result of the appeal of their products and the strength of
its brands, both of which supported the recovery of high
levels of input cost inflation without disrupting customer
relalionships.

Although consumer demand remains uncertain, Primark is
as well placed as it has ever been and that its offeris very
attractive not just to existing customers but also 1o new
customers engaged by ils digital platform, new store
openings, and word of mouth which remains as powerful
as ever. With Pimark margin now moving back to ifs
historic levels, the future for this business is viewed with
confidence. ABF's food businesses are also in very good
shape, and its Sugar business especially should see much
beter profitability in the year ahead.

ABF posted statutory operating profit for the year of
£1,383m {2022: £1.178m) after exceptional charges of
£109m {2022: £206m}. Given the strength of ABF's balance
sheet and its confidence in the future, ABF announced a
special dividend of 12.7 pence per share and a second
share buyback programme of up to £500m on November
7th 2023.
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Directors’ duties

The directors are required to actin a way which they
consider, in good faith, is most likely to promote the
success of the Company for the benefit of its members as
a whole and, in doing so, have regard to the matters set
out in section 172(1) [a) to {f) of the Companies Act 2006.

Stakehelder engagement

The Company engages regularly with stakeholders at
Group and/or business unit level, depending on the
particular issue. Regardless of the legal duties, the
directors consider regular engagement with stakeholders
to be part and parcel of our value of progressing through
collaboration and 1o be fundamental to the success of
the Group.

The Board has identified the following stakeholder groups
with whom engagement is fundamenial to the Group's
ongoing success:

I. The Garfield Weston Foundation: The largest single
shareholder of the Group is the Garfield Wesion
Foundation, a charitable grant-making body which
supports a wide range of causes across the UK. The
Group engages regularly with the Foundation to
understand its grant pipeiine and to ensure that it isin
o position to pay dividends 1o a level commeansurale
with the Foundation's objectives. An additional key
concern for the Foundaltion is that the Group cperate
with high ethical standards so as not to undermine the
Foundation’s charitable aims and objectives.

2. Governments: The Group is impacted by changss in
laws and public pelicy. The key issues of concern in
relation to the government are regulatery changes
(including tax legislation). climate and enviranmental
related matters and support of businesses and warkers.
The directors of the Group engage with this
stakeholder group in various ways including meetings,
responding to requests for inputs {e.g. on sustainability
reporting guidelines] and applications to poarticipate in
government schemes.

3. Communities and the environment: As the Group's
contraling sharehoider, the Foundation Ts heavily
engaged in national efforts to mitigate climate
change. This is primarily achieved through the award
of grants to relevant bodies. Through the ABF business
segrment, the Group is also engaged in community
relations at ¢ national and international level and with
the design and implementation of stralegies fo
prormote climate change mitigation and a circular
econamy. ABF engages with these stakehalder groups
in various ways including coaching and training
programmes and community programmes and
schames.

4. Customers / consumers: The Group depends heavily
on its reputation with custormers, in the UK and globally,
across its grocery, retail and hotel operations. The key
issues of concern to customers are heclth and safety,
products and services, value for money, availability of
products and services, impact on the environment,
store and hotel environments and customer relations,
The business engages with this stakeholder group in
varnous ways including customer surveys, labelling,
social media and customer/consumer information
lines.
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5. Employees; Our people are central to our success. The
Group employs 134,881 people of which 133,000 are
employed by ABF. Given this, responsibility for
engagement with employees lies principally with the
ABF business segment. ABF engages with ils employees
In various ways including ermail, health and safety
programmes, intranet, newsletters, surveys, town halls.
training. virtual meetings and notice boards. The key
issues of concern to employees are health and safety,
engagement & development and diversity & inclusion.

The Group is committed fo an aclive equal
opportunities policy from recruitment and selecthian,
through fraining and development, performance
reviews and promotions to retirement. It is our policy to
promote an environment free from discrimination,
harassment and victimisation, where everyone
receives equal treatment regardiess of gender. colour,
ethnic or national origin, disability, age, marital status,
sexual orientaiion or religion. Al decisions relating to
amployment practices are objective, free from bias
and based solely upon work criteria and individual
merit. It is our policy that people with disabilities who
fulfil the minimum criteria should have full and fair
consideration for all vacancies, We endeavour to
retain employees in the workforce if ihey become
disabled during employment. It is the Group's policy to
provide conlinuing employment wherever praclicable
in the same or an alternative position and to provide
appropriate training to achieve this aim.

6. Suppliers: Through the ABF business segment, the
Group is indirectly dependent on many complex
supply chains opeuling dl an internahanallevel, The
key issues of concern with regards to supply chains are
payment practices. responsible sourcing and supply
chain sustainobility & responsibility. The Group engages
with this stakeholder group in various waoys including
conversations {face-to-face or virtual), fraining,
communications fora, corespondence, press releqases
and aqudits,

Principal decisions

An example of a principal decision taken during the year
Ihat took stakeholder views into account is the decision to
pay a firstinterim dividend in January 2023 and a second
interdm dividend in July 2023, with the primary beneficiary
of the decision being the Garfield Weston Foundation and
- indirectly — the recipients of the grants awarded by the
Foundation.

The Directors agreed a first interim dividend of £78.50 per
share, paid in January 2023 which, together wilh the
second interim dividend paid in July 2023 of £67.50 per
share, made a total of £148.00 per share for the year,
representing 42% of distributable profit,

The decision to pay both dividends factored in the net
cash position before lease liabilities for the Group of £2.8
n at the 2022 vear end,

Non-Financial and Susfainability Information
Statement

The Group Beoard recognises that climate change
represents a material risk throughout its supply chains and
poses challenges to some of its businasses worldwide. The
Boord whally support policies that are aligned with the
goals of the 2015 Paris Climate Agreement tolimit the rise
in global temperatures to well below 2°C above pre-
industrial levels, and 1o pursue efforts to limit the
temperature increase even further to 1.5°C.

This year the Wittingion Group has included climate-
related financial disclosures in accordance with the
Companies [Strategic Report) (Climate-related Financial
Disclosure} Regulations 2022 (S12022/31).

Governance

The Board is responsible for overseeing climate-related
issues across the Group. The Board reviews each business
segment in depth every year, which will include o review
of material ESG issues.

Risk management

The Board is accountable for effeclive risk management,
for agreeing the principal, including emerging. risks facing
the Group and ensuring they are successfully managed.

The process tor identifying, assessing and managing
climate-related risks is the same as for other risks within the
Group and sits with the business where the risk resicles.

These risks, including climate risks, are collated and
reviewed at both a business and divisional level, and then
reported to the Chief Financial Officer who reviews the
key risks with the Board.

Strategy and action, metrics and targets

witiington operates a decentralised business mode!
because the Group Board believes in giving the leaders of
its businesses the scope and accountability to creale and
run the best businesses they can. They are therefore
responsible for identifying and implementing sirategies
that both create value and ensure value is protected by
taking action to mitigate or adapt to the impacts of
climate change. Enabling decision-making by the people
closest to these issues, with the closest relationships with
the stakeholders affected, provides resilience, agility and
fiexibility in planning, allowing for quick action on impacts
and opportunilies.

Climate risks and opportunities
The ABF division accounts for the most material climate
risks and opportunities in the Wittington Group.

ABF comprises businesses that provide safe, nutritious and
affordable food, and clothing that is great value for
money. There will be many value creation apportunities
which ABF's businesses will be well positioned to iake
advantage of as the world fransitions to a low carbon
economy. There will also be physical and transitional
climate risks which they may be susceptibte to. Many of
ABF's businesses rely on agricultural crops with complex
supply chains which are spread across the world. Long-
ferm climate change willimpact agriculfural crops and
workers while exireme weather events have the potential
to cause disruption acrass value chains.

Cross-functional teams within the ABF business worked
with third-party experts to understand climate-related,
physical and transition risks and opportunities. These were
included in the Group's scenario analysis.
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Non-Financial and Sustainability Information
Statement continued

The scenario analysis included the following scenarios:

warming Transitional scenarios! Physical
Irajectiony by 2100 scenarios?
<2°C CNet Zero Emissions oy 2050 RCP2.6
Scenario ('NZE') (1.5 C)
Sustainakle Development
Scenario ('SDS')
2-3°C Stated Policies Scenario ['STEPS'] RCP4.5
~4°C RCP§.51

1. The International Energy Agency's scenarios have been used to assess transition
impacts with each seenario built on a set of assumptions on how the energy
system might evolve, Each scenaric has a different temperature outcame ABF
used scenarios rovering 1 5°C, 2" C and
«3'C

7. ABFused the Intergavernmental Panel on Climate Change's Representative
Cancentration Pathways (RCP) to assess physical chmate risk, RCPs are commonly
used by dlimate scientists to assess physical climate risk, with each pathway
representing a different greenhouse gas concentration trajectory which can then
be translated into global warming irmparts ABF used climate data from the World
Climate Research Programmes Coupled Model Intercomparison Project — Phase 5
{CMIP 5 adjusted for spatial resolution and bias carrected) to do this transtation.
RCPs feed into chmate, crop and flood models, There are four RCP pathways with
RCFZ.5 representing the worst case scenana

The impact of compounding means that even small
changes in assumptions can lead to a significant range of
oufcomes from climate models and scenarios. ABF
therefore placed more emphasis on projections to 2030,
using them for aclion planning, and used projections to
2050, where there is more uncertainty, to check our sense
of direction and consider the resilience of our businesses
should certgin hypnthetical sccenarios fake place.

Risks and opportunities have been considered over the
following time horizons:

Years Rafionale

Shori-term 2025 Mid-decade
mMedium- 2030 OQur most financially material businesses,
ferm ABF Sugar, Pimark and Twinings have set

2030 emission targets, which are supporfed
by emission reduclion plans

Long-term 2050 2050 is consistent with many national and
industry targets. Primark is aligned with the
UNFCCC Foshuon Industry Charter goal of
net zero emissions across all three Scopes

by 2050

ABF's risk assessment proceass identified the following
climate risks and opportunities that may have a significant
impact on ABF; these are denoted in italics below.
Aclditional risks and opportunilies affecting Fortnurm &
Mason (as the only other business materially affected by
climate change in the Wittington Group) are included
below.

Determining the potential impact of climate risks and the
size of climate opportunities is challenging. Climate
maodels include several fixed assurmptions and there is
significant uncertainty around the impacts of cimate
change and how governments will respond to its threats.
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Impact Description

assessment

Projected impacts from scenaro analysis are
positive or not sigrificant

Impacts not judged to be sgnificant once

Medium i
mitigating actions are consderad

Impacts judged to be significant even after
mitigating actions have been consicdered

High

Nore: “Significance” refers here to the considercd impact of climate
risks and ooportunities on the Groun's financial performance and
position

. Climate impact on cotton yields (Primark)

2023 assessment

Short ferm; G

Metrics for miligating aclions & targefs:

- Proportion of cotton clothing sales (units) that
contains cotton that is arganic, recycled or sourced
from Primark's Sustainable Cotton Programme (%)
100% by 2027.

- Number of farmers trained in Primark's Sustainable
Cottan Programme: 275,000 by end of 2023.

2. Climafe impact on lllovo's sugar yields (Eswatini,
Malawi, Mozambigue, South Africa, Tanzania, Zambia)

2023 assessment

Short term: ong-term

Metics for mitigating actions & targets:

Sugar production {fonnes).

- Volume of water abstracted.
AR Sugar has a target toeduce il end-1o-end
supply chain water usage by 30% vs 2017/2018

3. Impact of carbon pricing mechanisms (AB Sugar and
Primark)
2023 assessment
Medium term

tetrics for mitigating actions & targets:

Primark: GHG emissions: Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions
vs target of 50% absolute reduction in emissions by
2030 vs 2018/19 baseline.

AB Sugar. GHG emissions: Scope | and 2 emissions vs
target of 30% absolute reduction in Scope 1 and 2
emissions by 2030 vs 2017/18 baseline

4. Impact of carbon pricing mechanisms on Fortnum &
Mason
2023 assessment
Medium ferm

Metrics for mitigating actions & targets:

GHG emissians: Scope 1, 2 emissions vs target of 25%
absolute reduction in emissions by 2025 vs 2018/19
baseline

We consider that the scenario analysis performed in
conjunction with the mitigating actions undertaken by our
businesses demonstrate that our business models and
strategy are resilient to climate change in each of the
fransition and physical scenarios cuflined akove.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The Group's board reviews annudlly the material risks

facing the business together with the intermnal control
procedures and resources devoted to them.

The principal risks currently identified are:

External Risks: ihe conflicts in Ukraine and the middle East
theirimpact on the UK and Global economy; events
impacting consumer confidence leading to reduced
consumer spending: movement In exchange rates: wage
and materials inflation; fluctuations in commeodity and
energy prices; operating in global markets; health and
nutrition concerns.

Operational Risks: supply chaininferruptions and latbour
shortages; workplace health and safety; product safety
and qudlity; use of natural resources and managing
environmental impact; ethical business practices; and
breaches of IT and information security.

Energy and Global Greenhouse Gas Emissions
The Group is committed to making year-on-year
improvements in operational energy efficiency.

The Group calculates and discloses GHG emissions based
on the WRI/WBCSD GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standard Revised Editicn, except for
alignment with the GHG Protocol’'s approach for
determining organisational boundary and limitations for
Scope 3 disclosures. The Group use carbon conversion
factaors published by the UK's Department for Business,
Energy and Indusinal Strategy {BEIS) in June 2022, other
internationally recognised scurces. and bespoke tactors
based on labaratory calriiatinng at selocted localivns.,
Scope 2 market-based emissions have been calculatedin
accorcdance with the GHG Proiocol Scope 2 Guidance
on procured renewable energy.

ABF's emissions (Scopes 1 and 2} reduced by 6% to 2.91
million tonnes COZ2e {2022: 3.11 million tonnes CO2e).
ABF's energy consumption increased by 19% to 21,183
GWh (2022: 21,046 GWh). The principal energy efficiency
measures to reduce ABF's carben emissions include the
intfroduction of energy monitoring systems. conversions fo
LED lighting: and upgrades fo production machinery such
as comprassors and boilers fo improve efficiencies.

Fortnum & Mason's emissions {Scopes 1 and 2) were 1,859
tonnes CO2e (2022: 1.417 tonnes CO2e} and its energy
consumption was 8,489 GwH [2022: 7,922 MWh}

Fortnum & Mason is also committed to decreasing its
reliance on the planet’s resources and is working hard o
ensure that all packaging is either reusable, home
compaostable ar fully recyclable by 2024,

Corporate Responsibility

The Group's corporcie respoensibility activities centre on
those of ABF. As a diversified international food,
ingredients and retail Group with 133,000 employess and
operations in 55 countries acress Europe, southem Africa,
the Amercas. Asia and Australic, ABF fakes its
responsibilities to wider saciety seriously. ABF publishes o
full carporate responsibility report every three years, most
recently in 2022, Corporate responsibility is a central part
of how the business is run and is incorporated into the day
to day decision making processes. In the Corporate
Responsibility Report, ABF shares information on ifs anti-
bribery and comuption policy, whistleblowing policy,
approach to human rights, secial matters, envircnment
policy. employees and diversity. Further information and a
copy of the 2022 ABF Corporate Responsibility Report are
available at www.abf.co.uk/responsibility/cr downloads.

ABF is committed to gender diversity and, across the
business overall, the gender split is close 1o equal with 54%
of the workforce last year being female. The Equality Act
2010 {Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017
were infroduced in April 2017, and ABF has collected the
required data for aft of its relevant employees. Further
detaits for each of the UK legal entities that are required to
report dala s published online and subrmitted to the
Government's Gender Pay Reporting website in
accordance with the legislation. Further information can
be found inin the ABF 2023 Annual Report at
www.abl.ocouk/invesiorrelahons/reports.

Being o responsible company means respeching the
numan rghts of all the people who interact with the
nusingss, whether lhey are direct employees, temporary
waorkers or those in the supply chain. ABF's approach to
human rights and the steps it takes to try to ensure that
modern slavery, in any of its forms, is not present within its
operations or supply chains is set out In the 2023 Modern
Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement. Many of the
businesses have compiled their own statements, and all
published siatements can be found ot

http://www . abf.co.uk/responsibility/responsibility_policies.

ABF is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
ethics and compliance with all relevant laws wherever it
does business. Compliance with anti-bribery and anti-
corruption laws is an essential part of this and ABF
maintains a robust compliance system which is designed
to raspect both the spirit and letter of the relevant laws, A
copy of the Group's Anti-Bribery and Coruption Policy is
available at

htto:/fwwer abf.co.uk/responsibility/responsibility_policies.

witington Investments Financiol Statements 2023 5



Strategic report

Effective and honest communication is essential if
malpractice and wrongdeing are to be dealt with
effectively. ABF's Whistleblowing Policy provides guidelines
for people who feel they neead to raise certain issues in
confidence. A copy of the Whistleblowing Policy is
availaple of

http:/ freww . abf.co.uk/responsibility fresponsibility_policies.

Fartnum & Mason. as a business that has been around for
over 300 years, sees ifs primory responsibility as conducting
business today in a way that fruly considers the next 300
yedrs. Fortnum & Masan's strategy is called Future Matters
within which are four sustoinability and social responsitility
pillors: People, Product, Packaging and Planet. These
crive o commitment 1o doing more things more ofien io
create long-lasting change, with the heip of suppliers,
employees and customers. More information is available
in the Fortnum & Mason PLC Annual Directors Report and
Consolidated Financial Statements which can be found ot
the Companies House website {https:f/find-and-
update.company-information service . gov.uk/}.

Geopolitical uncertainty and Russia’s war in Ukraine

The gickal inflationary pressures triggered initially by
COVID-17 have been exacerbated by the geopolitical
unceriginty caused by Russia’s war in Ukraine. For the
avoidance of doubt, the Group does not have any
aperations or investments in Russicl, Nevertheless, the war
has resulted in economic uncertainty in almost all the
markets in which the Group operates and has adversely
impacied commodity costs and supply chains as well as
wage costs. Qur managaement teams in all businesss
segments continue to monitor cost inflation closaly  Whilst
there are eary signs of cast inflation decreasing in many
parts of the global economy. the emergence of conflict in
the middle East has added further risk to an already fragile
geopolitical and economic environment. Its impactks on
the Group's frading and investing aclivities will depend on
the duration of the current crises in Ukraine and the
Middlle Exist, on geopolitical repercussions and on central
bank responses fo inflation.

Sir Guy Weston 15 December 2023
Chairman

Witlington Investmenis Limiled
Registered office;

Weston Centre

10 Grosvernor Streat

Lendon

WIK 4QY

Company Number 00366054
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Directors’ report

The directors present their annual report and audited
financial statements for the 52 weeks ended 16
September 2023, in accordance with section 415 of the
Companies Act 2006. The Board considers thot the
Croup's Report and Accounts 2023, taken as a whole, is
fair. balanced and understandable and provides
infarmation necessary for shareholders o assess the
Group's performance. business model and strategy.

Given the materiality of the ABF [Associated British Foads
plcl business segment and for ease of cross-reference to
the published financial statements of ABF, the directors
have elected to provide additional informafion in the
notes which follow setting out the contribution of the ABF
business segment fo the consclidated financial statements
of the Group, For Clarty, allreferences to the ARBF business
segment are shown in ifafics in the notes to these
stataments and are cansistant with the published financial
statements of ABF.

Resvults and Dividends
The corselidated ncome stotermnent is on page 13, Profid
for the period amounted to £1.09?m {2022: £783m).
Dividends paid amounted to £128m (2022 £104m]}.
Dividends are detailed in note 8. Profit for the financial
periad attibutable to equity shareholders amounted to
£618m (2022; £445m).

Future business developments

Future business developments are cutlined in the Strategic
Reportin the sections concerned with Business Strategies
and Business Review.

Directors

The Directors who held office throughout the year were as
follows:

Sir Guy Waston {Chaimrnan)
Emma Adamo

Sir Harry Djanogly

Martin Hattrel

Anna Catrina Hobhouse
Charles Mason

Lindscy Pearson

Alannah Weston {resigned 12 December 2023)
Garth Weston

Ceorge Weston

Grabam Weston

The Company Secretary was Jennifer Dooley.

Directors’ Indemnities

The Group hasin ploce appropriate directors’ and
officers' llakility insurance cover inrespect of legal action
cqainst its executive and non-executive directars
amongst others. The directors of a subsidiary company
that acts as trustee of a pension scheme benefited from a
qualifying pension scheme indemnity provision during the
financial yeor and at the date of the ABF 2023 Annual
Report. Gther than these, Yhere were no quaitying rird-
party indemnity provisions provided by the Group orits
subsidiares during the financial year and as at the date of
the ABF 2023 Report.

Conftrolling Sharehoider Relationship Agreement
Any person who exercises or conlrols, on their own or
together with any person with wham they are acting in
concert, 30% or more of the votes able fo be cast at
general maetings of o company are known as a
‘controlling shareholder” under the Listing Rules. The Listing
Rules require companies with controlling shareholders to
enter into an agreement which is intended to ensure that
the controling shareholders comply with certain
independence provisions in the Listing Rules. The Group
and, through their control of the Group, the frustees of the
Garfield Weston Foundation are controling shareholders
of ABF. On 14 November 2014 the Group enteredinto ¢
relationship agreement with ABF and the trystees of the
Garfield Weston Foundation containing the required
undertakings. The Relationship Agreement was amended
and restated on 25 June 2020,

Confrolling Interest

Details of g controlling inferest in the shares of the Group
are given in nofe 32. Other than as noted, so far asis
known, no other person holds or is beneficially interested
in ¢ disclosable holding in the Group,

Branches

The Group, through varicus subsidiares, hos established
branches in a number of different countries in which the
Group operates.

Engagement with suppliers, employees,
customers and others in a business relationship
with the company

The way the Group engages with stakeholders is outlined
in the Strategic Report in the section concerned with
directors' duties,

Political donations

During the year, the Graup did not make any palitical
donations or incur any poflitical expenditure {within the
ardinary meaning of those words) in the UK. However,
under the wider definition of those terms in Part 14 of the
Companies Act 2006, ABF paid costs totalling
approximately £3,150 during the year for attendance of
employess af the Conservative and Labour Party
Conferences which could potentially fall within that wider
definition. The Group did not make any contributions fo
non-UK political parties during the year.
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Directors’ report

Research and development

Innavative use of existing and emerging technologies wil
continue to be crucial fo the successful development of
new products and processes for the Group.

ABF has a technical centre in the UK af the Allied
Technical Centre. R&D facilties also exist across ABF,
including at: ACH Food Companies in the USA; AB Mauriin
Australia and the Netherlands (including the Global
Technology Centra): AB Enzyrmes in Germany: and the
Roal joint venture pilot plant in Rajamdki, Finland. These
centres support the technical resources of the ABF
operating divisions in the search for new technology and
in monitoring and maintaining high standards of quality
and food safety. ABF also acquired National Milk Records
plc [see further delails on page 48) which invests in an
innovalive range of milk quality, herd health and genomic
testing services. generoting data and building robust
insights that empower farmers to make informed decisions
on cow productivity

Financial risk management

Details of the Group's use of financial instrurnents,
tagether with information on our risk objectives and
policies and our exposure 1o price, credit, liquidity, cash
flow and interest rate risks, can be found in note 28,

Disclosure of information to auditors

The Directors who heid office at the date ot approval of
this Directors' Report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
auditor is unaware, and each director has taken all the
reascnable steps that hefshe ought fo have taken as a
director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor is
aware of that information. For thase purposes, relevant
audit information means information needed by the
auditor in connection with the preparation of its report on
pages 10-12,

Auditors

In accordance with section 485(4) of the Companies Act
2006, aresolution for the re-appointment of Ermst & Young
LLP as auditors of the Group will be proposed at the
farthcoming annual general meeting.

Corporate Governance

Maintaining effective corporate governance is
fundamental to the Beard's abllity to discharge its duties
to shareholders.

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for the system
ofinternal control o facilitate the identification,
assessment and management of risk Effective controls
ensure that the Group's exposure to avoidable risk is
minimised, that proper accounting records are
mainiained. that the financial information used within the
business is reliable and that the consolidated accounts
preparation and financial reporting processes comply
with all relevant requialory reporting requirements. The
directors confirm that there is a process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the risks faced by the Group
and the operational effectiveness of the related controfs.
They also confirm that they have regularly reviewed the
system of internal controls,
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Going concern

The global inflafionary pressures iggeared initially by
COVID-19 have been exacerpated by the geopolitical
uncertainty caused by Russia's war in Ukraine. For the
avoidance of doubl, the Group does not have any
aperations or investments in Russia. Nevertheless, the war
has resulted in economic uncertainty in almost alf of the
markefs in which the Group operates, and has adversely
impacted commodity costs and supply chains as well as
wage costs. Qur management teams in all business
segments continue fo monitor cost inflation closely, Whilst
there are early signs of cost inflotion dascreasing in many
parts of the global economy, the emergence of confiict in
the middle East has added further risk to an already fragitle
geopolitical and economic environment. its impacts on
the Group's trading and investing activities will depend on
the duration of the current crises in Ukraine and the
Middle East.on geopolifical repercussions and on central
bank responses to inflation.

However, the directors believe the Group's resilience has
been evidenced by the year-on-year growth in operating
cash flows in excess of £1bn set out in these statements
and believe that the Group is well placed to trade
through the uncertain times with adequate resources to
continue to meet its commitrments when catled. As such
these financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis (see note 1).

ﬁa .
N~

Sir Guy Weston 15 December 2023

Chairman

wittington Investments Limited
Registered office:

Weston Centre

10 Grosvenor Street

London

WK AQY

Company Number 00366054



Statement of directors’ responsibilities

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the annual report and the financial statements
The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the Group and parent
company financial staterments in accordance with applicable UK law and regulations.

Company law requires the diractors to prepare Group and parent company financial statemenis for each financial
year. The financial reporting frameawaork that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements s
applicable low and UK Adopted Infernational Accounting Standards (‘UK Adopted IFRS'}). The directors have slected to
prepare the parent company financial staterments in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law
UK Generally Accepted Accounling Practice], including Financial Reporting Standard 1071 'Reduced Disclosure
Framework’ ['FRS 101').

Under company law the directors must not aopprove the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
rrue and fair view of the state of aftairs of he Group and parent company and of their profit or ioss for that perod.

In preparing each of the Group and parent company financial statements, the directors are required to:

select suitable agccounting policies n accordance with 1AS 8 Accounting Palicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Frrors and then apply them consistently:

- make judgements and estimatas that are reasonable and prudent;

- presentinformation. mcluding accounting poficies, in a manner that provides relevant, refiable, comparabte and
understandable information;

provide addifional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in UK Adopled IFRS, and inrespect of
e parent company financial sialements, FR3 101, is insufficient 1o enable users to understand the impact of
particular fransactions, other events and conditions on the Group and company financial position and finoncial
performance;

for the Group financial staternents, state whether UK Adopled IFRS have been followed, subject 1o any material
departures disclased and explained in the financial stotements;

for the parent company financial siarements, skate whether applicable UK Accounting Standards including FRS 101
have been followed. subject to any material deporiures disclosed and expldined in ihe parent company finoncict
statements; and

prepare tne financial staiements on the gning concem basis wiless il s Inappropnate to presume that the Graup and
the parent company will continue in husiness.

The directors are respensible for keeping adequaie accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
porent company’s and Group's fransactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy ar any fime the financial position of
the parent company and the Group and enable them 1o ensure that the parent company and the Group financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2004, They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the parent company and the Group and fo prevent and detect
fraud and other iregulanties.

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible far preparing a Strategic Report and Directors'
Report which comply with that law and those regulations. The directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company's website, Legislation in the UK goveming
the preparation and dissemination of financidl statements may differ from legistation in other jurisdictions.

Responsibitity statement of the directors in respect of the annual report
We confirm that 1o the best ot our knowledge:

- the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and
fair view of the assets. fiabilities, financicl position and profit or loss of the Company and the underfakings included in
the consolidation taken as a whole; and

the Strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of
the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as whole, togethar with o description of the
principal risks and unceriainties ihat they face,

On behalf of the Board

A s Wittington Investments
[ ; Lirmited
“‘v\‘v\.»% Registered office:

Weston Centre

10 Grosverior Sireet
Sir Guy Weston Londan
Chairman WIK 4QY

15 becember 2023 Company Murnber 00366054
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Independent Auditor's Report

to the Members of Wittingtan Investments Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Wittington Investments Limited ('the parent company') and its subsidiaries
{the ‘group’] for the 52 weaeks endad 16 September 2023 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, 1he
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. the Consolidated and Company Balance Sheet, Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated and Company Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes 1 to 32,
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparalion of the group financial siatements is applicable law and UK adopted international accounting standards.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial siatements
is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework™
{United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinicn:

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the group’s and of the parent company's affairs as at 14
September 2023 and of the group's profit for the year then ended:

- the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted intemational
accounting standards;

the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our auditin accordance with Internafional Standards on Auditing (UK {1ISAs {UK}) and applicable law,
Cur responsibilifies under those standards are further descriped in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK. including the FRC's Ethical Standard.
and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concem basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financiol statements is appropriate. Qur evaluation of the directors' assessment of
the group and parent company's akility to continue to adept the going concem basis of accounting inciuded:

Understanding the process taken by management to evaluate the operational and economic impacts of
macroeconomic factars on the Group and to reflect these in the group's forecasts;

Challenging the assumptions underpinning the Group's forecasts and gaoing concerm period until June 2025;

- Confirming the opening cash and cash equivalents to the financiail statements;
Testing the clerical accuracy of the mode! used to prepare the Group's going concern assessment;
Performing a reverse stress test to establish the reduction in cash flows that could fead fo a loss of liquidity; and
Assessing the appropriateness of the Group's disclosure concerning the going concern basis of preparation.

Based on the work we have performed. we have not identified any material uncertainties refating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and parent company's ability to
continue as a going concearn until June 2025.

Cur responsibiliies and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report. However, because not all future events or condifions can be predicted, this slatement is not a
guarantes as to the group's ability to continue as a going concem,
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the Members of Wittingfon Investments Limifed

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report

Qur opinion on the finoncial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in Inis report, we do not express any forrm of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is materiatly
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowladge obtalned in the course of the audit ar otharwise appears ta
be materially misstated. if we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements. we are required
to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstaterment in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there s o matenal misstaterment of the othes information, we ore required
to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2004
In our opinion, based on the waork undertaken in the course of the qudit:

the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
ssotements are prepaored is consistent with the financial statements: and

the strofegic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requrements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the ight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit. we have not ideniified material misstaterments in the sirategic report or directors' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the folliowing matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2004 requires us fo
report to you if, in our opinion:

- adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, orreturns adeguate for our audit have
nof been received from bronches not visited by us; or

the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of directars’ remuneration specified by law are not made:; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for cur audit,

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the direclors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 9. the directorns are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstaternent, whether due Yo froud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsitle for assessing the group's and the parent company’s
ability o continue as a gaing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters mlated to going concern and using the going
concem basis of accounting unless the directors either infend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease
operations. or have no redlistic aternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

QOur objeciives are Yo obicin reasonable assurance about whether the fingncial stotements os o whole are free from
maoterial misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Regsonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs [UK) will ahways detect a maferal misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually ar in the aggregate. they could ceasanably be expacted to influence the economic
clecisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the Members of Wittington Investments Limited

Explanation as 1o what extent the oudit was considered capable ot detecting irreguiarities, including
fraud

Iregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-complicnce with laws and reguiations, We design proceduresin line
with our responsibilities, outlined abave, 1o detect iregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement due fo fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from eror, ¢s fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by. for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent to
which our procedures are capable of detecting iregularities. including fraud is detailed below, However, the primary
responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the enfity and
management.

Our approach was s follows:

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Group and
determined that the rmast significant rameawaorks which are directly relevant to specific assertions in the financial
statements are those that relate to the reporting framework (FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework”, United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and the Companies Act 2006) and the relevant fox laws and
regulations in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. In addition, we concluded that there are certain
significant iaws and regulations which may have an effect on the detarmination of the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements being those laws and regulations relating to health and safety, employee matters, food
standards and food safety.

We understood how Wittington investiments Limited is complying with those frameworks by making enguiries of
managemeant and observing the oversight of those charged with govemance, the culture of hanesty and ethical
behaviour and whether a strong emphasis is placed on fraud prevention, which may reduce opportunities for fraud
to take place, and fraud deterrence. which could persuade individuals not to cammit fraud because of the
likelhood of detection and punishment.

We assessed the susceptibility of the Group's financial statements to material misstatement. including how fraud
might occur by meeting with management from various parts of the tbusiness to understand where it considered
there was susceptibility to fraud. We also considered performance targets and their influence on efforts made by
management to manage earnings. We considered the programmes and controls that the Group has established o
address risks identified, or that otherwise prevent, deter and detect fraud; and how managament monitors those
programmet and controls, Whore Hie risk wus cornsidersd 1o be nigher, we pertormed audit procedures To address
each identified fraud risk. These procedures included testing manual journals and were designed to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial siatements were free fram material fraud or error.

Based on this understanding we designed cur audit procedures to idenfify non-compliance with such laws and
regulalions. Qur procedures involved @ focus on journal entry testing and journais indicating large or unusual
transactions or meeting our defined nsk criteria based on our understanding of the business and enguiries of
managerneant,

A turther description of our respaonsibilities for the cudit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's welbsite at hitps:/ fswww. fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This desciiption forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This repaort is made salely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 14 of the
Companies Act 2004, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might stale to the company’s members those
matters we are required 1o state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibitity to anyone other than the company and the company's members as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

2

Simon O'Neifl {Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Emst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Birmingham

15 December 2023
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Consolidated income sfatement

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

2023 2077
Conhmuing opera'igns No'e £m £
Revenue 3 20,028 17.258
Operaling costs before exceptional tems 4 {18,698) [15926%9)
Exceplional flems _ I _ 4 (o (08
1,221 1.083
Shore of profit after ok from joint ventures and associotes 13 124 109
Profits less losses on disposal ol on-curent assels S 7
Operating profit 1,372 1.208
iAdjusfed opéro?ing profit S - _3 1,503 ) TETI
. Profits less losses on disposal of non-current assets 27 16 -
| Amertisation of non-operating intangibles 9 (4a1) {47) i
' Acouired irveniory foir volue adiustrments 4 3 5 '
Transaction costs 4 (5) (6 ]
UExceptionaltters 4 (109) {206)
Profits ess fosses on sole and dosure of busresses. > 1 23
Profit before interest T 1373 1S
Finance incorme 4 116 44
Finance expense ) (131) (116)
Otherfinonciolineorre .~ o - 25 470
Profit before taxation 1,384 i<-T53
;\ Adusted profit before taxation o - o G‘I? 1,42477‘
Profits less tosses on dsposal of non-current assets 27 16
| Ameortisation of non-operafing intangitlies 9 {41} 147
Acquired inventory fair value adjustments 4 (3) {5)
Transaction costs 4 (5) 16} |
‘ Excepiional tems 4 {109} [206)
_Profits less losses on safe and closure of businesses 325 1 (231 1
Taxation -- UK {excluding fax on exceptional iterns) (56) [64)
UK {on excephonal tlems) 3 3
Overseqs [excluding tax on exceplicnal iterms) (184) (243)
- Overseas (on exceptiondl items) - _ . [e8) e8]
i — _ _ Lo (285 )
Piofitforihe petied . 1099 783
Attibutable to
Equity shareholders 418 445
Non-confrofing interesis e 481 333
Profit for the period 1,099 783
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the 52 weeks ended 146 September 2023

2023 e

huote £m £m
Frofit for the period recognised in the income statement 1,0%% 783
Cther comprehensive income
Remeasurements of defined benefit schermas 14 (8) 825
Defered fox associated with defined benefil schemes _ e B . 1199)
tems that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss (2} 426
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (473) 445
Nel gain/iioss] on hedage of netinvesiment in foreign sutsidiaries 1 1}
Net gain on other investments held ot fair value through other comprehansive income - 4
Deferred tox assaciated with mavements in foreign exchange (51 -
Curent tax assodiated with movernents in loreign exchange 4 -
Movement in cash flow hedging position 28c (260} 419
Defered tax associoled with movement in cash flow hedging position 7, 28c 40 128}
Defened iax gssociated with movernent in other invesiments - m
Shore of oiher comprehersive (loss)/meome of joint ventures and associates (18) 28
Eitect of hypennftalionary gconqmje;s___ L e a0 A
rerms that are or may be subsequenily reclassified 1o profit orloss [649) 512
Other comprhensive (loss)income for heperiod @ 15
Tofal comprehensive income for the peried Az 231
Attibutable to
Equity shareholders 251 1,281
Non-cohiralling ihierests e o 177 1640
Tolal comprehensive income for the petiod 428 2321
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Consolidated balance sheet
at 16 September 2023

T 2023 2022
No'e £rn im
Non-current assets
Intangible assets g 1,880 1.879
Property, plan! and equipment 10 5,834 5727
Right-of-use assets 11 2,377 2,477
Investment property 12 274 246
Imvestments in joint ventures 13 305 303
Investments in associates 13 93 &9
Employee benefits assets i4 1,444 1.393
Investrments 28 149 142
Income tax 7 23 23
Defered tax assets 15 195 160
Other receivables 14 63 58
Total non-current assels __ T m_m ________-__ n_.“ ) ﬂ_m : - 12,639 12,497
Curmrent assels
Assels classified as held for sale 17 -
Invenfories 18 3,246
Biological ossets 1% 99
Trade and other receivables 16 1,807
Derivative assets 28 96
Investmenls 28 1.329
ncome tax 103
Cash and cash equivalents ~ _ e 20 1,596
Total current assets _ . 8,276
Total assels o __ ___ _ o B mizo,‘?i_mj o
Current liabilities
Liabilities classified as held for sale 17 - {t4)
Lease liabilities 11 (338) (3200
Loans and overdrafts 21 (1A%) (157}
Trade and other poyahles 22 (3,000} {3.165)
Derivative liabilities 28 (69) |205)
Income tax {117) (170}
Provisions _ L . - 23 (55) (87)
Total current liabilities o (3.748) (4118}
Non-current liabilities
Lecse liatilities 11 {2,852) [2.955]
Loans 21 (394) (481]
Provisions 23 (48) [26)
Deferred 1o liabilities 18 (642) [444)
Employee benefils liabilities 14 {75} {86}
Total non-cuent liabililies - o1y a2z
Total liabiliies (7.759) (8.330)
Net assets 13186 13422
Equity
Issued capital 24 - -
Share premium 382 387
Other reserves 24 101 97
Transiation reserve 24 (22) 235
Hedging reserve 24 1 84
Retained earnings . e 7,733 7.308
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders ' o 8,195 8,106
Nonfcontrg\iﬂrlg_imemrgﬂsww__“ ) 4,961 53146
Tolal equity 13,156 13.422
The financial statements on pages 13 to 77 were approved by the Board of Directors on 15 December 2023 and were
signed on its behalf by:
{1
SN
Sir Guy Weston
Chairman
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Consolidated cash flow statement

for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

2033 2027
Nolg £m £m
Cash flow from operafing aciivities
Profit before taxation 1.384 1.153
Profits less losses on disposal of non-curent assels (27) {18}
Prolits less losses on sale and clasure of businesses m 23
Transaction costs 4 5 é
Finance income ] (114} fa4y
Fromce expense & 13 é
Other financial income é (26} 140)
Share of profit after tax Irom joint ventures and associctes 13 (124) [109]
Amatlisation 84 71
Depreciation (including depreciation of right-of-use cssets) 815 816
impairment/{Reversal of impairment] of property, plant & equipment and right-of-use assels 5 113
Impairrment of Investmeant properies 14 &
Exceptional items 4 109 206
Acquired inventory fair value adjustments 3 5
Effect of hyperinflationary economies 14 14
Nel change in the fair value of curent biological assets (11) 18}
Share-based payment expense 26 18 12
Pension costs less contributions (8) 7
Increase in inventories (29) 1964)
Increase in receivables (104) (288}
{Decrease)/increase in payakles {18} 514
Purchases less sales of curent Diclogical assets (9 [4]
[Decreasel/increase in provisions o (27) 7
Cuash generated from operotions T 2014 1,479
ncome fozes paid - N . _ _ I ../ 313
Néﬁ_gsh generated from operating activities _ _ - ) 1,665 7 ,ﬁ &6
Cash flow from investing aclivities
Dividends received from joint ventures ond associates 13 10% P4
Purchase of property, plant and equiprment (1.004) [683)
Purchase of intangibles 79) 172]
Sale of property. plant and equipment 48 30
Purchase of invesiment properies {45) [83)
Sale of investmeant properties 3 34
Purchase of sutzsidianes, joint ventures and associates 25 (?4) {154}
Sole of subsichanes, joint ventures and associcites bé 2
Purchase of non-current investments {26} {535)
Redemplion of non-curent invesiments 19 24
Purchase of curent investmenis 27 (1.48%) {1,201
Redemption of/decrease in curent nvestments 27 1,640 1.079
Interest ond dividendsreceived o 54 26
Nef cash used in l'“r;eisﬁng activifies T o ___’m__)u-WF (998} )jé?_}
Cash flow from financing aclivities
Dividends paid to non-confrolling inferests {163) {180]
Dividends paid to equity sharehalders 8 {128) {104}
Interest paid {119} {114}
Lease incentives received 42 46
Repayment of lease liabilities 27 {312) {328)
Dacrease In shor-temm laans. 27 {13) {58}
Increase in long-term loans 27 - 179
Purchase of shares in subsidiory underiaking from non-controling interests 32 {448) -
Maovermeni from changes in own shares held ) B . {46 (&0
Nelcashusedinfinancing octivifies (D (e
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 27 (500) [397)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 2,100 2423
Effect of movementsinforeignexchonge (73) L
Cash and cash equi;/alenis at fhe end of the period - - 27 1527 2,100
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

— Allen Hutab uinble 1o e equity snombo‘derc

wued | Snare | Other Trngighon Hedgng  Retained  conrheitg oty
capilal preriem rserves rEEIVE  TEREng  SarmIngs Tolal interessts Uity
Nole £m £m im £m i im £m im £
Balance csat i8September202y - 382 95 (19} 24 4617 7099 4598 11497
Tolal comprehensive income
Profit for the period recognised in the income statement - - - - - 445 445 338 783
remeasurements of defined benefit schemes 14 - B 451 437 374 825
Defered tax associated with defined berefit schemes - - - - - (109) {109) (#0) {199
yerns that wil not be reciossified o r,rofn or loss T T T R 342 342 98a 628
Effect of movements in forgign exchange - - - 240 - - 240 205 445
Net loss on hedge of net investment In foreign subsidianes - - - {1 - - N - {1)
Net goin on other invesimenis held of fair value through
other comprehensive income - - 3 - - 3 ! 4
Mavement in cash fiow hedging position - - - - 728 - w8 191 419
Defered tax associated with movements in cash flow - - - - [15) - (15 113) 128)
hedging position
Defered tax associaled with movements in other - - {1} - - - (1) - 1
mvestments
Share of other comprehensive income of joint venturas - - - 15 - - 15 13 28
and ossociales
Effec of hypermﬂononory economies o - - - - - 25 25 21 44
ffems that are or may be subsequemly reclassified fo T -7 213 25 494 418 912
poftertess — -
Other comprehersive Incorms e i 254 213 367 836 /02 1.538
Toicxl | comprehensve incame o . == A 2s4 213 812 1.28) 1040 2321
Inventory cash flow hedge movements
Losses ronsfenedio cod of nvertery .~~~ R AL 5 - 0153 127y 1280
TOICJI inventory (_:gsiﬂgw_hgd_ge movements 4_4_4_72_; - - (153)_—: 1153)  {127)  (280]
Transacfions with owners )
Dividends paid fo equily shareholders 8 - - - - 1104)  (104) - {104
Net moverment in own shares held - - - - {14) (14 [15] {3)
Defered iox assaciated with sharesbosed payments - - - - - AN ) m
Dividends paid fo nonconfroling inferests - N T (go) (1)
Total transactions with owners ___:ii-i_: - {i21) izl (195) [316}
Baiance cs af 17 September 2072 - s 97 235 84 7308 8104 5316 13422
Total comprehensive income
Proiit for the period recognised in the income stafement - - - - - 418 618 481 1,099
Remeasurements of defined beneflit schemes 14 - - - - - (3 (3 (3) (8)
Cefered tox associafed wilh defined benefit schemes - - - - - 2 2 2 4
Items that will not be reclassified to oprofit orloss - - - - m o ()] {2}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - - - {255) - ~  {255) {218) {473)
Net loss on hedge of nef invesiment in foreign subsidiaries - - - 1 - - 1 - 1
Deferred tax associated with movements in foreign - - - 3) - - 3) {2} {5)
exchange
Cunent tax associoted with movements in foreign - - - 3 - - 3 3 ]
exchange
mMovement in cash flow hedging position - - - - {144) - (14¢) {114) {240)
Deferred tax associaled with moverments in cash flow - - - -~ 22 - prl 18 40
hedging posilion
Share of other comprehsrsive income of jolnt ventures - - - (10} - - (1; 8y (8
and associates
Eifect of hyperinllationary economies - - - - - 22 22 18 40
items that are or may be subsequentty reclassified fo profit
or oS3 e - - - [264) [124) 22 [348) (303) (8869}
Other comprehensive income - - - (24 (124 1 @&7)  (304) (671)
ToToi tal comprehensive income e - - - (264)  {124) 439 251 177 428
Invenl‘ory cash flow hedge movements
Logses ransfered to cosl of iovenlory - - - - 3 - % 0 68
Toicl inveriory cash flow hedge movements - - - - 38 - 38 30 48
Transactions with owners
Dividends paid to equity shareholders 8 - - - ~ - {128) (128) - [i128)
Net rmoverment in own shares held - - - - - (18) (18) (12} (28)
Acauisition of non-controling inferests - - 4 7 3 (71} (57) {387) (444)
Defered tox gsociaied wilh share-based poyments - - - - - 1 1 - 1
Dividends paid 10 non-controling interests = - - = - - ~  (163) (183)
Total ransactionswithowners ~ " " T "o a7 "3 214y @00)  (562)_ (753)
Balance as al 15 Sepiember 2023 - 382 101 (22) 1 7,733 8,195 4,961 13,156
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies
wittington Investments Limied is a private company

imited by shares incorporated and registered in England.,
United Kingdom.

The Company's consolidated financial statements for the
52 weeks ended 16 September 2023 comprise those of the
Company and ifs subsidiaries (the 'Group') and its interests
in joint ventures and associates.

The directors authofised the consolidated financial
statements for issue on 15 December 2023.

Statement of compliance

The comsolidated financial stalerments have been
prepared and approved by the directors in accordance
with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards {*UK
Adopted IFRS').

Given the materiality of the ABF (Associated British Foods
pic) business segment and for ease of cross-reference o
the published financial statements of ABF, the directors
have elected to provide addifional information in the
notes which follow setting out the contribution of the ABF
business segment 1o the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. Far clarty, all references to the ABF business
segment are shown in italics in the notes to thase
staterments and are consistent with the published financial
staternents of ABF.

The directors have elected fo prepare the parent
company financial statements in accordance with UK
Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generaliy
Arcepied Accounting Practice), inchuding Finaneict
Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework”,
These gre presented on pages 74 to 79

Basis of preparation

The Company presents its consolidated financial
siatements in siedling. rounded to the nearest milfion
(except where otherwise indicated), prepared on the
historical cost basis except that current biological assets
held by ABF {Associated British Foods plc) and certain
financial instrurments are stated at fair value, Assets
classified as held for sale gre stated at the lower of
canmying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

The preparation of financiol statements under UK-
Adopted IFRS reqguires management to make judgements.
estimates and assumptions about the reported amounts
of assets and liatbilities. income and expenses and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liakilities. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on expernence.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Judgements made by management in the application of
UK-Adopted IFRS that have a significant effect on the
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of
maoferial adjustrment next year, ore discussed in
Accounting estimates and judgements detailed in note 2.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on a regular basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised from the pericd in which the estimates are
fevised,

The accounting policias set out below have been applied
to all periods presented. except where stated otherwise.

Details of new accounting standards which came inta
force in the year are set oul al the end of this note.

The Group's consolidated financial staterments are
prapared to the Saturday nearest 10 15 September.
Accordingly, these financial staternents have been
prepared for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023
(2022 - 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022).

To aveid delay in the preporation of the consolidated
financial statements. the results of certain subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates are included up to 31 August
each year and Fortnum and Masan plc s included up to 9
July 2023, Adjustments are made as appropriate for
significani fransaciions or events occurring between 16
Sepiermber and hese other balance sheel dates.

The Group's business activities, together with factors likely
to affect its future development, performance and
pasition are set outin the Skotegic report on pages 1 fo 6.
The Principal risks and uncertainties on page 5 and note
28 on pages 51 Yo 62 provide details of the Group's palicy
on managing its financial and commeadity risks. The Group
has considerable fincncial resources, good access fo
debt markets. o diverse range of businesses andg a wide
geographic spread, It is therefore well placed fc manage
business risks successfully.

Climate change

In preparing the consolidafed financial statemenfs,
manageament has considered the impact of climate
change, paorticutarly in the context of the Non-Financial
and Sustainability Information Staterment set out on pagss
3 to 4 and our sustainability targets. These considerations
did not have a material impact on the financial reporiing
judgements and estimates, consistant with the assessrmont
that climate change is not expecied 1o have a significant
impact on the Group's going concern assessment to June
2025 nor the viability of the Group over the next three
Yeqars.

Management has considered the impact of climate
changes on a number of key estimates within the finoncial
statements, including the estimates of future cash flows
used inimpairment assessments of the carrying value ot
goodwill and other non-current assets. The assessment
with respect 1o the impact of climate change will be kept
underreview by management, as the future impacts
depend on foctors outside of the Group's control, which
are net dlil currently known,

Going concern

The glabal inflationary pressures tiggered initially by
COVID-19 have been exacerbated by the geopolitical
uncertainty caused by Russia's war in Ukraine, For the
avoidance of doubt, the Group does not have any
operations or investments in Russia. Nevertheless, the war
has resuited in ecanamic uncertainty in almaost all of the
markets in which the Group operates, and has adversely
impacted commaodity costs and supply chains as wel a3
wage costs. Our management teams in all business
segments confinue fo monitor cost inflation closely, Whilkst
there are earlysigns of cost inflation descreasing in many
parts of the global econcmy, the emergence of conflict in
the middle East has odded further risk to an already fragile
geopolifical and economic envircnment, Its impacts on
the Graup's trading and invesling activities will depend on
the duration of the curent crises in Ukraine and the
Middte East.on geopoitical repercussions and on central
bank responses to inflation.

However, the directors believe the Group's resllience has
been evidenced by the year-onwyear growth in operating
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies continued
cash flows in excess of £1bn set out in these statements,
After making enquiries, the directors have areasonable
expeactation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in oeperational existence for the foreseeable
future. For this recison they confinue to adopt the going
concer basis in preparing the consciidated linancial
statements.

Having reviewed the Board's best esfimate of fufure cash
flow to June 2028, and having applied reverse strass tesfs,
the possibility that the financial headroom could be
exhausted is considerad to be extremely remote. The
directors understand the risks, sensifivities and judgements
included in the cash flow forecast and have a high
degree of confidence in these cash flows. Therg is
substantial financial headroom between this cash flow
forecast and the cash on hand and funding availabie to
the Group over the period. This is evidenced by the net
cash position before lease liakilities for the Group of

£2 3600 at 16" September 2023 (2022: £2.83 bn).

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the resuits
of the Company and its subsidiaries from the date thaot
control commences to the date that confrol ceases.

They also include the Group's shore of the offerdax resutts,
other cornprehensive incorne and nel asseds of ifs joint
veniures and ossociotes on an equity-accounied bass
frorn e point at which joint control or signiftcant
influence respectively commences, to the date that it
ceases.,

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company.
Control exists when the Company has the power, directly
orindirectly, to direct the relevant activities of an enfity so
as to affect significantly the returns of that entity.

Changes in the Group's ownership inferestin a subsichary
that do not result in a loss of control ore accounted for
within equity.

Al the Growp's joint arangements are joint veniures,
which are enfities over whose activities the Group has joint
confrol, typically estoblished by confractual agreement
and requiring the venturers' unanimous consent for
strategic financial and operating decisions.

Associates are those entities in which the Group has
sighificant influence, being the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the entity. but
which doeas not amount to controf or joint control,

Where the Group's share of losses excaeds its intarest in a
joint venture or associate, the carrying amount is reduced
to zerc and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
censhructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
aninvestee.

Conirel, joint confrol ond significant influence are
generally assessed by reference 1o equity shareholdings
and voling rights.

Business acquisitions

On acquisition of a business, the: Group attibutes fair
values 1o the identificble assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired, reflecting conditions at the date of
acquisition, These include aligning accounting policies
with those of the Group.

The Group finalises provistonal fair values within 12 months
of the date of acquisition and, where significant, reflects
them by restatement of the comparative pericd in which
the acquisition occured. The Group megsuras non-
controfing interests af the croportionate share of the net
identifiable assets acquired.

The Group remeasures exsting equity intarests in the
acquiree to foir vaiue at the date of acquisition, with any
resulting gain or loss taken to the income staternent.

Goodwill arising on qequisition of a business is the excess
of the remeasured carrving amount of any existing equity
inferast plus the fair value of consideration payable for the:
additional stoke over the far volue of the share of net
identifiable ossets and ligkilifies acguired fnctuding
seporately ideniified intongitle ossets), net of non-
controling interests. Total consideration does not include
fransaction costs, which the Group expenses as incured.

The Group measures contingent consideration af fair
value at the date of acquisition, classified as a liability or
equity {usually as a fiability).

Other than for the finalisation of provisional fair values, the
Group accounts for changes in contingent consideration
classified as a fability in the ingome statement.

Exceptional fems

Exceptional iterns are those items that. in the judgernent
of the Directors, need fo e disclosed separately oy virfue
of their noture, size orincikence, tems hot may be
corsidered exceptional in noiure include disposals of
businesses or significont assets, business restruchirings,
sigribueunil onerous contract chargas/releases, debt
repurchase costs, certain pension past service
credite/casly, asset impairments fwrite-backs and the tax
effects of these items.

The Group distinguishes between exceptional and non-
exceplonal impairrments/write-backs on the basis of the
underlying driver of the imparment, as well as the
magnitude of the impairment. Drivers thal are deemed to
e outside of the control of the Group give nse 1o
exceptional impaiments, Additionaly, impairment
charges that are of a one-off noture and signficant
enough volue to distor the underlying results of fhe
business are considered o be exceplional,

Revenue

Ravenue represents the value of sales made fo customers
after deduction of discounts. sales taxes and a provision
for returns, Discounts include sales rebates, price
discaunts, customer incentives, certain promofional
activities and similar items, Revenue does not include sales
between Group comparies.

The Group recognises revenue when performance
abligations are safisfied. goods are delivered to customers
and confrol of goods is transferred to the buysr.

in the Food businesses of ABF, the Group genercily
recognses revenue frorm the sale of goods on dispatch ar
delivery fo cuslorners, dependant on shipping terms, and
provides for discounts and returns as a reduction fo
revenue when sales ore recorded, based on
manggement’s best esfimate of the amount reguired o
meet cloims by customers, aking into account
contraciual and legal obfigations, historical frends and
past experience.

In the Retall business of ABF, the Group generally
recognises revenue from the sale of goods when o
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies continued

customer purchases goods, and provides for returns as @
reduction to revenue when sales are recorded. based on
mancagement's best estimate of the amount required to
meet claims by customers, taking into account historical
tfrends and past experience.

Bomrowing costs

The Group accounts for borrowing costs using the
effective interest method. The Group capitalises
borowing costs directly atliibulable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying iterms of property,
plant and equiprment as part of fheir cost.

foreign currencies

Individual Group companies record transactions in foreign
currencies at the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction, and translate monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies al the exchange rate al the balance
sheet date, with any resulting differences taken fo the
income statement, unless designated in a hedging
relationship. in which case hedge accounting applies.

On consalidation, the Group fransiates the assets and
liabilities of cperations denominated in foreign cumencies
nto sterling at the exchange rate at the balance sheet
date. The Group transiates the iIncome sfatements of
those operations into sterling at overoge exchange rates.

The Group records differences ansing from the
refransiation of opening net assets of Group companies,
together with differences arising from the restatement of
the net results of Group companies from average
exchange rates to those qf the balance sheet date, in Ine
franslation reserve in equity.

Pensions and other post-employment benefils

The Group's pension and other post-employment beneafit
arrangements camprise defined benefit plans, defined
coniribution plans and other unfunded post-employment
plans.

For defined benefit plans. the income statement charge
comprises the cost of benefits earmed by members and
benefit improvements granted to members during the
yvear, as well as net interest income/{expense) calculated
by applying the liability discount rate 1o the opening net
pension asset ar lakility.

The Group records the difference between the market
value of scheme assets and the present value of scheme
liakbilities an o scheme-by-scheme basis as net pension
assets (to the extent recoverable) or liabilities.

The Group recognises remeasurements and movements in
irecoverable surpluses in other comprehensive income.

The Group charges contributions payable in respect of
defined contribution plans to operating profit as incurred.

The Group accounts for other unfunded post-employment
plans in the same way as defined benefit plans,

Income tax

Income tax on profit or loss for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. The Group recognises income
fax in the iIncome statement except to the extent that it
reiates to items taken directly to equily.

Current fax is the tax expected to be payable on faxable
Income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted for the period, tagether with any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior periods.
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The Group provides for deferred tax using the balance
sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities far
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for fox
purposes.

The Group does nat provide for the following temporary
differences: initial recognition of goodwill; inifigl
recognition of assets or liahilities affecting neither
accounting nor faxable profit other than those acquired
in o business combination; and differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will
probably not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The Group bases the amount of defered lax provided on
the expected manner of redlisation or seftflement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
clate.

The Group recognises deferred tax assets only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and liabilities if, and
onlyif, it has a legally enforceable ight o set off current fax
assets and liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different 1axable entities
which intend either to setlle current fax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realise the assefs and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
armounts of deferred tax licbilities or assets are expected to
be setfled or recovered.

As required by IAS 12, we have applied the exceplion fo
recognising and disclosing information about deferred tax
assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes.

The Group recognises income tax arising from dividend
distributions at the same time s the liability to pay the
related dividend.

Financial assets and liabilities

The Group recognises financial assets and liabilities when it
becomes a party to the contractual provision of the
relevant financial insfrument.

Trade and other receivables

The Group records trade and other receivables initially ot
fair value and subsequently at amortised cost. This
generally results in recognition at nominal value less an
expected credit loss provision, which is recognised based
on management's expeciation of losses without regard to
whether or not a specific impairment tigger has occurred.

Other non-current receivables

Other non-current receivables comprise finance lease
receivables due from a joint venture and minority
shareholdings in private companies. The Group accounis
for finance lease receivables in the same way as for frade
and other receivables.

The Group records minority shareholdings in designated
private companies initially at fair value, including directly
attributable transaction costs, and subsequentiy af fair
value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI).

On disposal of a minority shareholding, the cumulative
gain ar loss previously recogrised in other comprehensive
income is included directly in retained eamings, without
recycling it to the income stotement.



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies continued
Bank and other borrowings

The Group records bank and other borrowings initially at
fair value, which equals the proceeds received. net of
directissue cosfs, and subsequently at amortised cost. The
Croup accounts for finance charges, including premiums

payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue
costs, using the effective interest rate method.

Trade payables

The Group records trade payables initially at fair value
and subsequently at amortised cost, This generally results
in recognition at nominal value,

Other financial assets

Other financial assets are classified, af initial recognition.
as valued at amorlised cost or fair value through profit
and loss (FVYTPL). The classification of financial assets
depends on the financial asset's cash flow characteristics
and the business model for managing them. Fingncial
assets at amortised costs are subject to impairments with
gains aond losses being recognised in the profit and loss
when the assets are derecognised or impaired. Financial
assets ol fair value through profit and loss are typically
held for trading and are camed in the statemeant of
financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in profit and loss, Equity investments
where the Company does not have significant influence,
control or joint contral are measured at FYTPL.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents camprise bank and cash
balances, call deposits and shorl-ferm investments with
original malurities of three months or less.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, the Group
includes bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management as a componant of cash and cash
equivalents.

Intengible assets other than goodwill

Non-operating intangible assets are intangible assets that
arise on business combinations and typically include
technology, brands, custamer reiationships and grower
agreements. The Group acquires operating intangible
assets in the ordinary course of businass, typically including
computer software, land use rights and emissions trading
licences.

The Group records infangible assets other than goodwill at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
charges.

Arnortisation is charged to the income siatement on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets from the date they are available for use.
The estimated usefuliives are generally deemed to be no
longer than:

Technolegy and brands
Cuslomer relofionships

-uUple 15 years
—uplo 10 years

Grower agreements -up to 10 years
Operating intangibles - up fo 10 years
Goodwill

Goodwill is defined under 'Business acquisitions' on page
19. Certain commercial assets associated with the
acquisition of a business are not capable of being
recognised in the acquisition balance sheet. Insuch

circumstances, goodwill is recognised, which may include,

but is not necessarily limited to. workforce assets and the
benefits of expected future synergies.

Goodwill is subject to an annual impairment review.

Impairment

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of ils infangible
assets and property, plant and equipment at each
balance sheet dale to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the
Group estimates the indicated asset’s recoverable
amount. For goodwill and intangibles without a finite lite,
the Group does this at least annuaily.

The Group recognises an impairment charge in the
income statement whenever the carrying amount of an
asset or its CGU exceeds its recoverable amount,

The Group allocates impairment charges recognised in
respect of CGUs first to reduce the carying amount of
any goodwill relating to that CGU and then to reduce the
cammying amount of the other assets in the CGU on a pro
rata basis,

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of assets is the greater of their
falr value less costs to sell and their vatue in use. in
assessing value in use, the Group discounts estimated
future cash flows to present value using a pre-tax discount
rate reflective of current marke! assessments of the fime
value of money and the risks spacific to the asset.

For an asset that does not generate largely independent
cash inflows, the Group determines recoverable amaount
for the CGU to which the asset belangs.

Reversals of impairment

The Group does not subseguently reverse impairments of
goodwill, For other assets, the Group does reverse an
impdairment charge if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount, but
only to the extent that the new carmrying amount does net
exceed the carying amount that would have been
deterrnined, net of depreciation or amertisation, if no
impairment charge had previously been recognised.

Property, plant & equipment
The Group records property, plant and equipment af cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment charges.

The Group charges depreciatfion to the income statement
on ¢ straight-line basis over the estimated useful
economic lives of each item sufficient to reduce it toits
estimated residual value. Land is not depreciated.
Estimated useful economic lives are generally deemead (o
e no longer than:

Freehold buildings up fo 64 years
Plant and equipment, fixtures and fittings

sugar factories, yeast plants, mills and up to 20 years

bakeries
- other operations upio 12 years
Vehicles up fo 10 years

Sugar cane roots up to 10 years

leases

Aleose is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to
the lessee, in return for a payment or a series of payments,
the right to use a specific asset for an agreed period.

Where the Group is a fessee, the following occounting
palicy is applied.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies continued
Right-of-use assets

The Group records right-of-use assets at cost at the
commencement date of the lease, which is the date the
underlying asset is available for use, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairmeant losses, and adjusted for
subsequent remeasurement of lease habilities.

Costincludes the amount of lease liabilities recognised.
initial direct costs incurred, and lease paymenis made af
or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received.

The Group charges depreciation to the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated
useful life and the lease term.

Lease liabilities

The Group records lease liabilities at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease ferm. discounted using the
incremental borowing rate at the commencement date
of the lecse if the interest rate implicitin the lease is not
recdily determinable,

Lease payments include fixed payments, including in-
substance fixed payments, and variable lease payments
that depend on an index or arate, less any ledse
incentives receivable.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or ¢ rate are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condifion that triggers the payment
OCCurs.

The Group subsequently measures lease lighilities at
amorised cost using the effective interest rate methoed.
The Group records the accretfion and settlernent of
interest through accruals and reduces the carying
amount of lease liabilities for the capital element of lease
payments made.

The carrying amount of lease liabilities is also remeasured
when there is a change in fulure lease payments due to a
change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance
fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment of
whether to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lecse recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain
o purchase option. It also applies the low-value assel
recogniticn exemption to groups of underlying leases
considered uniformly low-value.

The Group expenses lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets in the income statement as
ncurred.

Lessor accounting

When subleasing assets, the Group assesses the sublease
classification with reference 1o the head lease right-of-use
asset, which considers, among other faciors, whether the
sublease represents a majority of the remaining life of the
head lease.

The ratio of rentat income to head lease rental payments
is used fo determine how much of the right-of-use asset
should be derecognised, taking into account whether the
sublease/head lease are above or below market rate.
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The Group records armounts due from lessees under
finance ledases as a receivable at an amount equal to the
netinvestment in the lease, calculated using the
incremental borrowing rate at the dale of recognition,
The Group recognises any difference belween the
derecognised right-of-use asset and the newly recognised
amounts due from lessees under finance leases in the
income statement.

The Group recognises finance income over the lease
term, reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the
net investment in the lease.

The Group recognises operaling lease income as earmed
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Inventories

The Group records inventories at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost includes raw materials. direct labour
and expenses and an appropriale proportion of
production and other overheads, calculated on a firstdin
first-out basis.

The Group records retail inventories at the lower of cost
and net realisable value using the retall method,

calculated on the basis of selling price less appropnate
trading margin. All retail inventories are finished goods.

On acquisition of a business, the Group records inventories
at fair value. Subseqguently. the Group charges the book
value of the inventories to adjusted operating profit as
they are sold or used. Any fair value uplift, if significant, is
charged below adjusted operating praofit as the
inventories are sold or used.

investment property

Investment properties are held at cost less provision for
impairment. Impairment s determined by reference o the
fair value of property estimated either by independent
valuers or by the directors. Depreciation is provided where
the diractors consider that the residual value of mgjor
components of the property is less than curreni book
value.

The following accounting policies relafe exclusively fo the
income, expenditure, assets and liabilifies of the
Associated British Foods pic ("ABF"} segment within the
consolidated Group financial statements of Wittingfon
Investments Limifed.

Share-based payments

The Group recognises the fair value of share awards at
grani date as an employvee expense with o coresponding
increase in equity, spread over the period during which
the employees become unconditionally entifled to the
shares.

The Group adjusts the amount recognised to reflect
expected and actual levels of vesting excepf where the
foilure to vestis as aresult of not meeting a market
condition.

Derivative financial insiruments and hedging

The Group primarily uses derivafives to manage economic
oxposure to financial and commodity risks. The principal
instruments used are foreign exchange and commodity
confracts, futures, swaps or options. The Group does not
use derivatives for speculative purposes.

The Group recognises derivatives ot fair value based on
market prices orrafes, of calculated using discounted
cash flow or option pricing models.



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies continued
The Group recognises changes in the fair value of
derivatives in the income statement unless the derivafive s
designated in o hedging relationship, when recognition of
the change in fair value depends on the nafure of the
item being hedged.

The purpose of hedge accounfing is fo mitigate the
impact on the Group of changes in foreign exchange or
interest rates and comimodity prices.

Al the incepfion of each hedging relationship, the Group
documents the hedging instrument, the hedgeditemn, the
risk managernent objectives and sirategy for underiaking
the hedge and assesses hedge effectiveness.

Duwing the fife of each hedging relotionship, the Group
performs testing fo demonstrate that the hedge remains
effective.

For derivatives used gs hedges of fufure cash flows, the
Group recognises the change in falr value through other
camprehensive income in either the cost of hedging
reserve {for the element of the change in fair value
refating to the currency spread) or in the hedging reserve
{far the remaining change in fair value]. Any inaffective
portion is recognised immedicately in the income
staternent.

when the future cash flow rasults in the recognition of a
non-financial asset or fiabifity, then at the time that asset
or lability is recognised, the Group includes the
associorted gains ond josses previovsly recognised in the
hedging reserve in the inifial measurernent of thert nsset or
ficilifily.

When the future cash flow does not result in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or liobiffy, the Group
includes the associaied goins and losses previously
recognised in the hedging reserve in the income
statement in the same pericd in which the hedged tem
atfects profit orioss.

Hedges of fhe Group 's nef investment in forsign
operalions principally comprise borrowings in the curency
of the investment's net assets.

For derivative or non-derivative finonciat instruments used
as hedges of the Group's netinvestment in foreign
operotions, the Group recognises the change in fair value
through other comprehensive income in the net
investment hedging reserve. Any ineffective portion is
recognised immediatety in the income stofement.

The Group discontinves hedge gocounting when a
hedging instrument expires or is sold, ferminated,
exarcised, or no longer quaiifies for hedge accounting.

At that time, the Group retains the cumuiative associated
gain orloss recognised in the hedging reserve unfil the
farecast fransaction accurs, Gains or [osses on hedging
insfruments relafing to an underlving exposure that no
langer exists are taken to the income statement.

The Group economically hedges foreign currency
exposure on recognised monetary assels and tiabilities but
does not normaily seek hedge accounting. The Group
records any derivatives held to hedge this exposure af fair
vaive fhrough profit and loss.

Resecrch and development

The Group expenses research and development
expenditure as incurred, uniess development expenditure

refates to products or processes which are fechnicailly and
commercially feasible, in which case it s capitalsed. The
Group records capifalised development expenditure of
cost fess accumulated amortisation and impairment
charges.

Current Biological Assets
The Group records current biclogioal assets af fair value
less costs o sell

The basis of valuation for growing cane s esfimated
sucrose content valued at estimated sucrose price for the
following season. less the estimated costs for harvesting
and fransport.

When harvested, growing cane is fransferred to inventory
af fair volue less costs to sefl.

Grants

The Group recognises grants only when there is
regsonable assurance thaf the Group will comply with the
condifions attoched ond that the grants will be received.
Gronfs receivable as compensation for expenses alcady
incurred are recognised in profit or foss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Hyperinfiation

The Argentinian economy was designated
hyperinfiationary from 1 July 2018. The Turkish economy
wos designated hyvperinfiationary from 1 July 2022,

The Group has applied [AS 29 Financiol Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies to the Group's Argentinian
operations from the beginning of the 2019 financicl year
and for its Turkish nperofions from The Degnining of the
2022 financial year. 1AS 29 requires that hyperinflationary
adjustments are reflected from the start of the reporting
period in which 1t is applied. For the Group's Argentinian
aperations this was 1 September 2018, and for the Group's
Turkish operafions this was | September 2021,

The adjustments required by 1AS 29 are sat out helow,

adjustment of historfcal cost non-monetary assets and
liabilities from their date of inttial recognition to the
balance sheet date to reflect the changes in
purchasing power of the curency caused by inflation,
according fo the official indices for Argentina
published by the Federacion Argentina de Consejos
Profesionates de Ciencias Econdmicas [FACPCEY and
for Turkey published by Turkish Stafistical insfifute
fTLHK )

adjustment of the componeants of the iIncome
staternent and cash flow statement for the inflation
Inclex since their generation, with @ balancing entry in
the income statement and a reconciing item in the
cash flaw statement, respectively;

- odjustment of the income sfotement to refliect the
impact of inflation on holding monetary assefs and
fabiities in local currency;

the financial statements of the Group's Argenfinian
and Turkish operations have been translated into
sterling ai the closing exchange rate at 14 September
2023 [ARS 433.88:£1; TRL 33.45:£1); and

the cumulative impact corresponding fo previous
vears has been reflected in other comprehensive
income in the vear.

In Argenting, the FACPCE index was 9111316 ¢f 31 August
2022 ond 2044.2832 ot 31 August 2023, The infiation index
tor the year is thorefore 2,244

Wiftington Investments Financial Stotemants 2023 23



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies continued
In Turkey, the TUIK index was 80.21 of 31 August 2022 ond

58.94 at 31 August 2023. The inflation index for the year is
theretore 0.735.

The Venezuelan economy has been designated
hyperinflationary for a number of vears, buf the impact on
the Growp's results remains immaterial.

New accounfing poticies

The following accounting standards and omendments
were adopied during the year and had no significant
impact on the Group:

Reference to the Conceptugl Framework
{Amendments to IFRS 3}

Property. Plant and Equipment: Proceeds belore
Intended Use (Amendments ta LAS T4)

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
[Amendments to IAS 37)

Annual Improvements to IFRS 2018-2020

The Group is assessing the impact of the following
standards, interpretations and amendments that are not
yer effective. Where aiready endorsed by the UKEB, these
changes wit be adopted on the effective dates noted.
Where not yvel endorsed by ihe UKEB, the odoplion date is
less certain:

IFRS 17 tnsurance Contracts, Amendments to IFRS 17,
Initial application of IFRS 17 and IFRS ¢ - Comparafive
Information, effective 2024 financial vear

Disc losure of Accounting policies (amendments to 1AS
1 and IFRS Fractice Statement 24, etfective 2024
financial year

Detinition of Accounting Estirmates {Amendments to
IAS 8), effective 2024 financial year

- Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from @ Single Transaction (Amendments to 1AS 12),
effective 2024 financial year

Lense Liakitity in a Sole and Leasebock (Amendments
10 IFRS 16}, effective 2025 financial year

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules
{Amencments fo 1AS 12), effective 2024 financial year

‘Classification of Liabilities as Cumrent or Non-current
and Non-current Liablities with Covenants
tamandments to 1AS 11, effective 2025 financial year

Supplier Finance Arrangements [Amendments to IAS 7
and IFRS 7). eftective 2025 financial year

- Aamendments to 1AS 21 The Effects of Changes in
Fareign Exchange Rates: Lack of Exchangesability,
effective 2026 financial year (not yef endersed by the
UKEB)

2. Accounting estimates and judgements

In cpplving the accounting policies detalled on pages 18
to 24, the directors have made estimates in a number ot
areas. The actual outcome may ditfer from those
estimates. Key sources ot estimation uncertainty at the
balonce sheet date, with the potential for material
adjustment to the carrying value of assets and liabilities
within the next financial vear, are set out below,
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Forecasts and discount rates

The camying values of a number of items on the balance
sheet are dependent on estimates of future cash flows
arising from the Group's operations and invesiments
which, in some circumstances, are discounted to arive at
a nef present value,

Assessmant for impairment involves comparing the book
value of an asset with its recoverable amount (being the
higher of value in use and fair vailue less costs to sell].
Value in use is determined with reference to projacted
future cash flows discounted at an appropriate rate. Both
the cash fows and the discount rate involve a significant
degree of estimation unceriainty.

Further defoils are included in note ¢ for infonginle ossefs,
note 10 for property, piont ond equiprnent ond note 12 for
investrnent property,

The recovery of deferred tax assets is dependent on the
generation of sufficient future taxable profits, The Group
recognises defered tax assets to the extent thatitis
considered probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available in the future. This involves a significant degree of
estimation uncertainty.

when considering sources of future taxable profit, the
Group firstly considers existing deferred tax liabililies.
However, the majority of deferred tax assets are
recognised based on future profit forecasts, including the
deferred tax assetsin ABF's most material jurisdictions of
the United Kingdom, the United States, Australia, Germany
and Spain,

Whenelying on profit forecosts, the assessment of
whether to recognise deferred tax assets is based on the
following yeor's budget ond expectations of the fulure
performance of individual businesses {or groups of
businesses in the case of national tax groups). Where
passible, this is consistent with forecasts used for
impairment assessments, Forecasts for impairmeant
assessments are discounted, but this is not parmitted far
racognition of deferred tax assets.

Deierred lax assets are reduced when itis no longer
considered probable that the related tax benefit will be
reglised,

The widespread noture of the ABF's activities across
multiple jurisdictions means that it is not practical to
provide detailed sensitivities in respect of individual
deferred tax asssefs.

Further dedails of deferred 1ax assets are included in note
15,

Post-retirement benefits

The Group's defined benefit pension schemes and similar
arrangements are assessed annually in accordance with
145 19 Employee Benefits. The accouniing valuations,
assessed using assumpfions determined with independent
actuarial advice, resulted in a significant net surpius as af
16 September 2023, principally relating to the UK defined
benefit scheme, which is separately disclosed.

The net surplus is highly sensitive to the market value of
scheme assets, to discount rates used in assessing
liabilities, to actuarial assumptions (including price
inflatfon, rates of pension and salary increases, mortality
and other demographic assumpfions] and to the level of
contributions.



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

2. Accounting estimates and judgements
confinuved

Further delails are included in note 14, inciuding
associated sengitivities,

The following other areas of accounting esfimates and
judgements relate exclusively o the income, expenditure,
assets and liabilities of the Associated British Foods pic
{“ABF") segment within the consolidated Group financial
statements of Witlington Investments Limited.

Biological assets

in valuing growing cane, estimating sucrose content
requires the Group fo assess expected cane and sucrose
yields for the foflowing season considering weather
conditions and harvesiing programmes. Estimating
sucrose price requires the Group 1o assess info which
markets the forthcoming crop will be sold and assess
domestic and export prices as well as related foreign
currency exchange rates. The carrying value of growing
cone ond associated sensitivities is disclosed in note 19,

Income tax

The Group is exposed o ¢ range of uncerfain fax
positions. It provides for open tax matters, where it
believes it is probable that payments will be required,
including those for routine fax audits, which are by nature
complex and may toke o number of years o resolve.
Uncertainty is driven by the resolution of the issue and
estimation processin arriving at the amount. The Group
has recognised potential curent corporate tax liabilities
for a number of uncertan tax positions. none of which are
individually materal. The provision for these uncertain tax
positions was 2023 - £55m (2022 - £102m). The reduction in
tho provision is due 1o the conclusion of UK tax audits
covering several businesses and years. The maojority of the
romaining provisions relate to transfer pricing risks across
nurmber of jurisdictions in which the Group has operations.
Transter pricing is o complex area with resolution of
matters taking many years. Given the undertying nature of
these risks. the Hming of when they will resolve is uncerfain.

Tha Group applies IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income Tax
Treatments to meosure uncertain tax positions. The Group
cafculates each provision using management's best
estimate of the liability based on inferpretation of fax law
in each jurisdiction ard ongoing monitoring of tox cascs
and rulings. The Group believes it has adequate provision
for these matters. Final conclusion of each matter may
resulf in an cutcome different fo any amounts provided,
but the Group has concluded that this is unfikcly to have o
material impact.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

3. Our businesses

ABF has five operating divisions, as described below, plus Central ABF. These are ARF's operating divisions, based an the
management and infernal reporting structure, which combine businesses with comman characterisfics, primarily in
respect of the type of products offered by eoch business. but also the production processes involved and the manner of
the distribution ond salo of goods.

Infer-division pricing is defermined on an arm's length bosis. Division result Is adjusted operafing profit, as shown on the
face of the consolidated income statement. Division results include items directly atiributable to a division as well as
thosc that can be alfocated on a reasonable basis. ABF is comprised of the following operating divisions:

Grocery

The manutacture of grocery products, including hot beverages, sugar and sweefeners, vegetable ofls, bolsamic
vinegars, breact and baked goods, cereals, ethnic foods, and meat products, which are sold to retail, wholesale ond
foodservice businesses,

Sugar
The growing ond processing of sugor beet and sugar cone for stie to industrial users and 16 Siver Spoon, which is
included in the Grocery operating division.

Agriculture
The manufaciure of animal feeds and the pravision of ofher products and services for the agriculture sector,

Ingredienis
The manufacture of bakers’ yeast, bakery ingredients, enzymes, lipids, yeast exfrocss and cereot speciafities.

Retail
Buying and merchandising vatue clothing and accessories through the Primark and Penneys retail chains.

in addition to ABF. the Group presents the revenue and adjusted operating profit of *Luxury retail’ ond *Other'. The latter
includes the Group's 'Real tsiafe’, "Holels' ond "Private Markets 2 Other Investments” businesses, none of which are
individuailly material for separate disclosure, For more information see pages 1-2.

Adjusted operating profit

Adjusted operaling profit is a key alternative performance measure used in the ABF performance fromework as oulined
inthe Remuneration Reporf in the annual report and accounts of ABF on pages 100 ta 115, sdiusted apsialing wralitis
stated bafore amartisation of non-vuesiuling intangibles, fransaction costs, amertisation of fair value adjustments made
to acquired inventory, profifs less losses on disposal of non-current assets and exceptional iters.

Items defined above which arise in the Group's joint ventures and associates are diso treated as adiusting items for the
purposes of adjusted operating profit.

A reconciliction of this measure is provided on the face of the consolidated income statement.

Revanug ﬁjnﬁ@‘-ﬁ@@@;
2023 2027 2023 2002
£m im im Im

Grocery 4,198 3735 448 399
Ingredients 2,157 1,827 214 159
Agnculture 1,840 1722 41 47
Sugar 2547 2016 149 162
Retail 9.008 7.697 735 756
Cencl ABE e - - (94) (58]
ABF Total - 19750 16597 1513 1,435
Luary refoil 244 224 9 7
Orer 2 ¥ a1
Group Total T 20028 17258 1.503 1,456
ey = v

2023 7022

Em im
Geographical information
United Kingdom 7,537 6,628
Europe. Middle East & Africa 7.553 6,292
The Americas 240 2029
Asla Pacific e 2517 2,309
GrowpTolal ' T 20028 17756
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for fne 52 weeks ended 14 Seplemer 2023

4, Operating costs

2023 27
Nole £m £m

Operating costs
Costs of sales {including amoriisation of intangibles) 15,587 13,219 15,725 13,349
Distribution costs 1,603 1465 1423 1.481
Adminisiraglion expenses 1,220 1045 1,350 1,132
Exceptional ftems - o ) o109 206 109 206

- ) i T T 18519 15935 18807 14,175
Operating costs are staled after charging/(crediting):
Emplovee benefils expense 5 3,158 2812 3222 2876
Arnortisalion of non-operating intangibles 2 38 44 38 44
Amortisation of operating intangibles 9 44 24 48 27
Acquired inventory fair vaiue adiustrments 3 5 3 5
Depreciation of cwned property. plant & eqguipment 10 531 521 538 5330
Degreciation of ight-of-use assets and nan-cash lease
ccljustments 11 273 281 277 286
Impairment of property. plant & equipment and right-of-use
assets - - 5 (13}
impairmeant of investment property 12 - - 14 é
Transaction costs 5 4 5 &
Effect of hypernflationany economies 14 16 14 16
Cther operating income {335) {25) {34) [31)
Reseorch ong developrnent expendiure 42 37 42 a7
Fair value gains on financial assets and liabilities heid for frading {19} {23) (19} 123)
Fair value osses on financial assels and liabilities held for 22 17 23 17
frading
Foreign exchange gains on operaling achivities {48) {38} [48) {37
Foreign exchange lusses on operating activiies 62 37 62 37

Amortisation of non-operating intangibles of £41m (2022 - £47m) shown as an adjusting item in the income stalement,
includes £3m (2022 - £3m) incurred by joint ventures, in addition ta the amounts shown above.

Audilor's remuneration A ConsclialedGroup

2023 iyl 2023 072
£m £rn £m im

Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates in respect of the

audit

Group audil of these financial statements - - 0.2 0.2

Audit of Company s subsidiaries pursuont to legislation 10.2 92 04 928

Total audil remuneralion T 10.2 P2 10.4 10.0

Fees payable ta the Company’s aquditor and its associates in respect of non-

audit related services

Audii-related assuronce servcas 0.4 34 04 0.4

All other services - - - 0.4 05 06 05

Tolal non-audit reltte reruneration ) T e e 10 09
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

4. Operaling costs continued

Exceptional items

2023

The income statement this year included a non-cash exceptional impaoirment charge of £109m. In the ABF Grocery
division, the Don business has been adversely affected by infiofionary pressures, a surplus supply of fresh pork in the
market, iobour constraints and equipment refiabifity cowsing producion shortfalls and additional fransportation costs
following the unfareseen liquidafion of ifs distribution partner. As a resuft, the Group has recognised impairment write-
downs of £39m against property, plant and cquipment, £1m against right-of-use assefs and £1m againsf infangible
assefs.

in the ABF Sugar division, north China recognised a £15m impairment write down against property, plant and
equipment. This business wos clossified os held for sale in the previous year, bul the poltential buver withdrew their offer in
the second balf of the year, Due to the severe flooding in Mozamblque, the related damage to the sugar crop fields
and the ingbility to plant for the foresecable future, flove Mozambigue recognised o £25m impairment wrife-down
against property, plant and equiopment, £7m ogainst cusrent biological assets, provided £2m for personnel costs and
wrote down inventory by £hm.

in the ABF Retall division, The Group recognisec £13m of exceptional impairment charges reiating 1o the German stere
nartfofio. This primarnily refated ta stores impaired in the previous year after additional dght-of-use assets were recognised
due to rent indexation adjustments. The Group also recognised ¢ £4m charge including a £3m exceplional impairment
for the write-down of property. plant and equipment for the right-sizing of four further ABF German sfores and £1m fo
wrife down a freehoid store.

2022

The income statemont included on exceptional impairment charge of £206m comprising non-cash writedowns af £72m
against property, plant and equipment and o wiite-down of £134m of right-of-use assets relating to the capitalisation of
stare teases for Primark. Also £49m of the £63m exceptional charge included in the Group's total tax charge for this
finoncial vear was the de-recognition of the ABF deferred fax assels relating to Germany.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

5. Employees and directors

ABF Consoliocieg Group
2023 077 2023 20272
£m £ £m £
Average number of employees
United Kingdom 42,071 41.526 43,407 43.086
Europe & Africa 73411 73,155 73,41 73,155
The Americas 6,769 46,102 6,769 6,102
Asia Pacific 11,236 17,490 ) 11,294 11.552
T 133487 132073 134,881 133,895
T T e Vﬁ;ﬁé} T - ] Cansohaatecd GI’OUD
2023 022 2023 2022
Nole £m im £m i
Employee benefils expense
wages and salaries 2 657 2.350 2714 2,406
Social security confnbuhons 355 311 360 314
Contributions to defined confribution schemeas 14 95 87 97 89
Charge for defined benefit schemes 14 33 45 33 46
Equity-settied share-based payment schemes 2% 18 e 18 17
T 3,158 2812 3,222 2876
o T T N 2023 7072
£'000 £000
Directors' remuneration
Aggregate directors” emolurments 6,374 6,095

The aggregate emoluments of the highest paid director were £4,100,000 (2022: £2,286,000). He is o member of a Group

pension scheme and his annual accrued pension at the period end was £754,991 (2022; £719,918).

- Number of directorn
2023

2022

Refirement benefits are accruing to the folowing number of directors under:
Defined benefit schemes

4 4

. interest and other financial and expense

ABF Consgidaiea G'OL:E“ o
2023 3032 2023 700z
~late £m Em £m £m
Finance income
Cash and cash equivalents 48 1@ 58 24
Fair value gains on investments - 57 18
Dividendsreceivable - L
T T T 114 44
Fnance expense S S
Bank loans and overdrafts (23) {20} (23) [20}
All other borowings k)] {8 (1) {8)
Fair value losses on investments - : (2) {4)
Lease lobilties ?1) (81} (72) (82)
Other payables B {3) f2) (3) [
- - (128) i) TET R
Other financial (expense}/income i T
Interest income on employee benefit schemea assets 14 185 84 185 84
Interest charge on employes benefit scheme lobilities 14 {123) {74} (123} [74)
Interest charge on imrecoverable surplus 14 2 {1 {2) {1
Net financicl income in respect of employes benefit schemes 60 9 40 9
Nel foreign exchange (losses)/gains on financing activities (20} 4 34 3
Total other financial income ooTTrTmTm e T 4 13 26 0
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 146 September 2023

7. Income tax expense

ABF " Corsadated Group
2023 2022 2023 2077
£m £ £m £m
Current tax expense
UK - corporation tax at 21.8% (2022 - 19%) 26 44 40 55
Querseds - corparation fax 249 244 24y 244
UK - {overl/under providad in prior perods {14} {12} (15) {13)
Overseas —under/(over) provided in prior periods 8 o] 18 1
- ' 279 277 292 287
Delerred lax expense
UK deferred tax 54 8 51 22
Overseds defered tax 28 72 28 72
UK — over provided in prior periods (28) {3t (23} {3}
Qversens — over provided in prior periods o 63y {8 (63} 8
o o n__ W) 83
Tofalincome tax expense inincome statement L..272 3 285 ETS
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit betfore fouation 1.340 1.076 1,384 1,153
Less share of profit after tax from joint ventures and asseciates o {124) {109) (124) 1109}
Profit before taxafion excluding share of profit after tax from joint ventures and
associates o o 1,216 Q67 1,240 1,044
Nominal tax charge at UK corporation tax rate of 21 8% (2022 - 19%) 2565 184 274 198
Effect of higher and lower tax rales on overseds earnings (18 4 (16) 4
Effect of changes in tax rates on the income stalement 5 2 5 3
Expenses not deductible lor tax purposes 66 63 -1 50
Disposal of assets covered by tax exemptions or unrecognised capital losses (2} & (2) 4
Deferred tax not recognised 39 120 40 19
Adjustiments inrespect of prior periods 85 (23} (83) (23)
Gther tax adjustments . - 1 3
- i B 272 356 285 370
Income fax recognised directly in equity
Defered tax associaled with defined berefit schemes (4) 198 (4) 199
Defered tax associated with share-based payments (1) ! n 1
Defered 1ax associated with moverments in cash flow hedging posilion {40) 28 (40) 28
Deferred tax associated wilh movement in foreign exchange 5 - 5 -
Current tax associated with movemeant in foreign exchange (6) - {6} -
Defered iax associated wilh moverments in other investments -t — o
T {46) 228 (46) 229

The UK corporation tax rate of 19% increased to 25% from 1 April 2023, The legislation to effect these changes was
enacted before the balance sheet date and UK deferred tax has been calculated accordingly.

In April 2019 the European Commission published its decision on the Group Financing Exemption in the UK's controlled
foreign company legislation. The Commission found that the UK law did not comply with EU State Aid rules in cerlain
circumstances. The Group has arrangements that may be impacted by this decision as might other UK-based
multinational groups that had financing arangements in line with he UK's legislation in force at the time. The UK
Govemnment. the Group and a number of other UK companies appeaaled against this decision to the General Court of
the European Union {GCEU'). On 8 June 2022, the GCEU found in favour of the Commiission's criginal decision. As a
result of this, in August 2022, the UK Government, the Group and various other UK companies appecaled GCEU's decision
to the Court of Justice of the European Union. We have calculated our maximum potential liakility to be £26m (2022 -
£26m), however we do not consider that any provision is required in respect of this amount based on our curent
assessment of the issue. Folowing receipt of charging notices from Hi Revenue & Customs ['HMRC'), we made
payments to HMRC in 2021. Our assessment remains that no provision is required in respect of this amount. We wil
continue 1o consider the impact of the Commmission's decision on the Group and the potential requirement to record a
provision.

In the second haif of last year a deferred tax asset arose mainly inrelation to the charge taken for the impairment of
property, plant and equipment and store leases in Primark Germany. A significant proportion of this asset was deemed
not to be recoverable and was written off as an exceptional tax charge. Since then, further wark has been undertaken
to assess the amount of the deferred tax asset that is expected to be recoverable. This work determined that the
defered fax asset at last vear end was understated in error.
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7. Income tax expense confinuved
The directors believe that this undersiatement of the deferred tax asset was not material 1o the prior period financial
statements. Accordingly. an exceplional tax credit of £58m has been recognised in this year,

We recognise the importance of complying fully with all applicable taxiaws as well as paying and collecting the right
amount of tax in every country in which the Group operates. Our tax sirategy, approved by the Board, is based on
seven lax principles that are embedded in the financial and non financial processes and cantrols of the Group. This tax
strategy is available in the Policies section of the Group's website.

Defered taxation balances are analysed in note 15.

8. Dividends

2023
pence per 2023 2022
share £m im
First interim 78.50 71.25 48 62
Second interim o 69.50 49.00 &0 42
o 148.00 12025 128 104
9. Intangible assets
- e T Consoidaiect T
Fon operatng Operahry
Custzmer Sro e
ool Leoneology Brarcs  celabonshios agreemants Qrer Olrer ‘o
Irn 0 £ L i i im Bl
Cost
Al 18 September 2021 1,236 214 429 271 109 5 606 2,870
Acquisitions — extemalty purchased - - - - - 141 141
Acquired through business combinations 85 49 33 ] - - - 173
Other disposals - - - - - {49 (49}
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale - - - - - 11é) (16}
tftect of hypernflationary economies ? - - - - - g
Effect of movements in foreign exrhanae a4 22 26 13 1 - 33 179
At 17 Septermber 2157 2 WP 285 488" 7m0 T W0 s s 3.307
Acguistions - exiemally purchased - - 4 - - 144 150
Acguired through business combinations 3% 2 ? 21 - 3 74
Other disposals - - - {15} - (5} (69 189)
Transfer from assets classified as held for sale - - - - - - 15 15
Effect of hyperinflationary econamies 2 - - - - - 2
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {79 {15) 1135) _ {14) - (25} {151)
At 16 September 2023 1,376 272 486 285 94 - 785 3,298
Amordisation and impairment
AL 18 September 2021 12 195 372 200 109 5 286 1,279
Amortisation for the year - 7 22 15 - - 27 71
Other disposals - - - - - (2} 12)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale - - - - - {41 {4}
Fffect of movemenisin foreign exchange 10 ¢ 21 1 1 - 22 84
A1 17 September 2022 T 5 226 10 5 3% 1428
Amortisation for the year - 9 15 14 - 48 84
Chher disposals - - - (15} - 18] - {20
Transfer from assets classified as held for sale - - - - - 4 4
Impairment - - - - - - 1 1
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 12 (13) (1) (8) {16} - 21} 81
Al16Seplember2023 110 217 a9 217 74 - 361 1418
Nelbook value S
Al 17 Seplember 2022 %2 64 73 84 - -
Al 16 Seplember 2023 B 1,266 55 87 48 - - 424 1,880

i. Al Goodwill and Non-operating Intangible assets are ABF assets. Of ~he total Operating Inrangikle assets of £424m [2022: £386m), £214m {2022:
£375m) are ABF assers.

in addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are no intangible assets (2022 — £12m) classified as assefs held for sale
(see note 17). Amortisaticn of non-operating intangibles of £41m (2022 - £47m| shown as an adjusting item in the income
statement includes £3m (2022 - £3m) incurrad by joint ventures, in addition to the amounts shown above.
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9. Intangible assets continued
Impairment
As at 146 September 2023, the consolidated balance sheet included goodwill of £1.266m (2022 - £1.292m). Goodwill is

allacated to the Group's cash-generating units [CGUs). or groups of CGUs. that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the businass combination that gave rise to the goodwill, as follows:

Prmary reparng

segment palbur ARBF O ol 2023 072
CiU o Greup of CGUs Lasiness segmenl rate Em Zm
Acetum Grocery 13.5% 71 23
ACH Grocery 13.4% 193 208
AR Maurd Ingrecients 128% 247 289
Twinings Ovalfing Grocery 13.6% n? 119
lovo Sugar 23.7% 8% 105
AB World Foods Grocery 12.5% 78 79
Gther (not individually significant o Various Yanous 429 399

1,286 7292

A CGU, or group of CGUs, fo which goodwil has been allocated must be assessed for impairment annually, or more
trequently if events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, There has been no
change in CGUs or group of CGUs from the prior year,

The carrying value of goodwillis assessed by reference toils value in use reflecting the projected cash flows of each of
the CGUs or group of CGUs. These prejections are based on the mosi recent budgst and refiects managemeni's
expectations of sales growth. aperating costs and margin. based on post experience and exfernal sources of
information. Long-term growth rafes for periods not covered by the annual budget reflect the products, indusiries and
countries in which the relevant CGU, or group of CGUs, operate,

Management éxpacis 1o achigve growth over the next three to five years in excess of the long-term growth rates for the
applicable country or region. In these cihcumstances, budgeted cash flows are extended, generally to between three
and five years. using specific growth assumpiions and taking into account the specific business risks.

The key assumptions in the most recent annual budget on which the cash fiow projections are based relate to discount
rates. growth rmtes ond evpectod changes in volumes, selling prices and direct costs.

The cash flow projections have been discounted using a pre-tax weighted average cost of capital for each business.
adjusted for country, industry and market risk, Inflation assumptions used to calculate discount rates are aligned with
those used in the cash flow projections. The rafes used were between 10.2% and 23.7% (2022 - between 2.8% and
23.4%).

The long-term growth rates beyond the initial budgeted cash flows, applied in the value in use caloulations for goodwilt

allocated to each of the CGUs or groups of CGUs that are significant to the tolal camying amount of goodwill. were in @
range between 0% and 6.0%. consistent with the inflation faciors included in the discount rales applied {2022- between
0% and 6.7%).

Changes in volumes. seliing prices and direct costs are based on past results and expectations of future changes in the
market.

Sensitivity o changes in key assumptions

Impairment testing is dependent on management’s estimates and judgemeants, particularly as they relate to the
forecasting of future cash flows, the discount rates selected and expected fong-term growth rates. Each of the Group's
CGUs had headraom under the annual impairment review.,

ntight of the supply side inflotionary pressures combined with the cost of living pressures faced by our UK Grocery
pbusiness, management performed a detailed impairment review of Jordans Dorset Ryvita, and concluded that no
impaiment was reguired. Xey diivers of the forgeast improvement in performance include annualisation of price
increases, complelion of a number of margin improvement inifiatives, implementation of planned strategic initiatives
and the completion of ongoing new product development, Headroom was £59m on a CGU comying value of £137m
{2022 — headrcom of £26m on a CGU carrying value at £147m). The discount rate used was 12.2% and would have to
increase to more than 15.7% before value in use fell below the CGU canying value. The long-term growih rate applied
into perpetuity was 2.8%, based on forecast industry growth of 2.5% for breakfast cereals and 3.3% for biscuits.
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10. Froperly, plant and equipmeni

— Conplidoted Growp -
lord ard Fxlures and Asiets under BLGDT Cang
building: machiney lithings cansteur lior waols Total
Lm £m Fiial £n im &
Cost
Al 18 Septemicer 2021 2828 4,018 4,080 441 92 il.459
Acquisitions —externally purchased 40 78 204 421 ] 754
Acquired through busines combinations 1 4 1 - - 4
Other disposals {14] {3) [26) - {4) 41}
Trarsfers from asseds under corsitucton 33 164 %4 {293) - -
Transfer to assets classified os held for sale (32) (53) [2) - - {87)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 78 223 19 37 & 483
Al 17 September 2022 T hesaT T amm a4rs g dos | asia
Acguisitions — externally purchased 21 84 434 454 14 1.011
Acquired through busingss combinations - 4 - - - 4
Businesses dispossed of {52) [y 14 - - {87}
Cther disposols [46) {57} 5} - f} (113)
Transfers from assets under consiruction 35 121 8% {315) - -
Transfer from assets classified as held for sale 37 75 2 - - il4
Effect of movements in hyperinfiation - 78 % - - 97
Effect of moverments in foreign exchange {991 {257) (B4} {34) {19 1493)
Al 16 September 2023 2,850 4,540 4,925 Al 101 13,127
Depreciation and impairment
Al 18 September 2021 792 2834 2,374 - 51 4.053
Depreciation for the year 485 176 294 - 10 530
lmpairment (&} - 72 - - &b
Impairment on sake and closure of business 11 19 - - - 30
Other disposals 1 (19} - {4} (24}
Transfor 1o aszets ussified us held for sare 17 1&0] 2 - 7%
E_ffe_cf_qf movem)e“ms#injoﬂgﬁ exchange 35 160 73 - 3 271
Al 17 Seplember 2022 862 ais 2796 — w0 e84
Depreciation for the year 52 184 293 - 9 538
INEGirmerd 27 56 3 - 2 a3
Businesses dispossed of (1) 8} (3) - - (12
Chiher disposcls 134) {47} ?) - m (%1}
Trarster from assels classified as held for sale 20 75 2 - - 97
Effect of movements in hyperinfiation - 64 17 - - 81
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 137] {158} {50} - 0} {255}
At 14 September 2023 88% 3,295 3,049 = 50 7,293
Net book value
At 17 Septemizer 2022 2.092 1,302 1.682 406 45 5727
At 14 September 2023 1,961 1,245 1,876 m a1 5,834
T T T - L 7
£m im
Capital expenditure commitments - confracted but not provided for 493 344

In addition 1o the amounts disclosed above, na property, plant and equipment (2022 - £18m of which £18m is freehold
land and bulldings) is ciassified as assels held for sale (see ncte 17).
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10. Property, plant and equipment continued

Lona and Pant and Fixlures On?ﬂr Assely ander Sgar came
Suldngs mechirery atlings constrizhon OO fota!
£ £ £ Lo £m £m

Cost
AH 18 Septermber 2021 2,707 4,008 4,019 440 92 11.266
Acquisihons — extemally purchased 32 76 203 421 1 743
Acquired through business combinahons i 4 ! - [
Other disposals 14) {3) {17} - {4] (38)
Transfers from assets under consfruchion 33 164 96 {293) - -
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (32) 153) fz} . - (87)
Effect of movements in foreign oxchange 8 223 19 37 4] 483
Al 17 September 2022 2,825 4,419 4419 605 105 12.373
Acquisitions — externatly purchased 20 86 431 452 16 1.005
Acquired thraugh business combinations - 4 - - - 4
Cther disposals {(34) {57) {3) - f1) 95}
Transfers from assets under consfruchion 35 191 87 {313) - -
Transter from assets clossified as held for sale 37 75 2 - - 114
tffect of movements in hypernfiation - 78 19 - - F
Fifect of movements in foreign exchange (%9 (257} {84} {34] {19) {493}
Al 16 Seplember 2023 2,784 4,539 4,871 710 101 13,005
Deprecialion and impairment
Al 18 Seplember 2021 759 2.827 2.343 - 51 5980
Depreciafion for the veor 47 174 290 - 1o 521
fmpainent - 72 - - 72
impairment an safe and closure of busingss 1! 19 - - 30
Other disposcils {1} - {17} {4) {22}
Transfer fto] ffrom assefs classified as held for sale {17) {60} {2) - - {79
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 35 st 74 - 3 272
Af 17 Seplember 2022 - 834 3120 TR0 - &0 6774
Depreciation for the year 52 183 287 - 9 531
impairment 22 56 3 - 2 83
Other disposals {22) (46} {3) - {1} {72}
Transfer from assets clossified os held for sale 20 75 2 - - 97
tifect of movements in hyperinfiation - &4 17 - - 81
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {37] {158} {50) - {10} {255)
At 16 Seplember 2023 o 869 32 3016 - 0 739
Néf book valuve T T
Al 17 September 2022 1Le9}] 1,299 1,459 605 45 5,599
Al 16 Seplember 2023 1,915 1,245 1,855 710 a1 5766

Impairment

The methodology used to assess property, plant and equipment for impairment is the same as that described for

Impadirment assessments of goodwill. See nole 9 for further details. In addition where the fair value less costs of disposal is

higher than value in use, this methodology has been used 1o determine the recoverable amount. This method uses
inputs that are unobservable, using the best information available in the circumstances for valuing the CGU, and

therefore falls info the Level 3 category of fair value measurement.

In Grocery, the Australian Don business has been adversely aftected by inflatfionary pressures, a surplus supply of fresh
pork in the market, labour constraints and equiprent reliability causing production shartfalls and additional
transporiation costs following the unforeseen liquidation of its distribution partner. Management therefore performed a
detailed impairment review and concluded that animpairment of A$72m {£39m) should be recognised, A$é2m [£34m)
against plant and equipment and A$10m (£5m) against buildings, The impairment model assumed long-ferm growth

rates beyond the forecast pericd of 2.0% (2022 - 2.0%) and a discount rate of 12.6% (2022 - 11.9%]).

The sugar business in norih China recognised a £15m write down against property, plant and equipment. This busingss
was classified as held for sale in the previous year, but the potential buyer withdrew their offer in the second half of the

year.

Due to severe flooding in Mozambique, the related damage to the sugar crop fields and the inability to plant for the
foreseeable future, llovo Mozambique recognised a £25m write-down against property. plant and equipment. Primark
recognised a £3m write down against fixtures and fitings for the right-sizing of four German stores and £1m 1o write down

a freehold store.
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11. Leases

Mast of the Group's right-of-use assets are associated with ARF's leased property portfoiio in its Retail segment,

Right-of-use assets

_77 Consglidated Groun

tordang Picant gnad F*,c'uesramd' Total
o tehings N ey frbtengge m
im £ £

Cost
Al 18 Seplember 2021 3,294 63 2 3.359
Additions 161 10 : 171
Leose incentives (44) - - {44}
Acquired thraugh business combinations 8 - - 8
Otfher disposals m 1 1 {3}
Other rmovements 12 2 - 14
Effeci of movementsin foreigh exchange 108 2 - 10
Al 17 September 2022 T To3Es 61 ass
Additions 193 17 B 210
Ledse incentives 153) - - 153)
Acquired through business combinations 1 - - 1
Other disposails 2) 4) - ]
Other movements 80 5 - 85
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {72) [é) - (78]
Al 16 September 2023 3,683 88 3772
Depreciation and impairment
A8 Septamber 2021 £52 2 i 485
Depracialion for the yeor 268 18 - Bé
mparment 124 - - 134
Other disposols i 1) { (3}
Effect of movermnenis in foreign exchange . B 33 ¥ - 34
Ai17Septemberzon2 - Toes T T - aze
Depreciation for the year 261 14 - 277
Impgirment 13 1 - 14
Other disposals m 4 - 5)
Effect of movemgrlfii_n foreign exchonge (23} 4) - {27)
At1é September2023 133 5% A
Net book value - B -
At 17 September 2022 o e 2430 2 1 2477
Al 16 September 2023 2,347 29 1 2377
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11. Leases continued
Right-of-use assels confinued

Lone ondd

biiiciings
Lm

Cost
Al 18 Septembier 262) 3261 63 2 3.326
Addifions 161 10 171
Lease incenfives {46) - - {45)
Acquired through business combinahons 8 - - 8
Other disposols {1 1} {1 {3)
Qlhor movements 12 2 - 14
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 107 2 - 109
Al 17 September 2022 ' T Tasoz T T T T T T T 3579
Addifions 183 17 - 200
Lease incenfives (53 -~ - {53
Acquired through business combinalions i - - !
Other disposols {2) {4} - s}
Cther movarments 80 5 - &s
Effectof movementsin foreign exchange 7A@ (78]
Al 16 September 7023 T T T3 e T T Tz
Depreciation and impairment
Al 18 Seplember 2027 644 3z i o7z
Depreciation for the yeor 263 18 pichl
Impairment i34 - - 124
Cither disposais 1 (1) {1 (3
thfect of movernenis in foreign exchange 33 I - 34
Al17 September 2022 T Trorz B Y R
Nepreciafion for the peo 257 16 - 273
Impairment 13 ! - 4
Other disposals {1} {4) - {5
Effect of mavements i foreign exchange {23) {4} - {27)
At 16 September 2023 1.31% 59 - 1378
Net book valve T T
Al 17 Septemiber 2022 2,429 26 i 2,456
Al 15 Septernber 2023 2,320 29 i 2.350
Impairment

The methadeology used to assess right-of-use assets for impairment is the same as that described for impairment

assessments of goodwill. See note ¢ for further details,

In the year there was a £14m (2022 - £134m} impoirment of right-of-use assets related to Pimark and the Don business

(included within exceptional items).
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11. Leases confinued

Lease liability

__Corsoldafea Group

oo gngd Pieanl caned Fixtures aanned Tatal
Luldings maochinery fithegs Im
im im in
Cost
AT 18 Septemizer 2021 3,289 34 - 3.323
Additions 161 ? - 170
Interast experse relcding to lease fiabilities 81 1 - 82
Repayment of leose liabilities {390) [18) - {408}
Acauisilion of businesses 3 - 8
Cther movements 14 2 14
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 97 1 - 8
At 17 September 2022 3,240 29 - 3,289
Additions 121 18 - 209
Interest expense relating to lease liabilities 0 2 - 92
Repayment of lecse liabilities (378) 18} - [3%6)
Other movements 80 5 - 85
Other disposals 15) - - (5}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 160) (3) - (63)
At 14 Seplember 2023 3,178 33 - 3
- T Consolidated GroupWﬂ”M
2023 e
£m £
Cumrent 359 334
Non-curent - 2852 2955
e ~ 321 3.289
Lease liabilities comprise £3.190m [2022 - £3,275m) capital payable and £21m (2022 - £14m] interest payable. The
interest payable is alf current and disclosed within trode and other payalsles. Repaytments comprise £312m (2022 -
£325m) capital and £84m (2022 - £83m) inferest.
- - ABE e
tond ard Praetand
icings Mo ey Torc
£m im £m
Cost
Al 18 Seplernber 202 3,262 34 3296
Additions 161 2 170
Interast expernse relating o lease fabilfics 80 ! 8i
Repayment of lease lohilties {385} {18 - {403)
Acquisifton of busneses g - - g
Other movements 14 2z le
Effect of movements in foreign exchonge 97 ! 28
At 17 September 2022 3237 29 3265
Additions 18¢ 8 - 198
Interest expense relating fo lease liabilfies 89 2 - @1
Repayment of lease fabilities {373} (13 - {391}
Other movements 80 5 - B85
Other disposals {5) - - {5
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {60} {3) - {63)
Af 16 Sepfember 2023 3.148 33 - 3,181
e e et et e e — —
2023 20333
£m £m
Cumrent 356 330
MNon-curent R 2,825 2,236
T 3,181 3,266
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11. Leases continued

Ofher information relating to leases
The Group had the following expense relating to shorl-term leases and low-value leases:

AR T Tonshgoien Grovp___
1623 %079 2023 072
£m im Em £M
Land and buildings 2 - 2 .
Plant and machinery 1 2 i 2
iduesorditings = r =
3 3 3 3

The Group expensed £1m (2022 - £1m) of variable ledse payments that do not form part of the lease habilify, Cash
outflows of £2m (2022 - £4m) that do net form part of the lease liability are expected to be made in the next 12 months.

Rental receipts of £3m {2022 - £4m) were recognised relating to operating leases. The total of future minimum rental
receipts expecied fo be receivedis £43m {2022 - £34m}. £10m {2022 - £11m) is due 10 De received in respect of sul-
leasing right-of-use assets.

12. Investment property

Fonsaldoled

Grous
LM
At 18 Septembar 2021 ) o o - o ) o 214
Addiﬂohsr o T ) 7 S T T ’ T "3
Disposals (25)
Impairment losses ] [}
All7Seplember20oz T T 4
Additions ' T T T T T 25
Disposals (3)
Imparrment losses ] ] (14)
AlléSeplember2023 A

Impairment losses were recordad in both 2022 ond 2023 to reflect where the fair value of investment properties was
below cost as determined by an independent valuer. The impairments reflect prevailing market conditiors,

13. Investments in joint ventures and associates

[ninf ventwes Jont ventures Assarates

L £ £

At 18 September 2021 278 278 57
Acquisitions 4 - & -
Profit for the penod 30 19 0 12
Dividends received 881 {5 (88) 18)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange o ) 7 no 17 11
Al 17 Septermber 2022 - T Teol T s T mms . Tw
Acquisitions 9 - 9 -
Profit for the period 106 18 106 18
Dividends received {102) {5) {102 7}
Effeci of movemenisinforeign exchonge (1) ) (13 )
At14 September 2023 B 303 91 305 93

Detaoils of joint veniures and associaies aie listed in note 32,
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13. Investments in joint ventures and associates continued

Included in the consolidated financiai statements are the following items that reprasent the Group's share of the assets,
fiabilities and profit of joint ventures and associates:

L LABE L Coragldated Group . _
Jomf venlyres Associcnes gointveriwes AsSocighes _
2023 2072 2023 7632 2022 pi75) 2023 3007
£m £ £m Im £m £ £m £
Non-gument assets 222 202 47 46 222 202 47 48
Cunment assets 541 &4} 500 427 555 5643 505 432
Current icbiifies 414) 475} {454) {386} (428) {473) [456) [38%)
Non-current liahiliies (67} a7} (3 13} {67) {87} {4) {3)
Goodwil 25 20 i ! 25 20 1 1
Non-confrolling interest ) 4) o - - @ - - -
Netassets 303 301 91 &5 305 303 ?3 iz
Revenue 2,539 2,165 1,605 1.313 2,540 2.165 1,614 1,343
Profit for the period 106 20 18 19 104 70 18 19

14. Empleoyee entifiements

The Group operates g number of defined benahit and defined contribution retirement benefit schemes in the UK and
overseas.

The defined benefit schemes expose the Group te a variety of actuarial risks including demographic assumptions such
as mortality and financial assumptions such as discount rate, inflation risk and market {investment) risk. The Group is not
exposed to any unusual, entity-specific or scheme-speacific fsks. All schemes comply with locai legistative requirements.

UK defined benefit scheme

The Group's principal UX detined benefit scheme is the Associated British Foods Pension Scheme {the ‘Scheme’), which is
o funded final salary scheme that is closed 1o new rmernbers. Defined contioution arangements are in place for other
emplayees. The UK defined benefit scheme represents 0% (7022 - 20%) of the Grouw's delined benent scheme assels
and 85% (2022 - B6%) of detned benefit scheme liabilities, The Scheme is governed by o frustee boord which is
independent of the Croup and which agrees a schedule of contributions with the Company each time a format funding
valuation is performed

The most recent iennial funding valuafion of the Scheme was camed out as at & April 2023, using the current unit
method. ond revealed a surplus of £1.013m. The market value of the Scheme assets was £3,648m, representing 138% of
members' accrued benefits atter alowing for expected future saiary increases.

The Scheme's assets are managed wsing a risk-confrolled investment strategy. which includes aliabifty-driven
investment policy that seeks to match, where appropriate, the profile of the liabilities. This includes the use of derivative
instrurnents 1o hedge inflation. interast and foreign exchange risks. The Scheme utilises both market and solvency tiggers
o develop fhe level of hedges in place. To date. the Scheme is fully hedged for 75% of inflation sensifivity ond 76% of
interest rate risk. 1t is intended to hedge 80% of total exposure.

The Scheme is forbidden by the trust deed from holding direct investmeants in the equity of ABF, alinough it is possitie
that the Scheme may hold indirect interests through investmants in same aquity funds.

Overseas defined benefit schemes

The Group alse operates defined beneflit retirement schemes in o number of overseas businasses, which are primarily
funded final salary schemes, as well as a small number of unfunded post-retirement medical henefit schemes, which are
accounted forin the same way as defined benefit retirement schemes.

Defined conitibution schemes
The Group operates a number of defined contribution schemes for which the charge was £49m in the UK and £48m
overseas, totaling £97m (2022 - UK £44m, overseas £45m, fotalling £8%m).

Actuarial assumptions
The principal actuaricl assumptions for the Group's defined benefit schemes at the year end were:

2023 2023 T =7

UK Qverseas UK Oversens

% % % %

Discount rate 55 1-15.8 4.4 0.9-13.5
Inflation 2.7.34 0-17.4 2.6-3.4 0550
Rate of increase in salaries 3.7-4.3 0-150.0 37-43 0-40.0
Rote of increase tor pensions in paymeni 1.9-3.1 0-4%.0 1.9-3.2 0-40.0
Rote of Increose for pensions in deferment (whers provided) 2.5-2.8 0-3.9 2528 023

Discount rates are determined by reference to market yields at the balance sheet date on high-quality corporate bonds
consistent with the estimated term of the obligations. This has been done in conjunction with independent actuaries in
eqcn jurisdiction.
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14. Employee entitliements continued
The UK inflation assumplion includes assumptions on beth the Retail Price Index and Consumer Price Index measures of
infiation on the basis that the gap between the two measures is expected to remain stable in the long term.

The mortality assumptions used to vatue the UK defined benefit schemes in 2023 are derived from the 53 mortality tables
with improvements in fine with the 2022 projection model prepared by the Continuous pMortality Investigation of the UK
actuanal prefession {2022 - 53 mortality tables with improvements in line with the 2020 projection model), with a O-year
rafing movement for males and females (2022 - O-year rating movernent for males and females), both with along-term
trend of 1.75% (2022 - 1.5%)}. These moriality assumptions take account of experience to date, and assumptions for
further improvements in life expectancy of scheme members. Examples of the resulting life expectancies in the UK
defined benefit schemes are as follows:

- R . 2022
Ife expecioncy from age 45 [Tyaedrs) Male Female pACIE Femao's
Member aged 65 in 2023 (2022) 21.8 242 22 24.3
Member aged 65 in 2043 (2042) 23.7 242 237 26.1

An allowance has been made for cash commutation in line with emerging scheme experience. Other demographic
assurmnptions for the UK defined benefit schermes are set having regard to the latest trends in scheme experience and
other refevant data.

The assumphions are reviewead and updated as necessary as part of the periodic funding valuation of the schemes.

For the averseas schemes, regionally appropriate assumptions for mortality, financial and demographic factors have
been used.

A sensitivity analysis on the principal assumptions used to measure UK defined benefit scheme liakilities at 14 September
2023 is:

Charge in assumslion - Ir\[JbCI or scheme abilhes
Discount rate decreasefincrease by 0.1% Increase/decrecse by 1.2%
Inflation increase/decrease by 0.1% increase by 0.6%/decrease by 0.9%
Rate of real increase it salanes Increase/decrease by 01% increase/decrease by 0.9%
Rate of mortalily members assumed fo be one increase/decrecse by 2.9%
year younger/older

A sensitivity to the rate of increase in pensions in payment and pensions in deferment is represented by the inflation
sensitivity, as all pensions increases and deferred revaluations are linked to inflation.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on reasonably possible changes in the respective assumptions
cccurnng at the end of the pericd and may not be representative of the actual change, It is based on a change in the
specific assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivities, the same method
used to calculate scheme liabilities recognised in the balance sheet has been appled. The method and assumptions
used in preparing the sensitivity andlysis have not changed since the prior year.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

far the 52 weeks ended 14 Sepiember 2023

14. Employee entitlements continved
Balonce sheet

L Cf)ﬂsoﬁ-:vq' o Greun R _

T e LT T T T T T
UK Overseas Tota! uk Overseas Total
£m £m £m im im Lin

Equities 1.020 172 1,192 1.135 188 1,323

Government bonds 455 89 544 208 92 400

Conporate ond other honds 419 55 4724 767 47 814

Propeny 314 6 350 %8 37 435

Cash and ofher assels o _ Vs 57 1202 1124 23 LIe

Scheme gssels ' i T3553 409 3962 3734 417 4151

schemeldopiites  (2182) _ (373)  (2555) _ [2397) _ i405) (2807

Agaregate net surplus 1,371 3 1,407 1,337 12 1,342

Irecoverable surplus” e - (38) 38) I . D .

Welpergonosetffiobity  © T " N3N T AN - o M 52

Analysed as

Schemes in surplus 1,397 49 1,444 1,365 27 1,393

Schemes in deficit - {26) (49} {75) (29} [(57)  (86)

S - B I e T ST qan 1337 TR 1,307

Unfunded fablity included n the present value of scheme

licabitities above 126} {32) 158} (29) {52) 81)

© The surpluses in the slans are only recoverable 1o the exren: that the Group can baneir fromr either refunds formally agreed ar fram Tuture
conmburion reductions.

UK Scheme

Scheme assets include £64m (2022 - £50m) of derivative instruments, £409m (2022 - £441m) of corporate debt

instrurnernts and £1.71Y9rm {2022 - £861m) of govemrment debt,

Corporate and ofher honds assets of £61%m {2022 ~ £767m) include £235m (2022 - £248m) of assets whaose valuation is
not derived from quoted market prices. The valuation for all other equily assets, govemment bonds, and corporate and
ather bonds is derived frorn quoted market prices. The carmying value of UK praperty assets is based an a 30 June market
valuation, adjusted for purchases, disposals and price indexation between the valuation and the balance sheet date.,
Cash and other assets includes £888m (2022 - £820m) of assets whose valuation is not derived from quoted market
prices.

For iinancial reporting in the Group's financial statements, liabilities are assessed by actuaries using the projected unit
method!.

The accounting value is different fram the result obtained wsing the funding basis, mainly due o different assumpiions
uvsed fo project scheme fiabilities,

The defined benefit scheme liabitties comprise 18% {2022 - 24%) in respect of active participants, 21% (2022 - 20%) tor
deferred participants and 61% {2022 ~ 56%) for pensioners.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit scheme liakilities at the end of the year s 12 vears for both UK
and overseas schemes (2022 - 15 years for both UK and overseas schames).

The Group recognises the accounting surpius as it has the ability 1o use the surplus to meet ernployer contributions fo the
UK Scheme. covering both the defined benefit and defined contribution sections, This has baen agreed with the
independent Trustee Board for the new financiail year. See the Cash flow section below for further details,

income statement
The charge to the income statement for empiayee benefit schemes comprises:

T Consolidated Gows,

2023 2072
£m m
Charged 1o operafing profit:
Defined benefii schemes
Current service cost {31) {46)
Past service cost i2) -
Defined contribution schemes - e o o G B9
laopsalingcost T T T gy
@f)aed in olher financial [expense)/w‘ncomé: o o T
Net inferest incame on the net pension asset 42 10
inlgrest charge onrecoverable surplos. S S _m
Netimpact on profit before fox o N O T
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

tor the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

14, Employee entitlements continued
Cash flow

Group cash flow in respect of employee benefits schemes camprises contributions paid to funded schemes of £34m
{2022 - £36m) and benefits paid in respect of unfunded schemes of £5m (2022 - £2m). Confributions fo funded defined
benefit schemes are subject to periodic review. Contributions to defined confribution schemes amounted fo £97rm {2022

- £89m).

Total coniributions fo funded schemes and benefit payments by the Group in respect of unfunded schemes in 2024 are
currently expected to be approximately £3min the UK and £10m overseas, fotaling £13m (2022 -~ UK £29m. overseas

£10m, totaling £39m).

As part of the fiennial funding valuation of the UK Scheme as at 5 April 2023, which was finalised with the independent
trustee board in September 2023, the Company has agreed an abatement of all UK employer confributions to the UK
Scherne, covering both the defined benelit and defined contibution sections from the start of the new financial year.
The employer contributions will instead be met from the surplus in the UK Scheme. This is subject to o solvency check,
assessed annually by the Scheme Actuary. This is expected to result in approximately £70m cash flow benefit for the

Group in the new financial year.

QOther comprehensive income

Remeasurements of the net persion asset recognised in other comprehensive income are as follows:

Caonsolactied Groun

2023 a2
£m im
Retum on scheme assets exciuding amounts included in net inferest in the incame statement {238) {582)
Actuanal gains arsing from changes in financial assumptions 265 1,444
Actuarial gains arsing from changes in demographic assumptions 18 il
Experience losses on scheme liabilities {57} 138)
Change in unrecognised surplus o é (10}
Remeasurements of ihe net pension [iability) /asset T )~ 85
Reconciliafion of change in assets and liabilities
T AT T e 02 2023 7027
assels asyets Tiabilities hiabiites net nel
£m i £m £m £m im
At beginning of year 4,151 4,728 {2.802} 14.219) 1,349 509
Current service cost - (31} {46} (3N (46}
Employee contributions 7 g {7y (8} - -
Employer confribulions 34 36 - - 34 3
Benefit payments (187) {154) 166 156 5 2
Post service cost - (2) - (2) -
Interest inCome/[expeanse) 185 84 (123) [74) 62 10
Loss on scheme assets less inferest income (238) (582 - - (238) [582)
Actuonal gains ansing from changes in inancial assumpiions - - 245 1,444 265 1,444
Actuaral gains ansing from changes in dermographic
assumptions - - i8 il 18 Il
Experience losses on scheme liabilities - - (57} 138! {57} {38
Effect of movementsin foreign exchange {18} 31 18 128} - 3
Alend of yecr ’ 3,942 4150 (2555) (2802} 1,407 1349
Reconciliation of change in irrecoverable surplus
e o e e - N
2023 7522
£m L
Al beginning of year (42} {24}
Change recognised in other comprehensive income ] (o
Inlerest charge on irecoverable surplus (2) i)
Effect of movemnenis in foreign exchange Lo 2 B
Al end of year ! i (36} (42)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statemenis

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

15. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

T valus of

Fropety. Firancial and gtrer oy
plantand  Infaniible Emploves  assets and lEmporany forward
EOUETRIT Ladies oearfits Framnhes chfizmices 'o35es Todo
im .Em Lir £rm im i £m £

At 18 September 2021 140 20 {101) 125 18 181) (34) 155
Amount credited 1o the income slatement 34 [5) 27 ] 13 8 78
Arnount crediled 1o equity - - - 155 28 P - 185
Acouired through business combinations - 22 - - - 2 - 24
Effect of changes in fox rates on the income 2 - - - pi
staternant
Effect of chonges in tax rates on equity - - - 44 - - - 44
Effect of hypernflafionary econcmies faken
1o operating profit 3 - - - - _ 3
Transfer to assetsfickilifies held for sale 5 - - - - - 5
Effect of moverments in fargign exchange 4 10 (4} - {4} - 8
At 17 September 2022 190 17 78] 325 44 (68) (28] 504
Amount credited to the income statement 76 {3] (30} i0 8} (8) {57) (12)
Amount credited o equity - - - (5 {40} 5 - {40)
Acquired 1hrough business combinations - 7 - 1 - n {1 ]
Effect of changes in tox rates on the Income 3 - 2 - - - 5
statermnent
Effect of hypernfiationary ecanormies taken 4 - - - - - - 4
to operating profit
Transfer from assets/liabilities held for sale 5 - - - - - - (5)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 119 {3) 3 - - 2 2 [15)
Al 15 September 2023 I 118 (105) 333 - (70 (78} 447

Provisions and other temporary differences include provisions of £{103)m (2022 - £(93}m), biological assets of £33m (2022
- £32m). tax credlﬁs of £{9)m (2022 - £{16Jm) and other temporory differences of £9m f?ﬂ?? Wm}

Emrpoyee
[eases bienehis Tot
im £m im
Al 18 Seplember 2021 {ioi) 25 145
Arnount credited to the income staterment 27 1 78
Amount credited to equity - - 154 28 2 - 184
Acguired through business combynations - 22 - - - 2 - 24
Effect of changes in fax roles on the income
staferment 2 - - - - - 2
Effect of changes i fox rates on equity - - - 44 - - 44
Effect of hypennflationary economies taken
to operoting profit 3 - - - - - 3
Transfer to qssetsfiiabiities held for sale 5 - - - - - 5
Effect of movemenisin foreignexchange 6 10 {4} - T 4
A1 17 Sepiemiber 2022 187 1178 34 4D (75) (28] 489
Amount credited to the income siaterment 73 3) {30} 12 - (11} {53) (12)
Amount credited to equity - - - (5) a0 5 - 40
Acquired through business combinations - 7 - 1 - {n (1 ]
Effect of changes in tax ratas on the mcome
stalernent 3 - - 2 - - - 5
Effect of hyperinfiationary economies foken
to operating profif 4 -~ - - - - - 4
Transter from gssetsfliabiities held for sale {5) - - - - - - 5
Effect of movements in foreign exchange N L/ I - . | - - 3 2 (14}
Al 16 Seplember 2023 243 118 (105) 334 - 79 (78 433
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

15. Deferred tax assets and liabilities confinued
Certain defared tox assets and liabilities have been offset in the table abave, The fallowing s the analysis of the
deferred tax balances (affer offset) for financial reporting purposes:

. ABE Lo~ _Consoldated Group

2023 2022 2023 2522

£m £m £m £m

Defered tax assels 193 158 195 160
Defenedtaxfictiies (626)  _ (e47) _(e42) 1684
(433) {489} (447) (504)

In addition to the omounts disclosed above. there are no defered tax assets {2022 — £5m) classified as assets held for
sale (see note 17).

Deferred lax assets have not been recognised inrespect of tax [osses of £360m {2022 - £348m). Of these tax losses.
2186m {2022 - £188m) will expire of various dotes between 2023 and 2028 (2022 - 2023 and 2027). Defered fax ossets
hove also not been recognised in respect of other termporary differences of £368m (2022 — £520m}. This includes £140m
{2022 - £378m)} relating §o property, plant and equipment and leases in Gaermany which were derecogrised following
the impairment in 2022 {see notes 10 and 1] for further details). These deferred tax assets have nat been recognised on
ine pasis ihat fheir future economic benefit is uncerain,

n addition, the Group’s averseas subsidiaries have net unremitted eamings of £2.527m (2022 - £2.029m)]. resulting in
temporary differences of £1,426m (2022 - £1.495m). No deferred tax has been provided in respect of these differences
since the fiming of the reversals can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

16. Trade and other receivables

AR T Eonsoldated Graug
2023 2077 2023 ]
£m £ £m £m

Non-current - other receivables
Laarns and receivables 3 29 N 2%
Investments designated FYOCI - 32 29 32 29
- - T 63 58 6 528
Cumrent - frade and other receivables
Trade receivables 1.31¢9 1.an 1,330 1,321
Ciber receivatles 223 218 234 232
Accruedincome - - o 26 35 22 3B
T ’ T - 1568 1564 1,593 1591
Prepayments and other non-financial receivables o 210 e 214 198
T T T I 1.778 1,758 1,807 1789

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are no frade and other receivables (2022 - £3m) classified as assets
held for sale (see note 17).

The directors cansider that the carmying amount of receivables approximates fair value.
For deftails of credit risk exposure on trade and other receivables, see note 28.

Trade and other receivables include £32m (2022 ~ £29m) in respect of finance lease receivables, with £28m in non-
current loans and receivables and £4m in current other receivables (2022 - £25m in non-current loans and receivables
and £4m in current other receivables). Minimum lease payments receivable are £4m within one year, £11m between
one and five years and £17m in more than five years {2022 - L4m within one yeor, £16m between one and five years
and £9m in more than five years).

The finance lease receivables relate 1o properfy, plant and equipment leased lo a joint venture of the Group [see note
30).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 146 September 2023

17. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

The Group has no assels and habilities classified as held for sale at year end. In the prior year, the Group's north China
sugar business was classified as held for sale. The proposed buyer withdrew their offer in the second half of this year and
the Group has since recognised o £15m non-cash exceptional impairment charge to write down the property, plant
and equipment in that business.,

18. Inventories

ABF _— Corsolidated Groun
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m Im £m £m
Raw matericls and consumables 599 607 605 607
Work in progress 78 70 78 70
Finshed goods and goods held forrescte 250 2582 2,563 2.61%
3,207 3,259 3.246 3296
Wwrile down of Inventories (123) {113) (124) [115]

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are no inventories (2022 - £7m) classified as assets held for sale (see
note 17).

19, Biological assets

__Consaiaated Goup

Grow g

care Olher Testanl

im £m £m

At 18 Sepiember 2021 79 ) 85
Transfered o inventory 1113) [13) [124]
Purchases - 5 5
Other disposals - n {1
Changes in fair value 124 10 134
Effect of movements in loreign exchange T 1 8
Al 7 Seplember 2022 TSy 8 105
Transfered fo inventory 121} {14) {135)
Purchases 3 6 9
Impairment [7) - {7
Changes in fair value 135 11 144
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 119) - {19
At 16 Seplember 2023 T 88 11 99

Impairment

The methodology used to assess curent biological assets forimpairment is the same as that described for impairment
assassments of goodwill. See note 9 for further details.

In the year there was a £7m (2022 - £nil) impairment of current biclogical assets in llove Mozambique due to the severe
flooding and damage to the sugar crop fields {included within exceptional items}.

Growing cane

The fair value of growing cane is determined using inputs that are unobservable, using the best information qvgilable in
the circumstances for valuing the growing cane, and therefore falls into the Level 3 category of fair value measurement.
The following assumplions were used in the determination of the estimated sucrose fonnage at 14 September 2023:

South Africa Molawi Zambia Eswatlini Tanzania Mozambigue

Expecied area to harvest (hectares) 5729 18,819 15,700 10,580 9,578 -

Estimoted yield (tonnes cane/hectare) 67.9 100.1 114.0 92.0 80.2 -

Average maturity of growing cane 46.4% 67.4% 45.7% 67.7% 44.2% -
The following assumptions were used in the determination of the estimated sucrose fonnage at 17 September 2022:

o Soulh Atica rACH G For g Eswvcfin fonzania oo biaae

Expected area to harvest (hectares) 4028 19,207 16.163 5419 2612 5,802

Estimated yield (lonnes cane/heciare) &7.9 1037 159 99.5 726 71.0

Average maturity of growing cane 47 6% 67.4% 65.7% 67 7% A6 2% 72.4%

A 1% change in the unobservable inputs could increase or decrease the fair value of growing cane as foilows:

2023 Em T T

+1% A% +1%, BES

Em £m Em im

Estimated sucrose content 1.5 (1.8) 1.2 112
Estimated sucrose price 1.9 (L.9) 1.4 {1.4)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
farthe 52 weeks ended 16 Septernber 2023

20. Cash and cash equivalents

- _AEE T T ConwikgedGrowp
7023 2022 2023 2027
Teoler £m Im £m £m
Cash
Cash at bank and in hand 48] &7 532 779
Coshequivalents 776 1447 1064 1247
Coshandcash equivalents , 3 487 2R WS 222

Reconciliafion to the cash flow slatement
Bank overdrafis 21 {69} {126} s 126)

Cashand cash equivalentsin the cash flow statement -~ 1388 1995 1527~ 2100
Cosh and cost equivalents on the face of e bdlance sheef I437 274 1596 2226
1,457 2121 1,596 2,226

Carsh at bank and in hand generally earns interest at rafes based on the daily bank deposit rate.
Cash equivalents generally comprise deposits placed on money markets for periods of up to three months which eam

interest at a shor-term depasit rate; and funds invested with fund managers that nave a matudity of less than or equal to
three months and are at fixed rates.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value.

21. Loans and overdrafts

ABF Comnsalicaated Groupe

2023 TweziT 2023 02z
™o £m Im £m Em
Current loans and overdraits
Secured loans - i 1 I
Unecuredlocnsondoverarofts 0 18 a6 0 8 156
148 187 149 157
Non current luans
Secured loans - , - 1
Ursecured loars ) ) o 394 480 394 480
_ i B A R - -
- ] = 562 637 563 638
2023 7022 2023 2072
Hote £m £in £m £in
Secured loans
- GBP floating rate - - 1 i
- Other flocding raie - i - 1
Unsecured bank loans and overdrofts
- Bank overdrafts 20 69 126 &9 124
- (GBP fixed rate 3%2 390 392 390
- USD floating rate 8 3 g 8
- USD fixed rate -1} 87 81 87
- EUR floating rate ! 2 1 2
- Ofher floating rote 9 13 ? 13
- Other fixed rate e 2 0 2 o
- 28 562 637 5637 638

Secured loans comprisé amounts borrowed from commercial banks and are secured by floating charges over the assets
of subsidianes. Bank overdrafts generally bear interest at floating rates.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

22. Trade and other payables

ABF . ComowuedGowp

2023 w2z 2023 2022

£ £m £m £

Trade payables 1,177 1,362 1,1n 1,377
Accrvals L L e A dZs 1286 1298
2,448 2,637 2,477 2,673

Defered income and other nonfinoncial payables -~~~ S5 477 523 492
2953 3114 3,000 3,145

i cadition fo the amounis disclosed above, there are no rade oand other poyabtes {2022 - £14m) classified as hobiities
neld for sale {see note 17).

For payables with a remaining life of tess than one year, carrying amount is deemed to reflect fair value.

In a small number of busingsses, the Group ulilises supplier financing arangements to enable participating suppliers. ot
each suppliers sole discretion, to sell any ar all amaounts due fram the Group to g third-party bank eariier than the
invaice dua date, at better financing rates than the supplier alone could achiave. Payment terms for suppliers are
identical, irespective of whether they choose ta participate, The Group receives na benefit from these arangements.
Contractual terms and invoice due dates are unchanged and the Group considers amounts awed ta the third-party
bank as akin to amounts owed to the supplier. Such amounts are therefore included within frade pavyables and
associated cash flows are included within operating cash flows. as they continue to be part of the Group's normat
operating cycle.

Al year end. the value of invoices sold by suppliers under supply chain finoncing arangermerts was £75m (2022 - £45m).

23. Provisions

| Consolgored Group, | _

Doferrad

Reshaghuing commsrehon Mrier Toigt

£m £ im im

Al 17 September 2022 55 20 38 13
Created 21 2 47 o0
Utifsed (39) {16} () {64)
Rolzdsed 18 f13) {31}
Effect of movermentsin foreign excharnge B 1) - (4] (5]
At 14 September 2023 o ] 7T T T s T e 103
Current 8 3 34 55
Nomeurent e B 48 48
18 [} 79 103

Financial lliabilities within provisions comprised deferred consideration in both years [see note 28},

Restructuring

Restructuring pravisions include business restructure costs, including redundancy, associated with the Group's
announced rearganisation plans. These restructuring provisions are largely expected to be utilised in the next financial
year.

Deferred considerafion
Deferred consideration comprises estimates of amounts due fo the previous owners of businesses acquired by the Group
which are often iinked to periormance or other conditions.

Other

Other provisions mainly comprise litigation cltaims and worranty claims arising from the sale and closure of businasses. The
extent and timing of the utilisation of these provisions is more uncertain given the nature of the claims and the period of
the warranties.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 14 Sestember 2023

24, Share capital and reserves

Share capital
At 17 September 2022 and 16 Septembber 2023, the Group's issued and fully paid share capital comprised 862,022
ordinary shares of 50p. each Carrying one vote per share. Total nominal value was £431,011.

Other reserves
Cther reserves are non-distibulable and materially arose from the cancellation of share premium account by ABFin
1993,

Translation reserve

The: franslation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operatfions, as well as from the translation of liabilities that hedge the Group's net investment in foreign
subsidiaries.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises all changes in the value of derivalives to the exient that they are effective cash flow
hedges. net of amounts recycled from the hedging reserve on occurrence of the hedged fransaction or when the
hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur.

25. Acquisitions and disposals

Acquisitions

2023

In the first half, the ABF Agriculture division acquired Kife Consulting, Advance Sourcing and Progres. Kite Consulting is o
specialist dairy consultant and Advance Sowcing provides specialist products to create value by improving herd
performance and supports dairy farmers 1o improve herd efficiency and buitd resiience across the agri-food supply
chain. Progres in Finland uses g patented additive fo support good health, reduce inflammation and stimulate recovery,
which improves gut integrity and the performance of animals.

in April, the Ingredients ABF division ccquired Vifal Solutions, a German company specialising in natural science-bascd
ingredients for application in dietary supplements and functional foods.

The ABF Agriculture division acquired IFCN AG, a dairy research and cornsulting company in June and in August
acquired Nafiongi Milk Recorrts pic (MaR) for £40m. NMR is e leaang agn-tech supplier of management information
and testing services fo the UK dairy supply chain, developing technology used fo inform farming efficiency and animaf
welfare, and quantify food provenance.

The acquisitions had the following eftect on the Group's assets and liabilities:

ccqusion e
Saryg Oihet Todul
vales £ £m £
Net assets
Intangitle assets 3 23 12 35
Property, plant and equipment and rght-of-use cssets 5 4 1 5
invesiment in joint ventures 3 g - ?
Cash ond overdrafts H i H
working capital () - {1 m
Loans 12] 2] - {2
Taxafion R 1 U . I v B, )
Nefidenfifiable assels and labites o0 077 30 1 41
Goochwil 18 21 39
Total consideration 48 32 80
e T Rzcoanised
values o
amauisiticn
- ] _ _Em
Satisfied by: o -r o mm
Cash consideration 78
Defered consideration 2
Net cash:
Cash consideration 78
Cash and cash equivalents acquired )
7
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

25. Acquisitions and disposals confinued
Pre-acquisiion camying amounts were the same as recognised values on acquisition apart from £32m of non-operating
intangibles in respect of brands, lechnology and custormer relationships, o £7m related deferred tax liability, a £6m uplift
to the investment in joint ventures and goodwill of £39m. Cash flow on gcquisifion of subsidiaries, joint ventures and

associates of £94m comprised £78m cash comsideration less £1m cash and overdrafts acquired, £16m of deferred
consideration relating to previous acauisitions and a £1m confribufion fo an existing ABF joint venture in China.

2022

tn January. the Group acquired 100% of Fytexia, a B2B spacialty ingredients business in France and ftaly producing ond
formulating polyphenols-based active ingredients for the dietary supplements industry. In July. the Group acquired
Greencoat, a UK-based animal supplement and care business. During the year, the Group olso acquired o small
grocery company in New Zealand, a smalt agriculfure business in Finfand and a small ingredients business in Austrafia.

Pre-acquisition carrying amounts were the same as recognised valucs on acquisition apart from £88m of non-operafing
intangitles in respect of brands, technology and customer refationships, an £8m uplift fo inventory. & £16m reluted
deferred tax liability and goodwill of £85m. Cash flow on acquisition of subsidliories, joint ventures and associates of
£154m comprised £153m cash consideration tess £10m cash and overdrafts acquired, £7m of deferred considerafion
relating fo previous acquisitions and a £4m contribution to an existing joint venture in China.

Disposals

2023

The Group agreed fo sell property, plant and equipment fo its Chinese joint venture partner. Frofit on sale was £3m. In
March Gledhow, the Group's 30% equity-accounted associate in llovo South Africa, formally went into business rescue.
A non-cash provision of £6m was booked on the financial guarantee held on this business' fiabilifies,

The Grand Hotel, Brighton was sold to the Fattal Group in May 2023 for £61m.

2022

The proposed sale of an ABF yeast company to the joint venture with Witmar International in China fclassitied as held for
sale af the 2021 year end) is not going chead. The £10m non-cash impairment reversed in 2021 through profit/floss) on
sale and closure of business has been reinstated at a cost of £11m,

The Group's investment in north China Sugar is classified as held-for-sale at year end ond an associated £19m non-cash
wifte-down has been charged fo loss on sale and closure of business,

The Group also released £3m of closure provisions in Vivergo in the UK and £4m of warranty provisions no longer required
for a disposed Ingredients business in the United States.

246. Share-based payments

The annual charge in the income staternent for equity-setled share-based payments schemes was £18m {2022 - £19m).
The Group had the following principal equity-settied share-based payment plans in operation during the period:

Associated British Foods 2016 Long-term Incentive Plan (‘the 2014 LTIP')

The 2014 LTIP was approved and adopted by the Group at the ABF AGM held on ¢ December 2014, If takes the form of
conditional allocations of shares which are released if, and to the extent that, performance targets are satisfied,
typically over a three-year vesting period.

Associated British Foods 2016 Short-term Incentive Plan (‘the 2016 STIP’)

The 2014 STIP was approved and adopted by the ABF Board on behalf of the Group on 2 November 2016. It takes the
form of conditional allocations of shares which are released at the end of a three-year vesting period if, and to the
extent that, performance targets are satisfied, over a one-year performance period.

Further information regarding the operation of the above plans can be found in the Remuneration Report in the annual
report and accounts of ABF on pages 10010 115,

Total conditional allocations under the Group's equity-settled share-based payment plans are as follows:

" Baarce 7 saance

outztandng o autstanding

tre beginning Grarred; Expired/ o tre end

af rhe penod crwarcled Vesleg lapses cf the zenod

2023 6,090,005 3113056  (607.140) (1.61B,739) 6,977,182
2022 5419237 2,445,814 {718.185)  {1.036.861) 60720005

Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust

Shares subject to allocation under the Group's equity-settied share-based poyment plans are held in a separate
Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust funded by the Group. Voting rights attached to shares held by the Trust are
exercisable by the trustee. whao is entitled to consider any recommendation made by a committee of ABF. Al 16
September 2023 the Trust held 4,734,992 {2022 - 3.042,132) ordinary shares of ABF, The market value of these shares at the
vear-and was £99m {2022 - £40m). The Trust has waived ils right fo dividends. Movements in the year were a release of
607,140 shares and the purchase of 2,300,000 shares (2022 - release of 718,185 shares and the purchase of 2,413,228
shares).
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24. Share-based payments continued

Fair values
The weighted average fair value of conditional grants made was determined by toking the market price of the shares at
the time of grant and discounting for the fact that dividends are nol paid during the vesting pericd. The weighted
average fair value of the conditional shares allocaled during the vear was 1,.544p {2022 - 1,660 and the weighted

average share price was 1,9250 (2022 - 1,975p). The dividend yield used was 2.5% {2022 - 2.5%).

27. Analysis of net debt

Consofdated Group

AT New lasses TAE
17 Senlember and ran cash Exchongs 14 September
202z Cash llow ‘e agjustments 2023
£ £m £m £ £m
Short-term loans (31} 13 188) 7 {100}
Long-term loans (481) - (1) 88 - (374)
Lease liabilities {3.275) 312 T 1220} &3 (2,190}
Total fabiifies from finoncing activities (3.787) 325 (2} [2%0) 70 ~ {3.684)
Cash at bank and in hand, cash equivalents ond
overdrafts 2,100 1500} - - 173) 1.527
Cument investments designated FVTPL 1,243 49 - 51 [14) 1,329
[444) 1124} 2} [239) 17 (828)
o B _. R Consglicated Groun B i
At MNe wlegses AL
18 sepemrher Acquistony  ond non cosh Exerange 7 Seplamber
2521 Coaw flos and disnosals [=1aiH adus'ments 202z
T £ £ £rn im £m
Short-term loans {290) 58 [23) 224 - (31}
Long-term loans (74) 1179} - {224} 12} {481)
Lecse liabilifies o {3.308) 325 (8 186) 198) {3275}
Total labiities from finoncing activities (3.674) 204 13N (18¢) (100) {3787}
Cuash at bank and in hand, cash eguivalents and
overdratts 2,423 13%7) - 74 2,160
Current in\{_e_simems designated FVTPL 1.093 122 - 13} 3i 1.243
158} 71} 131 1189] 5 {444)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank and cash balances, call depesits and short-term investments with original
malurities of three months or less. £69m (2022 - £126m) of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand form an
integral part of the Group's cash management and are included as o component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the cash flow statement (see note 20 for a reconciliation).

Net cash excluding lease habilifies is £2,362m {2022 - £2,831m} comprising cash at bank and in hand, cash equivalents
and overdrafts of £1,527m. short-term loans of £100m, long-term Ilcans of £394m and current investments designated
FVTPL of £1,329m (2022 — £2.100m, £31m, £481m and £1,243m respectively).

£69m (2022 - £124m) of bank overdrafts plus the £100m (2022 - £31m) of short-term loans shown above comprise the
£16%m [2022 - £157m) of curent koans and overdrafts shown on the face of the balance sheet.

Current and nen-current lease lighbilities shown on the face of the balance sheet of £338m and £2,852m respectively
(2022 - £320m and £2.955m respectively} comprise the £3,190m (2022 - £3,275m} of lease liabilities shown above.

Current investments desianated FYTPL comprise term deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of
greater than three maonths but less than one year.

Interest paid is included within financing activities, The roll-forward of the liabilities associated with interest paid is an
opening balance of £(18)m. expense of £{129)m, payments of £119m, effect of hyperinflationary economies of £3m and
a closing balance of £{25)m (2022 - opening balance of £{20)m, expense of £{112)Jm. payments of £1 14m and a closing
balance of £{18)m). Outstanding balances of interest payables are included in accruals in note 22.
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28. Financial instruments
Financial instruments include £nil (2022 - £3m) of trade and other receivables and £nil (2022 - £14m) of trade and other

payablas which are classified as held for sale [see note 17]. All disclosures in this note are given gross, befare the hetd-
for-sale reclassification is made.

a) Carrying amount and fair valves of financial assets and liabilities

,,,,,,,,, ABF T Cadligaled Groge
2023 2022 2023 2027
£m £m £m £
Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost
Cash and cosh equivalents 1.457 2121 1,596 2,224
Investments - 4 - 4
Trade and other receivables 1.568 1.567 1,593 1.5%4
Othear nor-current receivables 31 29 31 29
At fair value through other comprehensive income
Investments 32 29 32 29
At fair value through profit and loss
nwvestments - 1478 1,381
Derivative assets not designated in a cash flow hedging
relationship:
- curency derivatives 11 50 n 50
- commodity derivatives - 3 - 3
Designated cash llow hedging relationships
Derivalive assets designated and effective as cash flow
hedging instrurments:
- currency derivalives (excluding cross-curmency swaps) 40 70 40 70
- Cross-Cumency swaps 24 29 24 29
- interest rate derivatives 4 4 -
- commodity derivatives o 17 323 17 323
Tetal financial assets 3184 4225 4,824 5738
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amorlised cost
Trade and cther pavabies (2.448) 2.651) (2.477) {2.687)
Secured locins - {1} (1} [2)
Unsecured loans and overdrafts (fair value 2023 — £470m; 2022
- £571m) (562) (636) (562) {636)
Lease liabilties (foir value 2023 £3,208m; 2022 - £3.494m) (3.160) {3.252) (3.190) {3.275)
Defered consideration ()] {20] (&) [20)
At fair value through profit and loss
Dervative liabilities not designoted in o cash flow hedging
relationship:
- currency derivatives [excluding cross-curmency swaps) (] {5} () 15}
- commodity dedvatives - {3) - 13}
Designated net investment hedging relafionships
Derivalive iabillies designated as net investment hedging
insfruments:
- Cross-CUMenCy swops (7} {7} 7) 17}
Designated cash flow hedging relationships
Dervative liabilities designoted and effective as cash flow
hedging instruments:
- currency derivatives [excluding cross-curency swaps) {4) {17} (4 {17)
-inlerast derivatives - {3} - 13}
- commodity derivatives - (52) {170} (52) (170)
Total financial liabilfies o - {6,245) f6,765) {6.305) (6,325)
Net financial liabililies {3,061) {2,540} (1479)  {1087)

Except where stated, canmying amount is equal to fair value.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

28. Financial instruments continued
Valuation of financial instruments carried at fair value

Financial instruments carried at fair value on the balance sheet comprise derivatives and investments. The Group
classifies these financial instruments using ¢ fair value hierarchy that reflects the relative significance of tboth objeclive
avidence and subjective judgements on the inputs used in making the fair value measurements:

Level 1: financial insfruments are valued using observable inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted market prices in an
active market for identical instruments. An example of an item in this category is a widely traded equity instfrument with
a normal quoted market price.

Level 2: financial instruments are vatued using techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. market prices
and rates} or indirectly {i.e. derived from market prices and rates). An example of an item in this category is a currency
derivative, where forward exchange rates and vield curve data, which are chservatle in the market, are used to derive
fair value.

Level 3 financial instruments are valued using techniques involving significant unobservable inputs.

The table below analyses the level in the fair value hierarchy into which their fair value measurement method is
categorised for Investmenis held at fair value through profit and loss:

Comuhda‘ed CErOLJEJ

2023 - 2022
level 1 Levei 2 Level 3 Tedal Loval 1 Level2 Lewel 3 Toro
£m £im Em im im im im Em
Investments designated FVTPL 1,175 299 4 1478 595 482 4 1.381

included within the level 2 investiments is the Group's aggregate £145m interest {2022: £138m) in 40 {2022: 4¢) separate
Fartnerships, each of which held investments in unquaoted investrents, Such investrments represent the Group's
allocable share of Partnership investments and include interests in non-redeemable, closed-end private wwvestment
funds that do not trade in an active market and represent iliquid long-term investments that generally require future
capital commitments.

The fair value of such investments are determined by the General Partners of the funds invested in. Unguoted
investments are valued in accordance wilth the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Vatuations Guidelines
ws endursed by Ihe Brilishy varlure Capilal Assaciallon, The basis of valuation in these guidelines include valung
investmeants at the price of recent comparative industry price eamings ratios discounted for marketability and
performance of the investment, by review of comparable M8 A deals in appropriate sectors, and net asset valuations for
asset based investments.

Because of the inherent uncertainties of valuing unquoted investments, the eventual realisation proceeds may differ
from the estimated fair value and the difference could be significant. Appropriate provisions are made against all
individual values where necessary to reflect unsatisfactory financial performance or a fall in comparable ratings, leading
fo impairment in value.

b) Derivatives
All derivatives are classified as current on the face of the balance sheet. The table below analyses the carrying amount
of derivatives and their contractual/notional amounts, together with an analysis of derivatives by the levelin the fair

value hierarchy into which their fair value measurement method is cotegorised.

Consglogled Goup

2023 2077
Contractual/ Contrachucld
nokional ~otional
amounts level § level 2 Total amaonids Level Leveel 2 Total
£m £m £m £m L i £m &
Financial assets
Currency dervatives 2,402 - 51 53
lexcluding cross-cumency swaps) 2.193 - 120 120
Cross-cumency swaps 84 - 24 24 24 - 22 i
Interast rate dervatives A00 - 4 4 - _ _ _
Commodity dervatives 163 5 12 17 439 3 323 o 326
3,049 5 kil 96 2726 3 472 475
Financial liakilities
Curency derivatives 626 - {10} (10}
lexcluding cross-cumency swaps) 721 - {22} 22)
Cross-Cumrency swaps &5 - {7) (7) 48 - i7) ]
Interest rate derivatives - - - - 400 - (3) [3)
Commodity dervatives L. s (2 366 ~ 173073
LLT (2} 755 {205] {205)

57 Wittington Investments  Fnancial Statements 2023



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

28. Financial insfruments continued

¢} Cash flow hedging reserve

The following table identifies the movemenis in the cash flow hedging reserve during the year, and the periods in which
the cash flows are expected to cccur. The periods in which the cash flows are expected to impact profit or loss are
materially the same.

Cansoliclaled Group

2023 2022 e
Cumency
dertvalives
{exchuding Cross-
Croas- cumency Interast Commodity
cumency) swaps Detivatives dativalives Total sl
Em £m £m £m £m L . i I
Opering balance (a1) - 2 (115) {(154) [14) {1 28) {43)
Losses/(gains) recognised in the
hedging reserve 73 5 (5} 339 412 (2%5) [20) 3 (234} [546])
Amount removed from the hadging ’
reserve and included in the iIncome
statement:
revenue (&) - - 7) {13} 5 - - 14 i
- cost of sales - - - {132) {132) - - - 105 105
- other financial {income)/expense - () - - N - 21 - - 21
Amount removed from the hedging
reserve and included in anon-
fincincict asset:
- inventory (52) - - (16) {48) 258 22 280
Deferred fax (2) - - (39) {40) 5 - () 24 08
Closing balonce (28) (2) (2) 30 (2} 44 - 2 [115) 1154)
Cash flows are expected o occun
- within six months (15) - - 25 10 (36) - 2 {105) {139}
between six manths and one year (13) (2) (2) 4 {13) {6) - 11g) [16)
- between one and two years - - - 1 1 1 - - - 1
(28) (2) (2) 20 (2) {41) 2 {115) {154]

Of the closing balance of £(2)m. £(1)m is attnbulable to equity shareholders and £{1)m fo non-coniralling interests (2022
- £(154)m. £(84)m attributabie to equity shareholders and £(70jm tc non-controling interests). Of the net movement in
the year of £152m, £83m is attributable to equity shareholders and £69m to non-contrelling interests {2022 - £(111)m,
£{60)m is atfributable to equity shareholders and £(51)m to non-controlling interests).

The balance remaining in the commadity cash flow hedge reserve from hedging relationships for which hedge
accounting is nc longer applied is £3m (2022 - £1m).

The balance in the cost of hedging reserve was not significant at 17 September 2022 or 16 September 2023,
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28. Financial instruments continued
d) Financial risk identification and management
The Group is exposed o the following financial risks from the use of financial instruments:

- liguidity risk,
market risk; and
credit risk.

The Group's financial risk management process seaks 1o enable the early identification. evaluation and effective
management of key risks facing the business. Risk monagement policies and systems have been established and are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. The Group, through its standards
and procedures, ams to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand
their roles and obligations.

The Group sources and sells products and manufactures goods in many locations around the world. These operations
expose the Group to potentially significant price volatility in the financial and commaodity markets. Risk management
teams have been established in the Group's major businesses to manage this exposure by entering into a range of
products, including physical and financial forward contracts, futures, swaps, and, where appropriate. oplions. These
teams work closely with Group Treasury and report regularly to executive management.

Treasury operations and commaodity procurement and hedging are conducted within a clearly defined framework of
Board-approved policias and guidelines to manage the Group's financial and commaodity risks. Group Treasury works
closely with the Group's procurement teams to manage commodity risks. Group Treasury policy seeks to ensure that
adequate financial resources are available at all times for the management and development of the Group's
businesses, whilst effectively managing its market risk and credit risk, The Group's risk management policy exphcitly
forbids the use of financial or commadity derivatives {oufside its risk management framewaork of mitigating financial and
commodity risks} for speculative purposes.

e) Foreign currency hranslation

The Group presents its financial statements in sterling. As a result of its worldwide cperations, the Group is exposed to
foreign currency translation risk where overseas operations have a functional currency other than sterling. Changes in
foreign currency exchange rates impact the translalion into sterling of both the income statement and net assets of
these foreign operations.

The Group typically finances its operations using own funds generated in the functional currency of its operations and
where dppropriate, by borrowing locally in the same funclional currency. This reduces net asset values reported in
functional currencies other than sterling, thereby reducing the economic exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates on translation.

The Group also finances ils operations by obtaining funding at Group level through external borrowings and, where they
are not in sterling, these borrowings may be designated as netf investment hedges. This enables gains and losses ansing
on refranslation of these foreign currency borowings to be charged to other comprehensive income, providing a partial
offsat in equity against the gains and losses arising on translation of the net assets of foreign operations.

The Group also holds crass-currency interest rate swaps fo hedge its fixed rate non-sterling debt. These are reported as
cash flow hedges and net investment hadges. The change in fair value of the hedging instrument. to the degree
effective, s retained in other comprehensive income. Under IFRS 9, the currency basis on the cross-currency swaps is
excluded from the hedge designation and recognised in other comprehensive income - cost of hedging. The value of
the currency basis is not significant. Effectiveness is measured using the hypothetical derivative appreach. The
hypothetical derivative is based on the critical terms of the debt and therefore the only iIneffeclivenass that might arise is
in relation to credit risk. Credit risk is monitored regularly and is not a significant factorin the hedge relationship.

The Group does not actively hedge the translation impact of foreign exchange rate movements on the income
statement [other than via the partial economic hedge arising from the servicing costs on non-sterling borowings).

The Group designates certain of its intercompany loan arrangements as quasi-equity for the purposes of IAS 21. The
effect of the designationis that any foreign exchange volatility arising within the borrowing entity and/or the lending
enlily is accounted for directly within other comprehensive income.

A net foreign exchange loss of £2m {2022 - £nil) on retranstation of these loans has been taken to the franstation reserve
on consolidation, all of which was attributable to equity shareholders, The Group also held cross-currency swaops that
have been designated as hedges of its net investments in eures, whose change in fair value of £nil fo the transiation
reserve, all of which was abiibutable to equity shareholders (2022 - £1m has been debited to the translation reserve).
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28, Financial instruments confinued
f) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of movements in the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument or forecast transaction
as underlying market prices change. The Group is exposed to changes in the market price of commodities, interest rates
and foreign exchange rates. These risks are known as ‘transaclion’ {or recognised) exposures and 'economic’ (or
forecast) exposures.

(i} Commodity price risk
Comrmodity price risk arises from the procurement of raw materials, the sale of finished goods linked to market indices
and the consequent aexposure to changes in market prices.

The Group purchases g wide range of commodities in the ordinary course of business and has some sales contracts
which are linked to financial market indices. Exposure to changes in the market price of certain of these commaodities
including sugar raws, energy, wheat, edible oils, soya beans, teq, lean hog, cocoa and rice is managed through the use
of forward physical contracts and hedging instruments, including futures, swaps and options primarily to converi floating
prices 1o fixed prices, The use of such contracts o hedge commodity exposures is governed by the Group'srisk
management policies and is continually monitored by Group Treasury. Commaodity derivatives also provide a way to
meet custamers' pricing requirements whilst achieving a price structure consistent with the Group's overall pricing
strategy.

Some of the Group's commaodity forward contracts are classified as ‘own use' contracts, since they are entered into,
and confinue to be held, for the purposes of the Group's ordinary operations. In this instance the Group takes physical
delivery of the commodity concerned. Own use contracts do not require accounting entries until the commaodity
purchase actually crystalises. Where possible, other commodity derivatives are accounted for as cash flow hedges
{typically with o one-te-one hedge ratic). but there are some commaodity derivatives for which the strict requirements of
hadge accounting cannct be satisfied. Such commodity derivatives are used only where the business believes they
provide an economic hedge of an underlying exposure. These instruments are classified as hetd for trading and are
marked fo market through the income statement,

The mgjority of the Group's forward physical contracts and commaodity derivatives have maturities of less than one year,

The Group's sensitivihies in respect of commodity derivatives for a +/- 20% movement in underlying commodity prices are
£16m (2022 - £62m) and £{13]m (2022 - £(57)m)}. respectively.

(i1} Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk comprises two primary elements:

interest price risk results from financial instruments bearing fixed interest rates. Changes in floating interest rates
tharefore affect the falr value of these fixed rate financial instruments; and

interast cash flow risk results from financial instruments bearing floating rates. Changes in floating interest rates affect
cash flows on interest receivable or payable.

The Group's policy s to manage its mix of fixed and floating rate debt, cash and investments so that a significant
change in interest rates does not have a material negative impact on the Group's cash flows.

At 14 September 2023, £475m (85%) {2022 - £487m and 76%) of total debt was subject o fixed rates of interest, the
majornity of which is the 2034 public bond (fixed rate of 2.5%). Foating rate debt comprises other bank borrowings
bearing interest rates for various lime periods up to 12 months, by reference to the relevant market rate for the cumrency
and location of the borrowing.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents and current asset investments are subject to floating rates of interest, typically
fixed for penods up to 3 months by reference 1o the relevant market rate for the currency of the cash placing of
investrnent.

£400m of 12-month stering interest rate swaps have been entered into so thal the floating interest rate received on an
aquivalent balance of the Group's cash and cash equivalents is fixed for the 12-manth period to September 2024,
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28. Financial instruments continued

(iii) Foreign cuirency risk

The Group conducts business worldwide and consequently in many foreign currencies. As a result, it is exposed to
mavements in foreign currency exchange rates which affect the Group's transaction casts, The Group also publishes ifs
financial statements in sterling and is theretfore exposed to movements in foreign exchange rates on the franslation of
the results and underlying net assets of its foreign operations into sterling.

Translation risk is discussed in section ) on page 54.

Transaction risk

Currency transaction exposure occurs where o business makes sales and purchases in a currency other thanits
functional currency. It also arises where moneatary assets and liabilities of a business are not denominated inifs funclional
currency, and where dividends or surplus funds are remitted from overseas. The Group's policy is o match transaction
exposures wherever possible, and to hedge actual exposures and firm commitments as sacon as they occur by using
forward foreign currency conlracls.

The Group uses derivatives [principally forward foreign currency contracts and time options) to hedge its exposure lo
movements in exchange rates on its foreign currency trade receivables and payables. The Group does not seek formal
fair value hedge accounting for such transaction hedges. Instead, such derivatives are classified as held for trading and
marked to market through the income statement. This offsets the income statement impact of the retranslation of the
foreign currency trade receivables and payables.

Economic (forecast) risk

The Group principally uses forward foreign currency contracts to hedge ils exposure 1o movements in exchange rates on
its highly probable forecast foreign currency sales and purchases on a roling t2-month basis. The Group does not
formally define the proportion of highly probable forecast sales and purchases tc hedge, but agrees an appropriate
percenlage on an individual basis with each business by reference to the Group's risk management policies and
prevailing market conditions. The Group designates currency derivalives used to hedge its highly probable forecast
transactions as cash flow hedges. UnderiFRS 9. the spot compeonent is designated in the hedging relationship and
forward points and currency basis are excluded and recognised in other comprehensive income — cost of hedging. The
cost ot hedging value during the period and at the balance sheet date was not material. The economic relationship is
based on crifical terms ond @ one-to-one hedge ratio. To the extent that cash flow hedges are effective, gains and
lasses are deferred in equity until the forecast fransaction occurs, at which point the gains and losses are recycled either
to the income statement or to the non-financial asset acguired.

The majority of the Group's currency derivatives have original maturities of tess than one year.

The Group's most significant currency transaction exposures are:
sourcing for Primark - costs are denominated in a number of currencies. predominantly US dellars, euros and sterling,
sugar saies in British Sugar to movements in the sterling/eure exchange rate.

Elsewhere, o number of businesses maka sales and purchase a variety of raw materials in foreign cumencies {primarily US
dollars and euros). giving rise to transaction exposures. In all other material respects, businesses tend 1o operate in their
functicnal currencies.
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28. Financiol instruments continved
The table below lustrates the effects of hedge accounting on the consolidoted balance sheet and consolidated

income statement by disclosing separately by risk category, and each type of hedge, the detalls of the associated
hedging instrument and hedged item.

__Comoidoied Group

BB
Change in fair Change in fair
Carrying value of hedging value of hedge
ameount Furthest instrument used fo item used to
Contract assefs/ mafurity Hedge determine hedge determine hedge
national  [Nabiites) date rafio inettectveness eftectiveness
£m £ £m = £m £
Curreni
Designated cash flow hedging relationships:
- curengy derivatives [excluding cross-curency swags) 2,024 36 Sep24 100%% 36 (38)
- CIOSECUITENCY SWORS 84 24 Mar?4 1007 [ (8}
- cormrmodity detivatives 427 {35) Sep24 100% (35} 35
~interest rate derivatives 400 4 Sep24 100% 4 (4)
Designated net investment hedging relationshins:
- curency dervatives [cross-currency swaps) 45 {7} Marzd 100% - -
Non-current
Designated cash flow hedging refationships:
- curency denivainves [excludng Cross-currency swaps} 2 -  Apr25 100% - -
- commodity denvatives 11 - Feb 25 100% - -

D Tthange e

Carr'eg vailye of hedang
amourt Furthigst skyment ssed o
assely) Hedge clergnming kedos
ip-arimtiae) raho ineffecnveness
I % £
Current
Designaled cash ftow hedging relaticnships:
- currenicy dervatives fexcluding cross-curency swaps) 2102 54 Sep 23 100% 54 {54}
- CrOSS-CUmenCy Swans 739 152 Aug 23 100% 152 [152}
- comrnodny detvatives 400 {3} Aug23 100% 3 3
Non-current
Desgnated cash flow hedging relationships:
- currency denvatives fexcluding cross-Currency swaps) 3z [ty Sep24 100% 1} [
— Cross-CUmency swiaps 94 2 Mar 24 100% 14 (14}
- commodity dervatives 20 i Jan 24 100% [ {1
Designaled net invesimeni hedging retationships:
- curency derivatives [Cross-currency swaps) 48 7] mar24 100% {3) 3

Hedging relationships are typicolly based on @ one-to-one hedge ratio. The economic relationshin between the hedged
item and the hedging insfrument is analysed on an angoing basis. Sources of possible ineffe ctiveness inctude changes in
forecast transactions as a result of iming ar value ar, in cartain cases, different indices linked to the hedged itern and
the hedging insfrument. As ai 16 September 2023, £2,045m of forward foreign currency contracts designoted as cash
flow hedges were oulstanding (2022 - £2,134m), largely in relation 1o purchases of USD [£1,702m) and sales of EUR
{£203m) with varying maturities up to Aprl 2025. Weighted average hedge rates for these contracts are GBPUSD: 1.264,
EFURUSD: 1.098 and GRPEUR: 1,145. Weighted average hedge rates for the cross-currency swaps are GBPUSD: 1.70 and
GBPEUR: 1.26. Commuodity derivalives designated as cash flow hedges related to a range of underlying hedged items,
with varying maturities up fo February 2025,
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28. Financial instruments continved

The andalysis of the Group's foreign currency exposure to financial assets and liabilities by currency of denomination 1s as
follows:

Consoldated Groun | _

Sterling Us dallar Euro
£m im £m
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 35 22 32 405
Trade and ofther recevables - 50 54 19 125
Investments e - - - - -
- 401 78 51 530

Financial liabiliies
Trade and other payabies (17} (381) (41 (6) {445)

Unsecured [oars and overdrafts (81} - 1 (80)
(17} (462) (41) (5) (525)
Currency derivafives oo
Gross amaounis receivable &7 1.8%0 12 444 2,535
Gross amounts payable o 3 (141) (299) {179} (642)
”W - [ 1,729 (187) 287 1,893
o o a7 1,668 (150) 333 1,898
T L Comaldoled Group e
2022 - e ——
Sterng US clollcr Furg b Tzlal
im im £m £m im
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1 84 13 28 138
Trade and clher receivables - 35 54 24 133
Investments o - 149 - - 1 4%
T - e 1 X0 &7 62 0"
Financial liabilities ) T
Trade and other payables {29] {512} {38} 117} (596)
Unsecured loars and overdrafts = (%0 - - [90)
o - T T 602} (38 (17) [686)
Currency derivatives o o T
Gross amounts receivable 93 2,143 25 254 2.590
Gross amounts payable 2] [202) [428) 157} [687)
T T e mm e
T TR e [301) 244 1635
The following major exchange rates applied during the year:
e oo Avarag Q\glg [ Clasing rale -
2023 203 2023 2027
US doliar 122 1.29 1.24 1.14
Euro 1.15 1.18 1.1& 1.14

The following sensitivity analysis illusirates the impact that a 10% strengthening of the Group’s fransactional curencies
against local functional currencies would have had on profit and equity. The analysis covers curency translation
aexposures at year end on businesses' financial assets and liakllities that are not denominated in the funclional currencies
of those businesses. A similar but opposite impact would be felt on both profit and equity if the Group's main operating
currencies waakenead against lecal functional curencies by a similar amount,

The exposure fo foreign exchange gains and losses on franslating the financial statements of subsidiaries into sterling is
not included in this sensitivity analysis, as there is no impact on the income statement, and the gains and losses are
recorded directly in the translation reserve in equity (see below for g separate sensitivity). This sensitivity s presented
before taxation aond non-controlling interests.
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28. Financiol insiruments continved
Sensitivity analysis

023 2023 T am
impacton impact on imac! on
profit for tolal toial
. , . th iod i 2 R Sy
0% strenglnering aganst other currencies of ® owm e‘";"; e e ”i,i ° '5_‘;
Steding i [ - é
US dallar 2 164 ¢ 172
Euro {2) [4)7] 19} 141)
Other 29 32 16 22

A second sensitivity analysis calculates the impact on the Group’s profit before tax if the average rates used to translate
the resulls of the Group's foreign operations into stering were adjusted to show o 10% strepgthening of sterfing. A similar
but opposite impact would be felf on profit before tax if steding weakened against the other currencies by o similar
amount,

202F T e

impach on PHEOCT O

profit for (<L

1 - th iod NIV

10% strengthering of stering against e P the e
US doflor (24) 18y
Euro {22) 13)
Other (27} 4]

g} Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparftes to financial instruments do not perform according to the terms of the confract or
instrument. The Group's businesses are exposed to counterparty credit risk when dealing with customers, suppliers, and
from financial insiitutions.

The immediate credit exposure of financial instruments i represented by those financial instruments that have o net
positive fair value by counterparty at 14 September 2023, The Group corsiders 15 maximum exposure fo credit sk 1o be:

Comsidaied Groves

2023 0%z
. £m £m
Cosh and cash eguivalents 1,596 2,226
Investmenis at amortised cost - 4
nvestmerts f fair value through profit and 1oss 1.478 1,381
Trade and other receivables 1,593 1,594
Cther non-current receivables 31 %
Investmenls al fair value through other comprehensive income 32 29
Dervative assats af foir value through profit and loss i1 53
Derivative assets in designated cash flow hedging relationships 78 415
T Y =

The significant majority of cash balances and shaort-term deposits are held with straong investment-grade banks or
financial institutions,

The Group uses marke! knowledge, changes in credit ratings and other metrics fo identiy significant changes {o the
financial profile of s counterparties.
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28. Financial instruments continved

Trade and other receivables

Significant concentrations of credit risk are very limited as a result of the Group's large and diverse customer base. The
Group has an established credit poticy applied by each businass under which the credit status of each new customer is
reviewed before credit is advanced. This includes external credit evaluations where possible and in some cases bank
references. Credit limits are established for all significant or high-risk customers, which represent the moximum amaunt
permmitted to be outstanding without requiring additional approval from the appropriate level of management.
Qutstanding debts are continually monitored by each business. Credit limits are reviewed on a regular basis, and at least
annually. Customers that fail to meet the Group's benchmark creditworthiness may only fransact on o prepayment
basis, Aggregate exposures are monitored at Group level,

rMany customers have been transacling with the Group for many years and the incidence of bad debis has been low.
Where appropricte. goods are sold subject 1o retention ¢of title so that, in the event of non-payment, the Group may
have a secured claim. The Group does not typicaily require collateral in respect of frade and other recelvables.

The Group provides for impairment of financial assets including trade and other receivables based on known events,
and makes a collective provision for losses yet to be identified, based on historical data. The majority of the provision
comprisas specific amounts.

To measure expected credit losses, gross trade receivables are assessed regularly by each business locally with
reference to considerations such as the current status of the relationship with the customer, the geographical locotion of
each customer, and days past due {where applicable).

Expected losses are determined based on the historical experience of write-offs compared to the level of frade
receivables These historical loss expectations are adjusted for curent and forward-looking information where it is
identified to be significant. The Group considers factors such s nafional economic outlooks and bankruptcy rates of the
countries in which its goods are sold to be the most relevant factors. Where the impact of these is assessed as significant.
the historical loss expectations are amended accordingly.

The Group considers credit risk to have significantly increased for debts aged 180 days or over and expects thase debts
to be provided forin full. Where the Group holds insurance or has a legal right of offset with debtors who are also
creditors, the loss expectation is applied only to the extent of the uninsured or net exposure.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, indicators of which may include
the failure of the debtor fo engage in a1 payment plan, and failure 1o muke confractual payments within 180 days past
due.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for frade and other receivables at the reporting date by geographic region of
origin was:

Corsaldored Soun

2023 2Z

fm im

UK 609 406

Europe & africa ae 385

The Americas 214 230
Asia Pacific o 30 33

1593 1,594

Trade receivables can be analysed as follows:

Cansaiciared Group

2023 2022

£m &

Not overdue 1,164 1134
Up to cne month past due 124 141
Between one and two months past due 30 3
Between two and three months past due 10 12
mMore than three months past due 30 30

Bxpectedloss pravision e e e 28 27)
1,330 1.321

Trade receivablas are stated net of the following expected loss provision:

Corsoldated Group

2023 2022

£m im

Opening balance 27 24
Incracse charged to the income statement 7 4
Armnounts releqsed (2) {4)
Armounts written off (2} (1)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange o e ' 2
Closing bdance 28 27

No trade receivables were written off directly to the income statement in either year.
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Notes to the consolidated financial sfatements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

28. Financial instfruments continued
The geographical and business line cormplexity of the Group, combined with the fact that expected credit loss
assessments are all performed locally, means that it is not practicable to present further analysis of credit lossas.,

in refation 1o other receivables not forming part of frade receivables. a similar approach has been taken to assess
axpected credit losses. Mo sgnificant expacted credit loss has been identifizd.

The directors consider that the canying amount of trade and other receivables approximates fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents

Banking relationshios are genarally selacted for thair credit status, global reach and thelr ability to meet the businesses’
day-to-cay bonking requirements. The credit risk of these institutions are monitored on a continuing basis. Operaiing
procedures including choice of bank, opening of bank accounts and repatiation of funds must be agreed with Group
Treasury. The Group has not recorded impairments against cash o cash equivalents, nor have any recovearability lssues
been identified with such balances.

h) tiquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encaunter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with its financial
iabiifies as they folt due. Group Treasury is responsible of monitoring and managing liquidity and ensures that ihe Group
has sufficient headraom in its committed facilities 10 meet unforeseen or abnormal requirements. The Group also has
access to uncommitted facilities to assist with short-term funding requirements.

Avdilable headroom 18 monitored via the use of detailed cash flow torecasts prepared by each business, which are
reviewed at least quarterly, or more offen, as required. Actual results are compared to budget and forecast each
perod, and variances investigated and explained. Particular focus s given to management of warking capital.

The Board's ireasury policies are in place to maintain a strong copital base and manage the Group's batance sheet fo
ensure long-term financial stability. This includes maintaining access to significant total iquidity comprised of both net
cosh and yndrown committed credit facilifies. These poficies are the posis forinvestor, creditor ong morket confidence
and enable the successtul developmen? of the businass

Detalls of the Group's porowing faciffies are given in section 1) on page 62.

The foliowing toble andlyses the contractual undiscounted cash flows refating 1o financial fabilifies o the balonce sheet
date and campares them fo carrving amounis:

2033
Due Due Due
Due within $é manths land 2 L2 and 5 Due after  Contracted Carrying
& months and 1 year years years Syears amount omount
T E &m im im £m im Em im
Nen-devivative financial liabilities
Trade and ofher poyables 22 {2,409) {68} - - - (2,477) (2.477)
Secured loans 21 - {1} - - - ()] n
Unsecured loans and overdiafis 2 (80) {101) 13 (30) {460} {6B4) {562)
Lease fiabiliies 27 (199) (212) (409) (1,045) {2,100) (3.985) (3.190)
Defered considerciion 23 (2} {1} {3) - - (4) (8)
Desivative financial liobilities
- Currency derivafives [excluding cross- (2) - - (3) - (N (10}
currency swaps) (net payments)
Commadity derlvatives {nel payments) (46} 8 __ ) - - {52) (52}

Total financial iiabilifies (2740)  (388)  (428)  (1.098) {2560} (7.212)  (6.298)

T Comsdantedgioue T
e e e BDELL L e el — -
Oue 7 Dus Cue
betneen betweean oelweesn
Tae wine & minths | one 2 2oeida Due ater Canlrosted Carving
& reoniing QN yeal years YOS Dyears aGmaunt amount
boie it Em £ im £ £ &M
Non-derivative financial fiabiities
Trode ond other payables 22 (2,659} {28) - - - {2.687) (2.687)
Secured loans 21 - () {1] - B {2 (2]
Ursecured joans and overcrafis 2} 1153} (17 {103} 31} {470} {774) {636)
Lense ficbilifies 27 {200} 1217) {413] {1.127) 12.404) {4361 (3.275)
Defered consideration 23 14 (12 {1 (3! - {20} [20}
Defivative financial fiobitities
- Currency derivatives [exciuding cross- {15} {2 i1 - - ng 22
currency swaps) (net payments)
Commodity derivatives fnet payments) [170] n 2) - - {173 (173}
_inferest e dervaives efpoymentst @& - - - - @@
Total financial liabilities [3.204) {278) (521} {1.161) [2.874) 18.038) [6818)
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28. Financial instruments continued

The above tables do not include forecast data for kabilities which may be incured in the future but which were not
confracted at 14 September 2023,

The principal reasons for differsnces between canying values and contractual undiscounted cash Hows are coupon
payments on the fixed rate debt o which the Group is already committed, future interest payments on the Group's
lease liabilities. and cash flows on derdvative inancial instruments which are not aligned with their fair value.

i) Borrowing facilities
The Group has substantial borrowing facifiies available to it. The undrawn committed facilities available at 14
Sepiember 2023, in respect of which afl conditions precedent have been met, amounted 1o £1.516m {2022 - £1,567m):

_ ~ _. aedGowp T T T o

e 2003 ¢

Focllity Drawn, Famiity Orcram Uk ot

£m £m £m E2Na) im

Cornmitted Revolving Credit Faaifity 1.500 - 1.500 - 1.500

Pubtic Bona due in 2034 390 390 - K 330 -

US privaite placement 81 81 - 87 87 -

fiove 2§ 15 14 77 12 45
o A e B2

2,003 487 1.516 2,064 497 1.567

Uncommitied facilities available at 16 September 2023 were;

Tomoidaled Groun

2023
Focility Diawn Undrawn Drown
£ £m Em im
lavo 115 50 45 9
Azucarerc 33 1 32
China 35 - 35
Moneymarket Imes - - -
Gther 180 25 155
- R

In addition to the above facilities there care alsa £149m (2022 - £1 14m) of undrawn and gvailable credit tinas for the
purposes of issuing letters of credit and guaraniees in the normal course of business.

The Group has tssued o public bond of £400m due in 2034. Included are deterred financing cosis totalling £10m which
have been capitdlised against the bond and are to be amortised over its farm.

Uncommitted bank borrowing facilities are normally reaffirmed by the banks annually, although they can be withdrawn
ot any fime.

Refer to note 10 for details of the Group's capital commitments ang to note 29 for a summary of the Group's
guaraniees.

i} Capital management

The capitatstructure of the Group is presented in the conscolidated balance sheet. For the purpose of the Group's
capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other reserves attibutable fo equity shareholders, totaling
£8,195m [2022 - £8,10ém). The consoiidated statement of changes in equity provides details on equity and note 21
provides delails of loans and overdrafis. Short- ond medium-term funding requirerments are provided by a variety of lean
and overdraft tacilities, both committed and uncammitted, with a range of counterparties and maturifies. Longer-ferm
funding is sourced from the 2034 Public Bond, the private placement notes and committed syndicatad loan facitities.

The Board's policy 15 to maintain a strong capital base so a3 o maintain invastor, creditor and market confidence and to
enable successful future development of the business. The Board monitors return on capital by division and determines
the overall leve! of dividends payable to shareholders.

From tire 10 fime the trustee of the ABF Employee Share Ownership Plan Trusi purchases ABF shares in the market to
saisfy arwards under fhe Group's incentive plans. Once purchased, shares are not sold back info the rarket. The Group
does not have a defined share buy-back plan.

There were no changes 1o the Group's approach to capital management during the year. Neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiarias 5 subject to externdlly-imposed capital requirements.

29. Contingencies

Litigation and oiher proceedings ogainst the Group are not comidered material in the conmtext of these financial
statements.

Where Group compaonies enfer into financial guaranfee coniracts to guaranise the indebledness of olher Group
companies. the Group considers these to be insurance arangamenis and has elected to account for them as such in
accordance with IFRS 4. In tis respect, the guarantee contract is freated as a conlingent liability until such time as it
becomes probable that the refevant Group company issuing the guorantes will be requited 1o maoke a poyment under
the guarantee.
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29. Confingencies continued
As at 16 Sepfember 2023, Group companies have provided guaraniees in the ordinary cowrse of business amaunting to
£1.724m {2022 - £),754m}.

In 2021, a Thai court ruled in favour of ABF's Qvailtine business in Thailand in a tegal action it brought against one of its
suppliers in respect of a contracivol dispute, The court conciuded that between 2009 and 2019 the supplier had
overcharged Ovalling Thalland and should pay compensation of 2.2 bilion Thal baht (£50my; 2022 « £52m). The relevant
contractual relationship between e Group and its supplier ferminated at the end of 2019, The Group has not yet
recorded an dsset in respact of this matter as the defendant is appeding the judgment. Since the balonce sheet dafe,
a proclamation from the cppeat court in Thailand has been made regarding the appeal by the defendant that reverses
the previous judgement that was given in 2021, We are curently reviewing nexi sieps with legal counsel.

30. Related parties
The Group has o ceniroliing sharehoider retotionship with its subsidiory company. ABF, with tne trustees of the Garfield
Weston Foundation and with certain other individuals who hold shares in the Company. Further details af the controling
shrarehoider relationship are included in note 32, The Group has a related party relationship with ils associales and joint
ventures {see note 32) and with its directors, In the course of normal operations, refated party fransactions enterad info
by tha Group have been contracted on an orm's length basis,

Material teansactions and year end balances with related parties were as follows:

Tan 2023 T

~ole £000 000

Dividends paid by Wittington Invesiments Limited and Asscciated Brilsh Foods ple 7ABF }
and received in a benaficlal capacity by:
i) wrustees of the Gorlield Weston Foundation and their close family 1 15,764 16.217
fii} directons of Witington fnvesiments Umited who are not irustees of the Foundation and

ther ¢lose farnily 2 3.405 3334
Sdles fo and commissions paid 1o companias with common key management personnel on
normal frading terms 3 ?.912 16,891
Armounis dug rom companies with common key monagement personnal 3 1,028 2,898
Sales to joint venlures on normat frading ferms 40,645 54101
Sales to associates on normai trading terms 88,753 73.360
Purchases fram joint ventues un normal rading terms 482,267 436,467
Purchases from associates on normal rading terms 97,844 13.879
Armounis cdue from joint venlures 45,045 48,455
Amounts due from associcies 9.045 %451
Amounts due to joint ventures 17,609 30214
Armounts due to gssociates 7,141 594
Provision for doubtful debts on amouris due from associates {300} {300}

. The Garfisld Waston Foundation [“the Foundation’] is an English charitable trust. estatlished in 1958 by Ine late W. Garfield Wesian The
Faundation has na directinterest in the Company. but as at 16 Seprember 2023 was tne beneficial cwner of 683,073 sharas (2022 - 682.073
shores) i Wittington trivestmerds Limited representing 79.2% (2022 - 79.2%) of the Company's issued share capital and s, therefere ine
Company’s utimale coniroiling party. At 16 September 2023 trustees of the Foundarion comprsed nine grandchildren of the late W Garfield
Wesion of wham five ara children of the late Gary H. westan,

=]

Deiails of the directars of Wittington lnvestments Lmited ore given on pade 7, Direstars’ remuneration is discloced o nate 5.

]

. The compdny with convmon key managerrent persornel s the George Weston Limited group. in Conada.
Y a g

Amounts due from joint verttures include £32m (2022 - £29m) of finance lease raceivabiles (see note 14). The remainder
of the bolonce s rading bolances. Allbut £4m {2022 - £4m) of the finance lease receivabies are non-current,

Detalls of the Group's subsidiary undertakings, joint ventures and assaciates are set aut in note 32,

31. Post Balance Sheet Event
On 12 December 2023 the Directors declared an Interim dividend. The dividend of £846.50, tatal value of £74.6m., will be
paid on 23 January 2024 jo shareholoers on the register on 12 December 2023,

32. Group entities

Control of the Group

The frustees of the Garfield wesion Foundation {*the Foundation'lare controliing shareholders of the Company, Certain
ofher individuals, including certain memibsers of the Weston familty who hold shares in the Company are, under the Lsting
Rules, treated as acting in concert with the trustess of the Foundation and are therefore also reated as controiing
sharehelders of the Company.
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32. Group entities continued
Subsidiary undertakings

A list of the Group's subsidiaries as al 16 Seplember 2023 is given below.

ABF announced a share buyback programme of £500m n November 2022. In the financial year, ABF purchased 23.7
million ABF shares for £448m and the shares bought back were cancelled. Since the financial year end, o further 2.8
million ABF shares were purchased. completing the total £500m buyback programme. ABF has announced the

continuation of a buyback programme, targeting an additional amount of £500m over the next 12 months.

Given the Group owns 56.2% of the share capital of ABF plc at 14 September 2023, the effective ownership of
subsidiaries is 56.2% except where ownership perceniages are shown. These percentages give the Group's uitimate
interest and therefore allow for situations where subsidiaries are owned by partly owned infermediate subsidiaries. Where
subsidiaries have different classes of shares, this is largely for historical reasons and the effective percentage holdings
given represent both the Group's voting rights and equity holding. All subsidiaries are conselidated in the Group's
financial statements. All subsidiaries with an effective holding of less than 50% are subsidiarnes of ABF plc. Since ABF pla
has greater than 50% effective ownership of these subsidiaries, and the Group owns 56.2% of the share capital of ABF

olc, the Group has effective contral of these subsidiaries.

% eftechve holaing

Subs aiory Lnderiaargs iF ot 54.2%

Submichory undertciangs

% effective holding

ot 56 2%

United Kingdom

Weston Cenire, 10 Grosvenor Streef, Landon,
WIK 40, Unifed Kingdom

AB. Exploration Limited

A.B.F. Holdings Limited

A.B.F. Nominees Lrmited

A.B.F. Properties Limiled

AB Agri timited

AB Foods Australia timited

AB Ingredients Limited

AB pcuri [UK] Limited

AB racur Ching Limited

AB Maur Europe Limited

AB Sugar Ching Holdings Limited
AB Sugar China Limited

AB Sugar China North Limited
AB Sugar Limiled

AB Technology Limited

AB World Foods {Holdings) Limited
AB Weorld Foods Limited

ABF (Mo, 1) Limited

ABF [No, 2} Limited

ABF [No. 3} Limited

ABF BRL Fincnce Ltd

ABF Emergy Limiied

ABF Europe Finance Limited
ABF European Holdings Limited
ABF Finance Limited

ABF Food Tech Investments Limited
ABF Funding

ABF Grain Praducts Umited
ABF Green Park Limited

ABF Grocery Lmited

ABF HK Finance Limited

ABF Ingredients Limited

ABF Investments plc

ABF Invesimenis (No.2) Limited
ABF Japon Limited

ABF MXN Fingnce Limited

ABF Overseas Limited

ABF plc

ABF Pr Limited

ABF UK Fincnce Limited

ABF US Holdings Limited

ABF IMW Fincnce Limited

ABN [Overseas) bmited

ABNA Feed Company Limited
ABNA Limited

&4 Wittingtan Investments Financial Statenconts 2023

Acetum (UK) Limited [previousty Alied
Technical Centre Limited)

Agrilines Limited

Alied Bakeries Limited

Allied Grain (Scatland) Limited
Alied Gran [South) Limited

Adlied Grain [Southem) Limited
Allied Grain Limited

Allied mMills [No 1} Limited

Allied Mills Limited

Allinson Limited

Associated British Foods Pension Trustees
tmited

Alrium 100 Properties Limited
Atrium 100 Stores Holdings Limited
Atrium 100 Stores Limited

B.E. International Foods Limited
Banbury Agriculfure Limited

British Sugar (Overseqs) Limited
British Sugar plc

B3C [(Ching] Limited

Cereal Industries Limited

Cereform Lirmited

Dairy Consulting Limited

Davjon Fooed Lmited

Dorset Cereals Limited

Fastbow Securities Limiled
Elsenhom Qualty Foods Lmited
Fishers Feeds Limited

Fishers Seeds & Grain Limited

Food Investments Limited

G. Costa [Haldings) Limited

G. Costa and Company Limited
Germain's (UK.} Limited
Greencoat Limited

Greencoat Fam Limited

H 5 Limited

llovo Sugar Afrnca Holdings Limited
John K. King & Sons Lirmited
Kingsgate Food Ingredients Lrmited
KO2 Umited

LealTC Limited

mawr Products Limited
Mountsfield Park Fingnce Limited
Natural Vetcare Limited

Nufrition Trading (International) Umited
Nutrition Trading Limited

Palak (Spices) Limited
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32. Group entities continued

Subsidiany undertakings

a?wl

Supsoany ungertokngs

Patak Food Limiled

Patak's Breads Limited

Patak's Foods 2008 Limited

Premier Nutrition Products Limited

Pride Gik Public Limited Company

Primcrk [UK.) Lirnited

Primark Austria Limited

Primark sMode Umited

Primark Pension Adminisiration Services Limited
[dissolved 24 October 2023)

Primark Stores Limited

Primary Diets Limited

Primary NMutrition Limited

Pro-Active Nutrition Umited

R. Twining and Company Lmited

Reflex Nutrition Limited

Roses Nutation Ltd

Seedcofe Systerns Limited

Serpenting Securilies Limited [dssolved 26
September 2023)

Shep-Fair Producis Limited

Spectum Aviation Limited

Speedibake Limited

Sunblest Bakernes Lirmited

The Bakery School Limited (dissolved 3 October
2023)

The Bilington Food Group Limited

The Home Grown Sugar Company Limited
The Jordans & Ryvita Company Limited

The Natural Sweetness Company Limited
The Roadmap Company Lmited

The Silver Spoon Company Limited

Tip Top Bokeres Limited

Trident Feeds Limited

Twining Crosfield & Co. imited

Vivergo Fuels Limited

W, Jordan & Son (Sio) Limited

w. Jordan (Ceredils) Limited

wereham Gravet Company Limited (The)
Westmil Foods Limited

Weston Biscuit Company Limited (The)
wWeston Foods Limited

Waston Research Laborateries Limited
Worldwing Investments Limited

Vernon House, 40 New North Road,
Huddersfield, West Yorkshire HD 5LS, Uniled
Kingdom

Proper Nulty Limited

Fox Talbot House, Unit 4 Greenways Business
Park, Belinger Close, Chippenham, Wittshire,
SNTS 1BMN United Kingdorn

Nationat Milk Records Limited

National Livestock Records Limited

National Milk Records Trustee Company Limited
Nordic Star Lid

Norfhern Ireland

I Colege Piace North, Belfast, BT 6BG.,
United Kingdom

James Neil, Limited

Unit 4, 211 Costle Road, Randalstown, Co.
Anlrim, BT41 2EB, Unifed Kingdomn

lordan Bros. (N.L) Limifed

Nutrition Services [Intermationat} Limiled
Vistavet Limited

Scofland

32 Kelvin Avenue, Hiingfon Park, Glasgow,
G52 4LT, United Kingdom

Naofional tilk Laboraicries Limited

180 Glenfanar Road, Glasgow. G22 7UP,
Unifed Kingdomn

ABN (Scotlond) Lirmited

Miter Samuet LLP, RWF House,

5 Renfield Streel, Glasgow, G2 562

United Kingdom

Korway Foods Limited

Korway Holdings Limiled

Patak's Chilled Foods Limited

Patak’s Frozen Foods Limited

United Kingdom - Non ABF

Waston Centre. 10 Grosvenor Streef, London,
WK 40Y, United Kingdom

Clinton Farms Limited 100%
{dissolved 17 Seplember 2023)
George Weston Limited [dormant) VO0%
Richrmend Hill Hotel {Operations) Limited HOO%
WINDL Offices Limited 85%
Wittington Investments (Ahren) Limited 100%
wittington Investments (BPA I} Limited 100%
{dormant)
wittington Invesiments {BSPF) Umited {dormant) 100%
wittington Investments [BV lll) Limited {dormant) 100%
wittington Investments [Careplaces) Limited 100%
{dormant)
wittington Investrmenis [FAPD Limited [domant) 100%
wittington investments (FAPI I} Limited 100%
{dlormant)
wittington Investments [FIPL] Limited [dormant) 100%
wittington Investments [Next wave} Limited 100%
[dormant)
wittington Investments [Properties) Limited 100%
wittington Investments (Reof) Limited {dormant} 100%
witlington Investments {Richmond Hill Hotel) 100%
Limited
wittington Investments Finance Limited 100%
196 Tottenhom Court Road, London, WIT7LQ
Heal & Son Limited 100%
Heal's Holdings Limited 100%
Heal's Pension Fund Trusiees timiled 100%
Heal's plz 100%
Heals (1810) Limited 1005
181 Piccadily, London, WA 1ER
F. & M. Limited 100%
Forinurm & Mason {Export) Limited 100%
Forinum and mMason [London) Limited 100%
Fortnum and roson Hospitality Limited 100%
Fortnum & Mason Pl 100%
Fortnums Limited 100%
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T T effectie halaing
Sunsidicry under lakings 1ot 54 7%
United Kingdom - Non ABF — audit exempt

The following subsidiary companies of Wittington Invastments
Limited (note that Wittington Investmenls {B3P) limited is a
subsiciary of Wittington fnvestments (Finance) Limiled] have
avaled themselves of the audit exemplion for subsidiary
company under s479A-479C of the Companies Act 2006 for the
financial year ending September 16ih 2023,

As the parent company [or ultimate parent company in the
case of witlington Investments [BSP} Limited). Wittington
Invesimenis Umited guarantees all oulstanding liabilities fo
which each subsidiary company listed below is subject as ot
September 16th 2023:

weston Centre, 10 Grosvenor Street., Loncion,
WK 4QY, United Kingdom

wittington Investments {Apollo) Limited 100%
[Company number D8437983)

Avery Row Management Limited 100%
[Company number | 1392508

Listergate Student Holdings Limited 100%
[Company number 11289745

Howeard Invesirments Limited 100%
{Company number 03727125

WILH (Investrments] Limited 100%
[Company nurmber 04224010

witlinglon Investmenits {Bestport) Limited 100%
ICompany number 057244605)

witlinglon Investments (BSP VIII] Limited 100%
[Company nurmber 05583804

withngton Investments {857 Liniled T00%
ICompany number 10122727)

Witington Investments {Developrments) Limited 100%
[Company number 07721700)

wittington Investments {Dunedin i) Limited 100%
[Company number 08307734

witington Investments (Dunedin} Limited 100%
[Company number 05875249)

wittington Investmentis {Graphite) Limited 100%
[Company nurmber 08643607)

wittington Investments {Harbourvest) Limited 100%
[Company number 06632271)

wittington Investments {OCP) Limited 100%
ICompany number 06432285

Wittington Investments PEF {Euro) Limited 100%
ICompany number 08336015

withngton Investments PEF (GBP) Limited 100%
[Company number 08111797)

witlington Investments PEF {USD) Limited 100%
(Company number 05094395

witlington Investments (Private Ecuity) Limited 100%
[Company number 09973685)

wittinglon Investment (Sand Aire) Lirnited 100%
[Campany number 0441537 4)

witington Investments (VOT] Limited 100%
[Company number 06576342)

wittington Investrents {WHEB} Linted 100%
[Company number 06576301)

witlington Investments (WPX] Limited 1007
{Cornpany number 06343087)

Argentina

Mariscal Antonio tosé de Sucre 632 - 2nd Floor.
Buenos Alres 1428, Argenlina

AB Mauri Hspanoamernca S A.
Surgrass S.A {in Iiguidation)
Compania Argentina De Levaduras S.ALC,

&b Wittington Investments Finoncial Statements 2023

Subsicdhary yagdertokings
Australia

Building A, Level 2, 11 Talovera Road,
Norffl Ryde, NSW 2113, Ausirata

AB Maur Overseas Holdings Limited
AB Mauri Pakistan Py Limited

AB Maurn ROW Holdings Ply Limited
AB Maur South Armerica Ply Limited
AB Mauri South West Asicr Pty Limited

AB Mauri Technology & Development Pty
Limited

AB Maur Technology Py Limited

AB World Foods Phy Lid

Anzchem Pty Limited

AusPac Ingredients Pty Lid

CCD Animal Health Pty Ltd

Dagan Trading Py, Lid

Food Investments Phy. Limited

George Weston Foods {Victoria) Pty Ltd
George Weston Foods Limited
Indonesian Yeast Company Pty Limited
waun Fermentation Bradil Phy Limited
Maur Fermentation Chile Pty Limited
Mauri Fermentation China Ply Limited
raur Fermentaton India Pty Limited
Mauri Fermentation Indonesia Py Limited
Maur Fermentation Malaysia Ply Limited
sMaur Fermentation Philippines Pty Limited
fuun Fermentaton Vietnom Pry Limited
rMaur Yecost Ausiralia Ply Limited

N&C Enterprises Pty Ltd

Sermol Iingredients Ply Limited

The Jordans and Ryvita Cormpany Australia Pty
Ltd

Yurni's Quality Foods Py Lid

35-37 South Corparale Avenue, Rowvile,
VIC 3178, Australic

AB Food & Beverages Austrarlia Piy. Limited
170 South Gippsiand Highway, Dandenong.
VIC 3175, Australia

ABF Wynyard Park Limited PcE[anership

% elfective nolding

Ausfria

Wolizeiic 11/2. OG. 1010 Vienna, Austia
Primark Austne Lid & Co KG
frottenbochstrasse, 82-88/51g tfTop 5 1190
Vienna, Austic

Nutrilaibs GmibH

Bangladesh

Level 13 Shanta Wesfern Tower,
Bir Uftarn Mir Shawka! Rood, 186 Tejgoon (1A,
Dhaka 1208, Bangladeash

Twinings Ovalling Bangladesh Limited
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32, Group entities continued

Subnicheyy undeniodngs
Belgivim

Inclustiepark 2d, 9820 Mereloeke, Belgiun

AB Mawri Belgium NV

Chaussde de ky Hulpe 177720 1170 Bruxelles,
Beigium

Primark SA

Avenida Tieté, L-233 Boranca do Rio Tieté,
City of Pedermeiras, State of Sao Foulo,
CEP 17.280-000, Brazi

AB Brosil Industria e Comeércio de Afimentos Lida
Algmedia Madeira 328, 20th Floor, Room 2005,
Alphavilie - Barver, Sao Paulo 06454-010, Brazi
AB Enzimas Brasil Comercial Lida

Avenicda Drq, Ruth Cardose, a.° 7.221, 11° Floor,
Room 110! {parte], Condominio Edificio
Birmann 21, Pinheiros, CEP 05§425-902, City of
580 Paufa, State of $do Paulo, Brazl

AB Vista Brosi Camércio De Aimentacho
Animaltida
Canada

Biake, Cassels & Groydon LLP, 169 Bay Street,
Suite 4000, Toronto, Ontardo MSL TAR, Canadlc
AB MOUL{QOJQQOJ U’m\'redy
Chile

mircflores Sreet No. 222, 28 Floor, Sanfiago,
Chite

Cdlsa Chile Invertiones Limitada

(‘F\I‘n’a B T T ’ -

Na. | Tongcheng Streel, A Cheng Disinct
Harhin, Hellongjiang Province, China

AB {Horning Food ingrecients Co.. Uid. {m
fiquidaton)

Nerth Huang He Roud, Rudong

New Economic Development Zone,

Nantong City. sangsu Province, China

AB Agri Anirmal Nufrition {(Nantong) Co., Ltd

AB Agri Animal Nutrtion {Rudong) Co |, Lia.

N 28. South Shunin Rocid, Yimai Distich,
Tongehuan, Shaonxi Frovince, China

AB Agri Animal Nulition {Shaarnxi) Co., Lid.
Roorn 7-1068, No. 88 Shijiu Hubel Road, Chunxd
Street, Gaachun Oisfact, Nanjing City, Jiangsu
Pravince. Ching

AB AgH Purmeixdn Tech [iongsu) Co. L,
Chuangxin Rocd, Tonggt Industry Zone, Sandiu
Town, Tonggu County, Jiangx Province, Ching
AB Agri Pumeixin Tech (Jiangxi] Co. Lid.

Raom 2802, Raffles Oty Changning,

Mo, 87 Changning Rood, Changning District,
Shanghai, 200051, China

AB Enzymes Trading [Shanghail Co.. Ltd

Room 2803, Raffles City Changning.

Na. 1189 Changning Road, Changning Disfrict,
Shanghaoi. 200051, China

ABMA, sanagement (Shanghail Ca., Ud.

ABNA Trading {Shanghoi} Co., Lid

Room 2908 Roffies City Changning.,

No. 1189 Changning Road. Changning District,
Shanghai, 200051, Ching

Associcted British Foods Holdings (Chinal Co., Lid
Unit 006, Room 401, Floor 4, Building 1, MNa. 15
Guanghua Road, Chaoyang Distict, Befing,
Ching

AB Maur [Befing] Food Sales and
Marketing Company Limited

T @ftocive nold

Substhery wodedghings . ¥rol5e3%
Buiicing 1. 35 Chi Feng Road |, Yongpu Distiact,

Shanghor 200092, Ching

AB Maur Foods {Shanghail Company Limited 5%
868 Yongpu Road, Pujiiang Town, !
Minhang Distict. Shanghai 201112 Ching '
ABNA [Shanghal Feed Co. Lid.

14 juhai Road. Jinghar Development Zone,

Tianjin, Ching

ABNA (Tianjn) Feed Co, Lid

Shu Shon Moderm industial Zone of Shou

County, Huathon City, Anhul Province, Ching

ABMA Faad (At} Co., Lid

145 Xincheng Road. Tengao Economic

Development Zone, Anshan.

Liaoning 114225 Ching

ABNA feed {liconing) Co.. Ltd.

17 Xiangyang Streef, Tu Township, Chayou

Qianay. inner Mongaba, China

Botion Sugar Industry {Chayou Giena} Co., Lidh

No. | Botian Roqd, Econarmic Development

Ione. Zhangbei County Zhanghakou City.

Hebel Province, Ching

Bofian Sugar industry Zhangbei] Co.. Lid,

Room 1110, po 368, Changjiong Road,

Nangang Concentrated Dislrict, EConomic

Devefoprment Zone, Horbin, Chino

Botan Sugar indusiry Co., Lid.

I Industricl North Street, Zhangitgkon: Thonghbol

Couinily, Heber Province, Ching

Hebel Maurn Food Co |, Lid

8 Loncun Rood, Economic and Technical

Development Zone, Minhang. Shanghot

200245, China

Shanghai AB Food & Beveroges Co.. Lid

Ne. 68-1. Shucngiong Rogd, Fushan Distict,

Yaritai City, Shandong Province, Ching

YonloiMounYeostCo bd. - 5%
Colombia

Cra 35# 34A-64. Paimira, Valle, Colombic

Reischmenn Foodss.A
Crech Republic T

MNagroini 523, 349 01 SHibro, Czech Repubiic

Bodit Tachov sr.o.

Palladium, Na Pofici 1079/3a. Pragus 1, 11000,

Czech Repuhiic

Prirmiark Prodeny sr.o .
penmarc —
Skjernve) 42, fresirup, 6920 Videbaek, Denmacrk

AB Neo /S

Middeffartveg 77. Baring. 5466 Asperup.

Denmark

Cowconnect ApS

Ecuador T T
Medardo Angel Siva 13 v Pongmia, Morzonae

12, fl Recreo, Hoy Atfore, Durdn, Guayos.

Foundor

ABCALA S.A. ) )

Eswotind 0T
Ubombao Sugar imited, Old Main foad,

Rig Bend, Eswaling

Bar Circle Ranen Limited 34%
llova Swazilond Limited 34%
Movyeni Ranch Ltimited 34%
Ubombo Sugar Umited. 4%
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32. Group entities continued

_ fnal5esn

Subsehgry pndefighngs
Fintand

Tykkim&entie 155 (PO Box 26), Rojarndiki,

FI-03200, Finland

AB Enzymes Oy

Tykkirndientie 155 (PO Box 57}, Rojoméiki,

FHO5201, Finland

Enzymies Leasng Fnland Oy

Koskelontie 19 B, Espoa. F-02920. Finland

Alimetrics Research Oy
ABVistaFinlandOy
France B o
40742, avenuve Georges Pompidou. 69003,
aLyon, france

AR Maur France

25 Rue Anclole France. 92300 Levallois-Peret,
Fronce

Fwinings & Co SAS

11 Rue de Milan, 75009, Park, France

ABF France SAS

Centre Commercial Regional Créteil Solef,
Niveau 3, 101 Avenue du Géndrot de Gaulle,
4000, Crétell, France

Primark France SAS

845 Chernin du Valion du meire, 13240,
Septemes les Viallons, France

SPI Pharma SAS

TAE Vi Europa, 3 rue d Athénes, 34350 Vendres,
Fronce

Fytexia Group

Frtexic
Gemany
Feldbergstrasse 78 64293, Darmstod!, Gemmany
AB Enzymes GmbH

Schauenburgersfrasse 1148, 24118, Kiel Gemmany
ICFN AG

waondsheker Zollstrasse 59, 22041,

Hamburg, Germiany

ABF Deutschiond Holdfings GmbH

Ohly GrbH

Oty Grundbesiiz GrmioH

Rheinische Prasshefe- und Spritwerke Gmiat
Kennedyplolz 2, 45127, Essen, Germany

Primark mode Lid. & Co. KG
Primark Property GrioH
Hausinger  Strgsse 4-8,
Garmany

Vital Sotutions GrmibH
Waesfendsirasse 28, 40325, Frankfurt am Main,
Germany

wander GmbH

Marie-Kahle-Alee 2. D-53113, Bonn, Gemany
Westmil Foods Europe Crrioh
Gree
28, Dimitriou Soutsou Str, Athens, GR 115 21,
Creece

it Teal Single Merber .4,
Guernsey

Darey Court. Admiral Park, St. Pefar Port,
GY1 207, Guermsey
ialisman Guemsey Limited

40784, Langenfeld,
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Sabsitry ungetagngs
Hong Kong

3/F Manuife Flace, 348 Kwun Tong Road,
Kawloon, Hong Kong

Associoted British Foods Asie Pacific
Holdings timited
Hungory

Korolyi ufce 12. 3. em., Budapest, 1053, Hungary
Privecirk Q;!efek Kondtol FelelBasdgy” Tdamnosdg
(Primarc UaslekKit)
india

£218 & #219, Bommasandra - Nigani Link Road,
Anekaf Taluk. Bangalore, 550105, indio

AR Maun Inctia Pavale Limited

First Floor, Regent Sunny Side, 80 Fi Road, 8th
Block, Korarmangaia Bengaiury, Kamaotaka,
560030, Inctic

3P Specioiiies Phama Private Limited

G341, New Budge Budge Trunk Road, Old
Dakghar, Kolata, West Bengal, 700141, indica
Twinings Private Limited
indoresia
Wismicy GKBILE3S, Suite 3901, No.28 1L jend,
Sudirman, Jakarta | Indonesia

PT AR Food & Baverages Indonesia {in liquidation)
reland o T
47 rary Streef, Dublin 1, frefand

Abdate Finance Limited

Primark Holoings Unlimited Company

Primark Pension Trustees Limited

! Stokes Ploce, 8t Stephen’s Green. Dubiin 2.

freland

Allied Mills reland Lmited

Unit 3. Hebron House, Macdonagh function,

Kilkenny. RS T9TY, irelond

Irtelync Technology Limited

Athur Ryan House, 22-24 Pamnel Street,

Bubln 1, Feland

Primark Limited

Primcirk Austio Umited

Primark Mode Limved

13 Classon House, Dundrum Busness Pork,
Dundrum, Dublin 14, DI4X9F5 relond

Nulitional Advanced Formuias (refand) Limited
Haty T

Vicle Monte Nera, 84, 20135, Milarn, ltaly

AR Agrittaly Sl

Vio Milano 42, 27045, Casteggio, [Pavia). tialy
AB Mawri taky So AL

ABF Itaty Holdings 5.1

Larga Francesco Richini 2/4, 20122, silan, italy
Primark tictly S.r,

Via Rizzotto 46, 41126, Modena (MO, aly
Acetuia Fini Modena Sl

Via Sandro Ferfind 440, 401314, Caver (MO,
tealy

Acetum S.p A, Societd Benefir

Via Garibaldi 84, Magenta, 20013, dMikan, taty
ALP irmmobiiare S

Via Gran Sasso, 33, Corbetia, 20011, Milan, italy
8 Natural ot
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ahadiog

“Aailectve holoeg

Subsidiary Lodertakngs ifriot 54 2%, Sunsicliary brider lakings it il 56 2%
Malowi Nigerig
flovo Howse, Churchif Road, Limbe, Malawi 23 Oba Akinjobi Sfreef, GRA, kejo, Lagos, Nigeia
Dwangwa Sugar Corporation Limited 437, Twinings Ovdlting Nigeria Limited
fHovo Sugar {(Malawi] ple 437, Pakistan
rMalawi Sugar Limited 21KM Ferozepur Road, 2 KM Hadyare Drain, Lahore,
ﬁc?la;si_cr*u T T T T T T T T T T T T T T Pakdstan
Urwt 30-07, Level 30, Tower A, Verficot Business Suie, AB Mauri Pakistan {Privatel timited——— 34%
Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No.8, 59200 Jakon Pery
Kerinchi, Kucia tumpur, Mcioysia Av. Repubiica de Argenfina No. 1227, Ei La
ABMaul Malaysia San Bhe, 2% Chalgca Colao, Peru
Malta T CdsaPediSac.
171 Ok Bakery Sheat, Vaiotto, VT 1455, Molta Phiippines B
Relax Limited 39% 86 £ Rodnguez Ir. Ave., Ugeng Norte, QC. 1604,
Mauritivs Pasig City. Metro Manila, Phitippines
10t Floor, Standard Chortered Tower, AB Food & Beverages Phlippines. Inc, 36%
19 Cybercity, Ebene. Maurifius 1201-1202 Pime Land Buikding, Market Street,
llovo Grour Finoncing Services Madrigal Business Park. Aydla Alabang,
) . . Muntinlupe. 1770, Fhilippines
fovo Group Holcings Limited AR
llovo Group Marketing Services Limied ABMourPrilppines.toc,
Kilomiero Holdings Limited Pajand ) ‘
Sucoma Holdings Urited Przermystowa 2, 67- J‘OO Nowag SQL Lubuskie, Poland
Mexico AB Foods Polska Spdtka 2 ograniczona
) . odpowiedroinoscin [AB Foods Polska Sp.z 0.0}

Paseo de la Refarma 1015, Piso &, Suite/Oficing B Towarowa 28.00-839 Wersaw, Poland
bow iz, Conia Lomas delSam‘g Fe, baiegacion Primark Sklepy spolka £ ograniczona
Cugimoipe de Morelos, Mexico City, 05348, Mesico ! i > .
AB CALSA S de OV, odpow;eq’nmnoscxo [Primark Skiepy sp. z.o.c?)

. i i . - . Robowicka 29/31, 62-020 Swaorzedr - Jasin,
Avepida lavier Gamos Sterd 493, pisa 7 oficing 07-102, Polond
Cal. Santa Fe. Alviarg Obregan, Ciudad de Mexico. ;L i ;
01219 Méxicn Rdrmgnar_w%qnld szprcRJnTy SJD'?‘(G ri((j)gcrcxphnczoncxs )
ACH Foods Mesico. §. de RL. de CY. oy Coaenosaa . Twining ang Lompany b £
Mozambique ) ) Ut Gidwna 34, Bruszccewo, 64-030. Smigiel Pofand
Km75  ENI, Magiong, Diiifo  de  monhica, AB Neo Poiska spolka z organiczona
Provintia de Moputo, Mozambicie adpowiedziainoscic (AB Neo Polska Sp. 2.0.0}
Maragra Agucar, S.A. foreviously AB Agri Polska Sp. z.0.0.)
Netherlands rorfuget T
Mulweg 77, 3316 BE, Dordrechi, Nefhenands Avenida Solvador Alende. n.® 99, Lisboa Oeiras,
AB pMaun Netherlonds BV, Julidio da Barra, Paco de Arcos & Caxigs, 2770-157,
AB M Netherands European Haldings B.V. Paco de Arcos. Portugat
Foods Intermationa! Holding Bv, AB Mo Portugal, S.A. 54%
Van Oldenbameveltplaals 36, 3012 AH, Rotterdam, Rua Cesfine 50. 1250-071, Lisbon, Portugai
Netheriands Lojas Primark Portugal - Exploracao, Gestao e
Primark Foshion B, Adminisiiacao de Espacos ComerciaisSA.
Primark Nethertands BV, Romania
erimark Stil BV, Disirict 1, 165 Caleo Foreasca, One Tower. 121
weena 505, 301 3AL Ratierdam, Metherlands Floor, Bucharesf. Romania
AB Vista Europe B.V. Prmark Mogazine SRL. (previously PSR Indigol
7122 JS  Acften.  Dinxperiosestociweg 122, Rwanda
Netherlonds Nyarugenge Dislict, Nyarugenge Seclor,
Germains Seed Technology B.Y. Kigal City, Rwonda
Oude Kerksiraal 35 4875 AK, Elten-Lour, Nethedonds Ylovo Suger (Kigol imited
Maur Technology B.V. Singapore
Laorderhoogtweg 25, 1101 ER Amsterdam, 80 Robinson Road, #02-00. 068598 Singapore
Netherdands AB Mowr tnvestments {Asia) Pie Lid
westmill Foods Europe BV, 112 Robinson Road #05-01, 068902 Singopore
New ITealand AB Vistar Asia Pte. Limiled
Buidling 3. Level 2. Cantral Busingss Park. d&6 Great Stovakia
South Road, Ellersfie. Auckland 1051, New Zealand Staromestska 3, 811 03 Bratisiava - Store Mesto,
Alied Foods (NZ) Lig Slovakia
AusPac Ingredients NI Urnited Primark Skovakia sro. o o
George Waston Foods [NZ) Limited Slovenia
57 Forge Road., Siverdale 0932 New Fealand Bleiweisova cesta 30 Hublona, 1000, Siovenio
Dad's Pies Limited Pimork Trgovine, figovsko pedietie doo.
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¥ Eferive hol
it ot 54 278

Subisidiary under lokings Subsidtigny anderlakings [ liOI 2%
South Afica Tanzania
1 Nokwe Avenue, Ridgeside, Umblanga Rocks, tovo Tanzania Limited
Kwazulu Natal, 4320, South Alica Nilomibero Sugor Company Limited o 4%
CGS Investments [Pry) Limited Thailand
Ecst African Supply [Py} Limited 11th Floor, 2535 Sukhurmyvit Road, Kwaeng
Glendale Sugar [Pry) Lid Bangcehak, kKhe! Prakhanong Bongkok, 10260, )
ovo Sistibutors (Phy) Urmitect Thailond . '
flove Suger [South Aiica) Propristary Limited AB Food '& Beverqges {Thaitand] td.
Wovo Sugor Africa Propriefary Limited ABF Hg!dmgs (Thailanct Lic. i
fiprop (Piy) Lmited I Empire Tovyer, 241k Fioor, Unit 2412-2413,
! South Sothom Road, Yonnawa, Sathom.
Logsa {Pty] Limited 3% Bangkok 10120 Thaiond
Noadsberg Sugar Company {Py] Lid AB World Foods Asicr Lid
Reynolds Brothers (Pty] Ud 229/110 Moo 1. Teparak Road. T. Bangscothong,
$.A. Sugar Oistributors (Ply) Umited . A Bangscothong. Somutprakarn, FOS40. Thailond
Spain Jasl Asia Pactfic Limited {in iquidation)
Calle Cordenal Marcelo Spinoia, 42, 23016. Turkey T T
MO, Spoi Aksokal Mahalies, Kavakpinar, Kume Eviea
AB AzuCTrero tberi, 5. Scoiedod Unipersonal No, 5, Bonlina- Botkesi, 10245, Turkey
AB Vistar tbheria, S5.L. Maur Maya Sanayi AS.
Calle tevadura, 514710, Villonubia. Cordoba United Arob Emiroies
Spain ] Office 604° Jof2a LOB 15, Jebei Al Freczone, '
AB Maur Food. 5.A Duhai, PO BOX 17620, Unitedt Arab Emirates
AB Mauri Spain, S.L.U, AB Maurl Mididle East FZE
ABF floerio Holding 5.L. United States T
C/ Escultor Coomaonte o, 2, Enfrepiania, CT Corparation Sysiem, 818 West Seventh Sireet,
Bengvente, famora, Spain Suite 930, Los Angehes CA 90017, Unifed Stales
Agroten S.A. 3% AR Mauri Food Inc.

Cafie Comunidad de Murcia, Parcela UE-1-03,
Plofaformo Logislico de Fraga. 22524, Huesan
Spain

Allermnative Swine Nufntion, S.L.

Cualie Escoles Fies 49, Flanta Baja. 08017
Borcelono, Sodin

PR Healthcare Espona, S.LUL

Avienda Virgen de Monfseiral, 44 Casteliol,
0871%. Barcelona, Spoin

Cermains Seed Technology, 3.A.

Plaza Pabio Ruiz Picasso /N, Tome Picasso,
Plonia 37, Madnd, Spain

flove Sugar Espana, S.L.

Gron Via, 32 50 28013, Madnd, Spain

Primark Tiendas, S.L1J.

8. 2 Caolle Via Servicio |, 2 CP, 19190 Toria,
Guadoiciar, Spoin

Poimark Logisien, S1. Sociedod Unipersoncl_
S Lonko

124 Templers Rood. Mounf Lavinia, St Lonka
AB Maur Lonka (Prvate) Umited

Sweden

Retnus vdg 8. 171 45, Salna. Sweden
Larodan AR

Switzerland

Fabrikstrasse 10, CH-3176, Neuenagg, Switzetand
wonder AG_
Taiwan

3F-1. No. 161, Sec 4. Nanking F Rd, Taipei City
W4, Taiwan (Frovince of Chingl

AB food and Beveroges Tciwcn_;k\g; _
fonzanio - -
msalwo pill Office, Kidaiau, Klombero District.
Tanzania

llovo Distliers fTanzania) timited
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The Crnporgtion Tiust Company, Corporation
Trust Center, 1209 Orange Sreet, Wilmington DE
19801, Unifed! States

AB Agri US, Inc.

AR Erzyimes, Inc.

AB Vista, Inc.

AB World Foods US, Inc.

ABF MNorth america Carp.

ABF North Amearica Holdings, Inc.

Abitec Corporaiion

ACH Capifd Yentwes, Inc.

ACH Food Componies. Inc.

ACH Juptter LLC

BakeGood, ULC

Germains Seed Technology. nc.

PGP Intemnational. ihe.,

Prienark US Corp,

Prasecca Source, LLC

SPIPharrma, ine.

SPI Palyots, LLC

Twinings North America. Inc.

C T Corporaiion Systern, 155 Federal Straet Suite
700, Boston. MA 02110, United Stotes

Frmork GCM LS

C T Comorafion System, 330 NBond Bivd,
Glenddie, Calfomia Y1203, Uniled States
PennyPacker, LLC

158 River Rood, Unit B, Chfton, INJ 07074,

United States

Batsamic Express LLC

158 River Roardt, Unit A, Clflan, NI 07014,

United States

Modeno Fine Foods, inc,

251 Littte Folls Drive, Wimington, DE 19808, United
States

Fytexia Com.



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

32. Group entities continued

e ETI‘;-‘sh\'é)_wo'JuTé_

I é“'TE\(:HVF,' E‘dmgﬂ

Subydrgry undertangs Fnotss. 7 subhadlory underakings it not 56 2%

Uruguay ABF PM Limifed

Cno. Carlos Anfonio Lopez 7547, {Company number 00486887}

ronlevideo, Uruguoy AB.F. Properiies Limited

levodwo Uuguayass {Company number 00683361}

Venezvela ’ ) ABF UK Finance Lirmited

Oficines Once 3 (N° 11-3) y Once 4 (N° 11-4), {Company number 07267422)

Torre Mayupan, Centro Comercial San Luis, ABF US Holdings Limitec

Av.Principal Urbanizacidn San Luis, croce carnt (Company number 05659249}

Calle Comeicio, Caracas. Bolvaran Repubfic ABF ZMW Fnance Uimited

of Venezucla (Company rumber 13485724)

Alimentos Fleischimann, C.A. ABN [Overseas) Urited

Compania de Aimentos Lafincamericana {Company number 00145374)

gﬁ}’@@mefqﬁw"v —————— Alium 100 Properties Limited

;'?;’;”%ON i i Ko Strees (Company nummiber 04502487
)z Guyes I Minh Khot Sireel Afium 100 Stores Holdings Limited

Wward 6, Distict 3. Ho Chor minh City, Vietnom [ ol poo’?y il 042509;'9‘)'

AB Agr Vietnam Company Limited Affurn 100 Stores Limited

Lo Nga Commune, Dinh Quan District, Dong {Cornpany rumber 05007953

N Province, Viginam - -

. o Bnlish Sugar (Oversaas) Lirnited
ﬁMCzufi ‘ie”l‘*‘ﬂ“ﬂ"idf,¥ - \\,\,gvi (Company number 02400085)
ifar:bjab la Esiates. Plof No. 118a Lubomib BSO (Chino] Umited

akambalo Estates. Plot No. 118a Lubombo Como mber 03799608
road, Off Great North Road, Zambio (Company nu i .3 . )

) ) G. Costa Holdings) Limited
llovo Sugar (Zambia) Lmited {Company number G3679738)
Manga Forms PLC L 42% Mounitstield Park Finance Limied
Tukunka Agricultural Limifed 425 (Company nurber 07882348)
Zamiiar sugur i 42%  Twining Crosfield & Co Limited

ABF - audit exempt

in accordance with section 477A of the Companies Act
2006 [the 'Act’), and subject to compliance with the
requirements of that section including the provision of
statutory guarantee from Associated British Foods ple, the
following subsidiaries are exempt from the requirements of
the Act refating to the audit of individual accounts in
respect of the financial year ended 16 September 2023:

1s1chory Laderiakings W nat 26 2%

Felacieioiang

AB. Exploration Umited
[Company number 00487323}
AB maori Ching Umited
{Company number 12109070}
AB Mouri Europe Limited
[Campany number 028837 38)
AB Sugar China Holdings Limited
[Company number 07468246}
AB Sugar China Limited
Compatiy nuntoer G7447 163}
ABF {No. 1} Limited

[Company number 046481 20)
ABF (No2) Limited

|Company number 03367799}
ABF (No.3) Limited

{Company rumber 00155305§
ABF BRL Finance Lid
[{Compomny number 11001902}
ABF Finaince Limited
[Company number 04659735}
ARF Food Tech Investrnents Limited
{Company nunioer 00172147)
ABF Funding

{Company numiser 05380813}
ABF HK Finance Lirrited
|Company number 07761084)
ABF Japan bmited
{Company nurniber G0492278)

[Company number G011 44900]
Wordwing Investments Limited
{Company numiber 02778854)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

far the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

32. Group entities continved

Joint ventures

Alist of the Group's joint ventyres as at 14 Sepltember 2023 is given below. All jaint ventures are includad in the Group's

financial statemeants using the equity method of accounting.

& houding

Jaint veniuas

United Kingdom

Wesfon Cenfre, 10 Grosvenor Sfreef, London,

WIK 4QY, Unifed Kingdom
Froniisr Agricuture timited 50%
Boothmans {Agncuinare) Limited 50%
Forward Agronomy Limited 50%
G F P {Agnculture) Limited S0%
GH Grain Umited 50%
GH Grain (Mo, 2§ Limited 50%
Graip Harvesters Limited 50%
Intracrop timited 50%
Nami: tmited 50%
Morth Wold Agroneny Limited 0%
Phoenix Agronormy Liniled 50%
SOYL Limited 5%
The agranomy Partnership Limited 0%

Berih 36 Test Road, Eastern Docks, Southampion,

Hampshire, SC14 3GG, United Kingdom
Southampton Grain Temninad Lirnited 50%

Riversicle. Wissinglon Rood Noyiond, Coichester,

Essex, CO6 4LT. United Kingdom

Angiia Groin Holdings tirmited 50%

Angiic Grain Services Limited 50%

Northants Apc. Rushion Road. Kettering, NN T4 1FL

Engiand, United Kingdom

Nevara Oat Milling Limited 0%

Unit 8. Burnside Business Pork, Bumside Rood, Morkef

Brayton, TFS 3UK. United Kingdom
B.CW {Agricufiure) Limited 0%

Witham St Hughs Lincoin, LG 9TN, Unifed Kingdomn

Namix Enviro Umited S0%
Fagle Labs thcubafor, 28 Chesferon Road,

Cambridge, CB4 3AZ Unifed Kingdom

Yagro Ud 50%

Kingseot, Newmocher, Aberdeenshire, ABZ} QUE

Euroagkem Limited 508

Lothian Crop Speciglists Limited 3%
United Kingdoam -- Non ARF

Prq!og{s House, Bivthe Gaote, Biyfhe Valey Park,

Solhull B90 8AH

Tango Real Estote LLP 8%

Second Floor, 1] Wateroo Streel, Birminghcrm 82 518

Nurton Developmenis (Guintus) imites 8%
Ausfralia

Buitckng A, Leve! 2, 1 Talovers Rood, Morfh Ryde

NEW 2113, Austalic

Fottnum & mesons Piylmited 3%
Chite

Ave, Balmaceda 3500, Vaidivia, Chife

levaduros Colicod A, SR
Chima

1828 Jigjueshon Road, Huongdao Distici, Qingdoo,

Shondong Province. Chino

Qingdao Xinghua Cersal O and Foodstuff Co., Ltid 25%

1 East Ren mMin Road, Regiment 64, Cocodata.

Ainjiang, China

AB Maurl Yihat Kerry (Cocoddo) Food Co., Lid.

rreviowsly Xinjiong Maun Food., Lid) 500

Room 807, 8ih Floor, 1379, Bocheng Road, Pudang

New District, Shanghal Ching

AR Maur Yihai Kery investiment Company Uimited 0%
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Joinl venvazs
Room 608, &th Floor, 1379, Bocheng Road, Pudong
Neaw Oistrict, Shanghal, Ching
AB Maur Yihai Kerry Food Marketing (Shanghal) Co.,
Ltad
Ta Ha Comprehensive Indushial Pork, Fuyy County
Economic Developmen! Areo, Qidihar, Hellongiang
Province, China
A8 mMaur Yihai Kery (Fu Yu) Yeast Technology Co.,
Lt
9 Tonggang Rogd, Shage Vilage. Nanpu Town,
Cangang Areq, GQuanghau, Fuiicn Province, Ching
AB Maur Yihat Kery (Quarzhou) Yeast Technology
o, lid.
infersection of Jigotong Avenue and Zhoushon
Road, Gang Diskict, Zhoukow, Henan Province,
China
AR Maurd Ythal Kery (Zhoukou] Yeast Technology
Co., Lid,
Xinsha Industial Zone. Machang Town, Dangguan,
Guangdong Province, Ching
AB Maur Yihai Kerry {Oongguan) Food Co Ltd
Finlang
Tykkirndentie 150 (PO Box 57), Rajarmadki,
FIN-05201, Finiang
Rool Oy
France
59 Chemin du Moutin, 695701, Caran, Dardifly.
France
Snchvorls 50
Gennany
Brede 4, 50368, Werne, Garmany
UNIFERM GmibH & Co. kG

IMA Nahmmitte! GmiboH
UNIFERM Verwattungs GrmibH
Brede 8, 593068, Wermne, Germony
UNLOG GrrbH - -1
teland ’
Rathcore Golf & Counfry Club, Rathcore, Co. Meafh,
AB3KPO8, reiand
Independent Ak Laboratories Lid
Jopon
36F Alago Green Hils Mori Tower, 2-5-1 Alago,
Minato-ku, Tokyo 1056236, Japon
Twinings Japan Colld
Poland
Ul Wybieg, nr 5 1ok 9, miegsc, KOD 61-315,
Foznan, Poland
Uniferm Polska 3p Z.o.o
South Africa
I Nokwe Avenue, Ridgeside, Umhlanga Rocks.
Kwazule Natat 4320, South Afica
Glendale Distiing Company
spain
Cf Roimunde Fermndnder. Viloverde 28, Madrid,
Nalstis]
Compadia de Metazos, S.A. fin kyuidation)
United States T
The Carporation st Company, Corporalion Tiust
Cenier, 1209 Crange Streel, Wimingion DE 19507,
United States
Stratas Foods WC

5%

%

3

%

50%
0%
50%

507

2

5%
W%



Notes to the consolidated financiatl statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 Septemiyer 2023

32. Group entities continued

Associafes

Alist of the Group's aissociates as al 14 Sepltember 2023 is given below. Al associates are included in the Group's

financial statements using the equity method of accounting.

Asocialey % hoding sogcats
United Kingdom PT Indo Fermex 49%
Paciol House, Duncan Close, Moulfon Park Industrial P.T. Jaya Femex 49%
Estate, Norhampian, NN3 WL, United Kingdom PT Sarna Indah 5%
Bokers Basco Umited 20% sas .
Patemaster House. 65 51 Pauls Churchyord, 26, Harokmim st., Holon Azirell Center Building B.israel
tardan, EC4M 8AB, Unifed Kingdom Succim (ST, Lic 45
AST. %
C. Czamikow Limited BT e e e
ik jmit 43% . .
Czomi O.W Group Limited - SZ Via Borgogna, 2-20122. silan, ftaty
C. Czamikow Sugar Fulures Limited 43% Cromikow lialia S 439
C. Czarmikow Sugar Limited 43% - ZOMIKOW [1EhG o1 — s
Sugarward Limited 4% Remva
United Kingdorn - Non ABE T T T T I & M Bank House, Second Ngong Avenue,
Pm: C'"g 02: 2;23'1 h R, §1 P.CO. Box 10517, Mairobi 60100, Kenya
arker Cavendish, urch Road, Stanmaore, ) , L -
Middiesex, HAT 4XR. %;@%%YE%.&?@W,R J . . 2
. autitiu
vanneck Residenticl LLP 41% . )
Unif 1 Woodley Park Estate, 59-69 Reading Road, N 3 Presdent Jobn Kennedy Sireel, Port Lous,
Woodley, Reading. RGS5 3AN oS
c . Sukpak Limited 0%
Davidson HO‘diﬂgS Limited '28% ﬁe‘_)(icﬁg_—_‘h‘_mi T T
?E’r\r/eﬁez‘]_ﬂ;ir;fo# Range. Bevertey Way, New Maiden. Jaime Balmes #8 Loc. 3-4, Los Morales Polanc. Mexico
ey , .- L Cib. 11510 Mexico
The Advenfure Bxpenence Limited A% C. Czamikow Sugar [Mexico). S.A. de CV. 43%
7 Savoy Courd, London, WC2R 0EX New Zeqland e T
. L -
tandon Theatre Company Holdings Limited. AT o KPMG, 18 Viaduc! Harsour Avenue, Marifime
Australia . ] Sequara, Auckiand, Mew Feckano
283 Flagstaff Road, Brinkley SA 5253, Australic New Food Cootings (New Zeoland) Limited 50%,
Bigy River Pork Pty Ltd 20% FHEpTrTeT—Ww*W I — -
Muray Bridge Bacon Py Lid 20% )
. ; . Unit A, 103 Excellence Avenue, Carmelra
32 Davis Road, Wethenl Fark. Sydney NSW 2164, Austraia Inaustict Park 1. Canlubong, Calamba, Léguﬁa,
E?ﬂf_o‘:’d Coatings Pty Lid e 9 New Food Coalings [Philppines] Ihe. 50%
Bthq'" ) ) ) 5F Don Jacinto Bulding, Dela Rosg cor. Solcedo
Suite No. 1959 Diplomaiic Cammercial Office. Tower 8 Streets, Legaspi Vilage, 1229 Makati City. Philippines
Building Na. 1545, Road 1722, Diglamatic C1 Philosines. e 457
ArealManama 217, Bahrain - pRInss. Nc. P 2
Crzamikow Supply Chain Sdies for Food & Beverage Slngqpore N
ingredients Bahrain 5.P.C. 437, 3 Phific Streel. #14-01 Royal ious Building.
El;‘lil . T Sinacaoore (48693
. . C. Czarmkow Sugar Ple, Limited 43%
Av Dos Vinhedas, 71, floer 11, room 1101, Uberlondic, Ty —— —
. . iy South Africa
minas Geras, Brazi ]
. 7 =
2C Energia S.A. 999, 1 Gledhow sl Road, Gleanow, ngdukuzo, 4450
Avenida Presidente Jusceling Kubilschek n 2041, 119 Sledhow Sugar Company [P1y] Limifed 0%
andore- Vila Qlirmpic, CEP 04.543-011, S&o Paula, Brasi Tanzania
Cramikaw Brasil Lida 43% Zth Floor Amani Place, Onijo Streef. PO Box 38568, Dar-
Av Pres Jusceling Kubitschek, 2041, floor 11, 5éo es-Salaam, Tanzania
Pauio, Brazil Czamikow Tanzania Limited 43%
Cz Energy Comercializado Ra De Hanol S.A4 2Y%  Msolwo Ml Office, Kidolau, Tenzaria
China Kilombero Sugor Distributors Limited R
Room 17A01, 232 Zheng Shan 6fh Rocd, Guangzhou Thailand i
City. Guongdang Fravince, 510180, China 909 Moo 15, Teparak Road, Tambol Bangsaoihong.
£, Cramikow Sugar (Guangzhou) Company Lid 43R King Amohur Banascothong. Samuiprakam. Thallond
Columnbia Newly Weds Foods (Thailand) Lid 5%
Cl. 16 Sur #430-49, £t Pobiado, Medelin, £l Fobiacio, 1203, 12ih Floor, Metropolis Building,
Medelin, Anfioguic. Colomibia 725 quhumw‘a‘ Rdi, Morth A_dbna ton, Wattana, Banakok,
Czamikow Colombio 5.A.5. gz Ceomikow [Thaiand) Limited . 43%
erd-icT“ T T United Siates
Plot No N46, House No 4-9-10, Hrmt Nagar, Hyderabod 333 Sk 2nd Avenue. Suile 2860, Miomi, FL 33131, USA
1G5, 500076, iIndio C. Czamikow Sugar Inc. L 43%
Huoban Energy 9 Privale Limited 34% Vietnom
House No. 1-8-37374, Chiran Fort Lane, Begumpet, 5th Fioor, 1MC Tower, 62 Ton Quang Khaii, Tan Dinh
Hyderabad, 500003, Indio Woard, Distict 1, Ho Chi Minh Cily, Vielnam
C. Czamikow Sugar (India) Private Limided 3% Czamikow (vieinamj Limited A%

indonesia
Komplex Puid Mutiara Blok A21-22, 4L, Griva Utama,

Wiflington Investments  Finongicl Statements 2002 3



Company balance sheet
at 14 september 2023

2023 2092
[Resstated)

Moy'e Em £m
Non-currenf assels
Investment property - 3
Investments in subsidiaries 1,042 1,042
Invastments in associcrtes 2 3
Deiered lox assets 2 2
Trade and other recetvables 1,045 918
- ' ] , , 2,057 7968
Cusrent assels S - - - oo s T - T
Tradle and ather receivablas ! 5 2
Other investmeints 4 31 28
Income tax @
Coshandcashequivalents — , 9 57
- T T T T T &
Cutrent fabilities - o T
Trade and other payables 7 [27) {18)
Income tax {1 -
Nelcurentasseb  —  ~ ~ 7B
Non-curent liabillies | T -
Employee penefis babiffes 8 (&) i7)
Nelosets 2102 208
Equity
Called up share capifal 9 - .
Share premium account 382 382
Retained earnings - . 1,720 1.657
Tolal equity affribuicble fo equity shareholders ’ - T ST T T 02T 2039
1 Fo 2w mg @3t e St O Toob on 67 e 3rman s v, vm e w ks tRe current yese ranagerent bove nedt 1 ed onio P amounis Daes by sOEso on Jraerck ngs - vore ol

sapecien Mo epe o winn the ned 17 rarthoang thoole havo regn © o hag 0o non £ oeand 2snt © azoiinsne s o b 1AT 1T The comparat v e per oo hes Bean 1asiate f canoore =e] |

sen e 5l nere 3

The Company's profit for the 52 week period ended 14 September 2023 was £190m (52 week period ended 17

Sepiember 2022 £284m).

The financial sfatements on pages 74 to 79 were approved by the Board of directors on 15 December 2023 and were

signed on its behalf by:

A I
Fos
‘Al _\l \

Sir Guy Weston
Chairman
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Company statement of changes in equity

for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

Share TSGR Retaned Total
coptal Brermium EEpatate ECjULY
£m £m Im £m
Balance al 18 September 2021 - 382 1.474 ,__1_856_
Tolal comprehensive income
Profit for the period - - 264 284
Remeasurerments of defined benefil schemeas - 4 4
Deferred tax associated wilh defined berefit schemeas - m {n
IOTher comprehensive inGome - items that will not be reclassified to profit or - 3 3
0SS
Tolal comprehensive Income for the perod S - - w7 287
Transactions with owners - a
Dividends paid 1o equity shareholders - - {04) {104)
Bolance at 17 September 2022 382 1,657 203%
Total compreﬁenswe income - T o o
Profit for the period - - 170 190
Remecsurements of defined benefil schemes - - 1 1
Defered lax associcted with defined berefit schemes - - - -
Ither comprehersive Ncome - items that will not be reclassified to prefit or - - 1 1
0S5
Total Cbmgrgheﬁswe ‘\hétjme for the pe-n-g)-d- o T - - 171 191
Transactions with owners ; -
Dividendsup__gid 1o squity shareholders - - (128) (128)
Balance af 14 Seplember 2023 - 382 1,720 2,102
Wittington Investments Financial Stalemrents 2023 75



Company accounting policies
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are presented in sterling,
rounded to the nearest million {except where otherwise
indicated). They are prepared under the historical cost
basis, except that Other Investments are stated at their
fair value, and in accordance with FRS 101 and the
Companies Act 2006.

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken
advantage of the disclosure exemptions available in
relation 1o financial instruments, capital management,
oresentation of third balance sheet for retrospective
restatements, presentation of a cash flow siatement,
standards not yet effective, impairment of assets and
certain related party transactions. Where reqguired,
equivalent disclosures are given in the consolidated
financial statements.

As permitted by section 408(4) of the Companies Act
2006, a separate Income statement and statement of
comprehensive income for the Company has not been
included in these financial statements. The principal
accounling policies adopted are described below. They
have alt been opplied consistently to all years presented.

Going concern

The conclusion to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing these financial statements is ocutlined in the
Directors' report on page 8 and in the consolidated
accounts on page 18,

Investment property

Investment properties are held at cost less provision for
impairment. Impairment is determined by reference 1o
the foir value of property estimated either by
independent valuers or by the directors. Depreciation is
provided where the directors consider that the residual
value of major components of the praperty is less than
current book value.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates
Investments in subsidiaries and associates are stated at
cost less any provision for impairment.

Impairment

The carmrying amount of the Company's investments in
subsidiaries and other assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the
asset’s recoverable amaount is estimated. Animpairment
charge is recognised in the income statement whenever
the camying amount of an asset exceeds ifs recoverable
amount.

The recoverable amount of assets is the greater of their
fair value less costs to sell and their value inuse. In
assessing value in use, estimated future cash flows are
discounted to present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the ime value
of money and the risks specific o the asset.

Animpairment charge s reversed if there has been o
change in the esfimates used to determine the
recoverable amaunt, but only to the extent that the new
carrying amount does not exceed the camying amount
that would have been determined. net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment charge had been
recognised.
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Financial assets and liabilities
The Company recognises financial assets and liabilities
when it becomes a party to the contractual provision of
the relevant financial instrument.

Trade and other receivables

The Company records trade and other receivables initially
at fair value and thereafter at amortised cost. This
generally results in recognition at nominal value less an
expected credit loss provision, which is recognised based
on management's expectation of losses without regard to
whether or not a specific impairment trigger has
occurred.

Trade payables

The Company records trade payables initially at fair value
and thereafter at amortised cost, This generally results in
recognition at nominal value.

Other investmenfs

Equity investrments where the Company does net have
significant influence, control or joint control are measured at
fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL), and are carned in the
staterment of financial position af fair value with net changes in
fair value recognised in profit and loss.

Pensions and other post-employment benefits

The Company operates one defined contribution and
che unfunded post-employment plan, For the unfunded
plan. the amoeunt charged in the income statement is the
cost of benefils accruing to employees over Ihe year, plus
any henefit improvements grantod to membaers Dy the
Company during the year. It also includes interest
expense calculated by applying the liability discount rate
to the pension liability. The present value of liabilities is
disclosed as a liability in the balance sheet. Any reloted
deferred tax (fo the extent recoverable) is disclosed
sepoarately in the balance sheet. Remeasurements are
recognised immediately in other comprehensive iIncome.
Contributions payable by the Company in respect of
defined contribution plans are charged to operating
profit as incurred.

Income tax
Income tax on profit or loss for the period comprises
current and defered tax. Income taxis recognised in the
incorme statement except to the extent that it relates to
items taken directly to equity. Curent tax is the tax
expected to be payable on taxable income for the year,
using fax rates enacted or substantively enacted during the
pefiod, together with any adjustrment to tax payablein
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability
method., using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet dale, providing for temporary
differences between the carnrying amounts of assets and
liakilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. A deferred tax assetis
recognised only fo the extent that il is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the
assef can be ulilised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank and cash
balances, call deposits and shori-ferm investments with
original maturities of three months or less.



Notes to the Company financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 146 Septermber 2023

1. Investment Property

£m
Al 18 September 2021 3
Additions
Al 17 September 2022 3
Disposals - ) - ) B o 13}
At 14 September 2023 _
2. Investmentis in subsidiaries
e e = e et o+ ——
Lisled Urlstedd 3
Al 18 September 2021 345 697 1.042
Additions _ _ -
Al 17 September 2022 345 697 1.042
Addilions B - - -
A116 September 2023 345 697 1,042

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are shown at cost less amounts written off. Investrments include 403,341,215
ordinary shares of 5 15/,:p (2022 - 403,341,215) each in Associated British Foods ple, equivalent to 52.5% of the issued

sharg capital of that company, whichis listed on The London Steck Exchange. At 14 September 2023 the market value
of the holding was £8.394m (2022 - £5,342m). Asscciated British Foods plc is incorporaied in Great Britain and registered
in England. Through its subsidiary, Howard Investments Limited, the Company holds a further 28,173,893 (2022 -
28.173,893) shares in Associated British Foods ple. representing 3.7% of the issued share capital of that company. A list of
trading subsidiary undertakings is given in note 32 of the Company's consolidated financial statements. The holding
company structure is complicated and does not necessarily reflect the management Grouping in which the companies
are fisted.

3. Investments in associates

im

Al 18 September 2021
Additions

At 17 September 2022
Impaiment

At ﬂ’gépte'mber 2023

M= wl—

A list of associate undertakings is given in note 32 of the Company's consalidated financial statements.

4, Deferred tax assets

1

Al 18 September 2021
tffect of changes in tax rate on income statement
Al 17 September 2022
Effect of changes in tax rate on income statement
Al 14 September 2023

3
(M
2
2

Finance Bill 2022 which was substantively enacted on 24 pMay 2022 increased the main rate of corporation tax in the UK
to 25% with effect from 1 April 2023. Deferred tax iability on the balance sheet has been measured af 25% which is the
rate expected fo apply when the tax liability is settled.

5. Trade and other receivables

202%
2023 [Reslaled)
£m Lm
Non-current

Armounis owed by subsidiary undertakings ! 1,043 18
Other debtors . e 2 -
1,045 218

Cunenf [ SN e oo e - — ———
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings ! 5 -
Other deblors e _ _ I 2
5 2
I Foiowng orevew ol he - csfonbonof rtercaomnony recesnbes nibe o perrent anee gsnhfed cera 1 are, nk awea by schia e cnnsrck ngs whetk are et

grpecien foepa s winatng rast 12 ronlbs e snco o e e baer © 0597 60 05 non-cgTen assetn accoraonzte w125 1 The comiparalye per 52 ha: beer

The directors consider that the carrying amount of debiors approximates to their fair value.

eslalen aLronI ngly
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Notes to the Company financial statements
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4. Other Investments

Tolal
Listed Lnlistea Other
irvestments iy E5Ments Investrents
£in £m im
Al 18 September 2021 2% ! 30
Fair value loss {1} (1) (2}
At 17 Septermber 2022 28 - 28
Fair value gain e 3 - 3
At 16 September 2023 T ' 37 - at’
The Group classifies these financial instruments using a fair value hierarchy outlined on page 52. The table below
analyses the level in the fair value hierarchy into which their fair value measurement method is categorised for
Investrments held at fair value through profit and loss:
T o __-_; e, 2023 2072
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Levell leve Z Leval 2 Tolal
£m Em £m £m im £m Lm im
Investments designated FVTPL 31 - - N 28 - 28
7. Trade and other payables
o mmmmmm 2023 R0ET
£m Fl
Amounts faling due within one year
Accryals and defered income - 1
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings 27 17
27§
The directors consider that the carrying amaount of creditors approximates to their fair value.
8. Employee benefits liabilities
e 211
At 12 September202y 10
Cumentservice cost A
Actuarial gan S {4
At17 Sepfember2022 ~ - I
Current service cost N 7 -
Actuarial gain o {1}
At 14 Septermber 2023 ' 6

The Company operates one unfunded post-employment plan which is accounted for in the same way s the Group's
defined benefit retirement schemes detailed in note 14 of the consolidated financial statements. Applicable actuarial
assumptions are stated on page 39. The Company's unfunded liability forms part of the Group's £26m (2022: £29m)
unfunded UK liabilities disclosed on page 41.

9. Share capital and dividends

Share capital

Crelinaary seores Nominal Valus

of 50 eacr i
Authorised - At 16 Seplember 2023 and 17 Septemibzer 2022 200,000 450.000
Issued and fully poid - At 16 Septermtber 2023 and 17 Septemiber 20022 862,022 431.011
Dividends

Details of dividends paid are provided in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Company financial statements

for lhe 52 weeks ended 16 Septemicer 2023

10. Related parties
The Company has a confroling shareholder relaticonship with the frustees of the Garfield Weston Foundation and with
certain other individuals who hold shares in the Comparty. The Company has a related party relationship with its

subsicharies, associates and joint veniures and directors. In the course of normal operations, related party transactions
entered into by the Company have baen confracted on an am's length basis,

Malerial fransaciions and yeor end bolances with related parties {excluding wholly owned subsidiaries) were as folliows:

2023 2022

£°000 £000 |
Dividends paid by Wittington Investments Limited and received in o beneficial capacity by:
{i] Trustees of The Garfield weston Foundation 4745 3.856
(ii] Directors of Witlington Investments Limited who are not Trustees of The Foundation 1,248 1012

See note 30 to the consolidated financial statements for turther details.

11. Other information '

Emciumenis of directors
Note 5 fo the consolidated financial statements of the Group provides details of Diractors remunargtion.

Employees
The Company had an average of 32 employees in 2023 {2022 - 32). Remuneration was £3.2m (2022: £4 2m).

Auditors’ fees
Note 4 to the consolidated financial staterments of the Group provides details of the remuneration of the Cempany's
auditors on a Group basis.

12, Pos! Bolance Sheet Event

On 12 December 2023 the Directors declared an Interm dividend. The dividend af £84 50, tatal value of £74.4m, will be
paid on 23 January 2024 to shareholders on the register on 12 December 2023,
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